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1.1. Executive Mayor’s foreword 

 

This 2012/2013 Annual Report of the Lejweleputswa District Municipality, which reflects our service delivery, developmental achievements and 

challenges, is presented in recognition of our obligation to be an accountable and transparent organisation. Indeed we have together managed to 

record many challenges during 2012/2013 financial year although challenges still remain going forward. As the Municipality we saw the finalisation of 

the National Development Plan (NDP) for 2030 vision. As the district we have resolved to align our planning processes with this national imperative by 

adopting the vision enshrined in the NDP. In 2014/2015 financial year we will localise the NDP in our setting. 

 

The district has involved local communities and stakeholders during 2012/2013 in community participation that took various forms. The Integrated 

Development Planning (IDP) and Budget Process for 2012/2013 ensured that a programme was developed to visit specific areas. Mayoral Imbizos were 

also held at targeted areas to bring communities closer to matters of local government. We are pleased that attendance and interactions at these 

meetings has been truly meaningful. We certainly valued the chance to tap into the collective wisdom of our communities, reinforcing as it did the core 

value of people-centredness of the district. This for us is a non- negotiable indeed, a district council and administration that becomes alienated from its 

constituency and its people surely cannot provide legitimate leadership towards sustainable community development. 

 

The Municipality has established Lejweleputswa Development Agency (LDA) in 2010/2011 and the Agency was in operational phase in 2012/213 

financial year. Feasibility studies were undertaken by the Agency in 2012/2013 and we remain hopeful that progress will be made in the ensuing years 

so that the Agency becomes the Centre for economic development in the district. Towards the end of 2011/2012 financial year, processes were put in 

place towards appointment of new Board of Directors for LDA 

The challenges that remain for us require that both the administration and political structures work collaboratively to address them. We still need to 

accelerate expenditure of conditional grants as well as resolving small tactical issues. As part of efforts towards social cohesion and national building the 

Municipality carried out various initiatives and campaign directed to vulnerable groups and none governmental organisations. Going forward, more 
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programmes will be directed towards the marginalised groups such as youth, women, children and people living with disability to build socially inclusive 

communities. 

 

In conclusion, this Annual Report reflects the path we have travelled, trials faced and yet we remain focussed and committed to ensure that in each 

financial year we make improvements from previous challenges and create a better life for residents of Lejweleputswa. We call upon all stakeholders 

inside and outside the Municipal area to work with us the opportunities presented by the district  

 

 

----------------------------------------------- 

Cllr NOKWANJE SELINA LEETO 

Executive Mayor 
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1.2. Municipal Manager’s foreword 

 

1.2.1. Sector departments and the sharing of functions between the municipality / entity and sector departments. 

As a district municipality working to coordinate programmes both at local and provincial levels for our respective local municipalities, we are 

cognisant of the difficult task that faces us annually. One of the daunting tasks that were are faced with is to ensure that whilst there is relevant 

success as regards operation clean audit, we need to assist local municipalities to improve their levels of compliance because it has shown in 

reports that the district is more ready for the programme than it currently is with our local municipalities. For the record, we are aware that we 

need to ensure that the two local municipalities in the district which were under s139 for the past two financial years increase the pace of 

compliance. 

 

The 2012/13 financial year was a penultimate year for us to ensure that we work towards a clean audit. We are also aware that comparatively 

speaking, we have been regressing for the three financial years in terms of the number of matters of emphasis even when the overall audit 

outcome has been an unqualified audit opinion.  Surely there has been consistent flouting of own policies as directed by the auditor general which 

we need to improve. The process to improve on our quality of the opinion is made easy by retention of key municipal officials as well as the ability 

we have as a municipality to have minor vacancy rate at senior management level over a long period of time. 

 

1.2.2.  A statement on the previous financial year’s audit opinion. 

The opinion that was given during the 2011/12 financial year called for us to ensure that we improve on our controls as well as our compliance in 

both financial and non-financial requirements going forward. 
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1.2.3.  A short statement on the current financial health of the municipality / entity based on new budget formats as required by Treasury Regulations No 

31804. 

The reality that we are unable to source substantial own funding is a worrisome factor. The composition of salaries portion to overall grant is quite 

higher than is the norm.                 

 

1.2.4. The internal management changes in relation to Section 56/57 managers. 

For the year under review, we had vacant positions of the Chief Financial Officer, the executive manager: Social Services as well as the executive 

manager: Led and planning. We have employed the CFO on the 1st October 2012 and the other two executive managers on the 1st and 6th February 

2012, respectively. The term of office of the Municipal Manager ended on the 30th November 2012 and the position was set for occupation on the 

3rd June 2013 as per council resolution. 

 

1.2.5.  Risk assessment, including the development and implementation of measures to mitigate the top 5 risks. 

Our risk management environment was not established in the year under review. Although the item formed part of audit committee agenda items, 

we could not provide a risk plan and policy within which we should work. 

 

 

______________________ 

District Municipal Manager 

Me PME Kaota 
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1.3. Municipal overview 

1.3.1. Functional relationship between the municipality, other political structures as well as the community. Our relationship with all stakeholders in 

relationship is in terms of service delivery.  

Political leadership of the municipality is governed by the ruling party-African National Congress and other political parties represented in council 

are the Democratic Alliance, Freedom Front Plus, Congress of the People and  

 

The municipality is currently governed by the troika. The executive Mayor- Cllr Selina Nokwanje Leeto is at the political helm of the municipality, 

together with the Speaker of council (Cllr Nkosinjane Speelman) who presides over council meetings. The third is the Municipal Manager, who is the 

administrative head of the municipality. 

 

The Speaker is the chairperson of council and is responsible for managing and setting council meetings. Council sits at least four times a year on 

ordinary council meetings whilst the there is also plan for special council sittings in the same financial year. The role of the Executive Mayor is 

assisted by members of the mayoral committee who are effectively the political heads of departments in the municipality. This is the second 

structure that provides oversight on municipal programmes. The sessions are called once a quarter to discuss progress and challenges that the 

municipality faces. Next to the mayoral committee are the portfolio committees of each department whose meeting schedule complies with 

mayoral committee sittings. The flow of information and items that must serve in council is such that the management committee, chaired by the 

acting municipal manager, first convenes meetings on a monthly basis to develop items and discuss challenges faced during programme 

implementation. 

 

1.3.2. Issues of demography 

Our population size of the district municipality has decreased from more than 703 170 in 1996 to just 626 265 in 2011.  This is in contrast to 

provincial figures which increased from 2,655 504 in 1996 to 2,745 590 in 2011. Lejweleputswa District Municipality is the most affected of all the 

district municipalities in the Free State during the 2011 census. Official census for 2011 points to a -1.4 % decrease in the population growth of the 
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district municipality. The only Free State district and metropolitan municipalities that have shown an increase in growth are Mangaung (1.5%) and 

Fezile Dabi (0.5%). This shows that planning must be geared towards addressing issues concerned with causes of emigration from the district to 

other provinces. 

There is a similar trend in terms of age and sex distribution figures between the province and the district. Concentration of a bigger number of both 

sexes is around the ages of between 18 and 35 for the ten year period in the district. The issue that concerns all South Africans is the provision of 

employment to youth in South Africa and figures have shown that the youth is the most affected and unemployed. 

1.3.3. Initiatives embarked upon-successes and failures. 

Very key projects embarked upon during the financial year were the women cooperative project which was funded for R1.5m. The second project 

was the call centre whose objective for the year was to sign memorandum of understanding as well as ensuring that leasing process of the building 

is finalised as per the MOU. The other key project was to fast track a process of completing the functionality of the disaster management centre. 

 

The outputs of the call centre as against planned deliverables are unsatisfactory given the project output at the end of the financial year. One of the 

other aspects which we have failed to assert was to show administrative leadership on most of the projects that we implemented, hence the 

deliverables were far below the planned outputs. This could be attributed to the fact that performance and contract management were not 

implemented to projects as well. 
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CHAPTER 2 

GOVERNANCE 
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2.1. Governance structures 

The municipality is governed by the political, executive and administrative components headed by the Speaker, Executive Mayor and the Municipal 

Manager respectively. The Executive Mayor becomes the chairperson of a committee she has established called mayoral committee. This committee is 

composed of political heads of departments in the municipality. Each political head serves as a chairperson of a portfolio committee established to deal 

with departmental issues of importance that require some interventions either at mayoral or council level. The Speaker oversees the operations of council 

including established committees dealing with council work. Among these committees were the oversight committee on the annual report. 

The Municipal Manager is the accounting officer of the municipality responsible for financial management, ensuring that relevant qualified incumbents to 

advertised positions in the municipality are employed in order to further the work of council. She was responsible for general administration of staff day to 

day activities both in terms of implementing of implementing council agenda as well as reporting of progress achieved. 

2.2. Intergovernmental Relations structures 

 Intergovernmental Relations 

One of the best methods to save on scarce resources calls for sharing of ideas and planning by acknowledging that the customer is one. As a district, 

we are an integral player in an environment that first includes the provincial as well as the local spheres. At a political level, our leadership reports 

to structures established at provincial level. All information required at that level, is submitted by the executive mayor. The provincial forum where 

political leadership plays a pivotal role specifically refers to structures such as the premier’s coordinating forum (PCF) as well as the member of 

executive council on local government affairs (MECLOGA). Other forum where we played a role are the provincial forum for CFOs, The energy 

forum, water forum, the provincial IDP forum.  

 

The main activities of these forums are to align provincial service delivery goals and ensure that planning eventuates into a coordinated and 

common outcome. 
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2.3. Public accountability and Participation 

We provide information to the public via our website. All the legislated information that needs to be posted on the website, we ensure that it gets 

posted. The second form of means of information publication is the use of media. This took the forms of newspaper articles at the local, regional 

and national levels. 

 

Another form by which we are held accountable is through the ward meetings which we call during specific programme implementation. Some of 

the specific forums which we convene relate to the IDP and budget forum, policy specific meetings where we discuss policy implications to the 

community. 

Apart from our own initiatives to ensure that community gets information, there are provincial forums where our information is disseminated as 

well. The provincial public accounts committee is one such a forum where the public gets to know specific information pertaining to quality of 

oversight from elected leadership in our region. 

 

Existing legislation requires us to establish intergovernmental relations structures that monitor programmes and report as required. We have had 

the monitoring and evaluation forum in our district as part of ensuring that progress of programmes is reported correctly. The next forum 

established through the IGR Act is the technical IGR which is mainly composed of accounting officers of our municipalities as well as those of 

provincial institutions. 

 

The third composition is the district coordinating forum which is composed of executive mayors and mayors in the district. Information that gets 

discussed is submitted to the province where the member of the executive committee responsible for cooperative governance uses the information 

as required for purposes of consolidating and reporting on the extent of healthiness of local government. 
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Other strategies used for communicating specific information are the mayoral imbizos, mayoral achievement awards, summits and community 

campaigns of specific social or financial matters. Much of the imbizo meetings related to the discussion of IDP and budget where communities get 

invited to make inputs regarding plans that they need implemented in respective localities. We had one mayoral achievement award in the last 

financial year where the area of acknowledgement was the specific that women play in society and the challenges that other social partners and 

players must assist to unblock for ensuring that we improve economic landscape that affect women. 

 

Summits on the other hand solicit inputs from stakeholders on way forward around specific issues. We have used this platform during the financial 

to specific address youth issues and their role in curving an alternative economic future of the region without mining priorities. As a two way 

approach, the municipality also listened to challenges that youth in general get from interaction with institutions of government and how 

leadership could intervene to be make the region a better area. 

 

 IDP Participation and Alignment 

The understanding with regards to IDP formulation is that officials will always serve as reference points in that they have technical capacity to 

develop and review this document and thus advise us as to how we should incorporate physical environment aspects into our planning. In addition, 

this advice comes at a time when we know that we plan for a five year period. The contents of the IDP should be for that period whilst keeping in 

mind that some of its aspects should indeed be revised for the same document to be relevant. In this instance, participation should be informed by 

future planning. 

 

On a horizontal level, our alignment must be informed by the provincial growth and development strategy as well as the provincial spatial 

development frameworks. Our document should show a provincial character narrowed down at a district level. Similarly, the provincial planning 
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documents should relevant find expression in our district plans. This will not only show alignment. It would work towards pushing away silo 

planning mentality and consistently narrow down divergent and anti-synchronised planning. 

 

Community is therefore key when the above playing field had been levelled so that participants understand both their roles, not only in so far as the 

district product, but as well in so far as aligned documents and projects are concerned. In the end public participation needs to be a well thought 

out process intentioned on getting maximum participation with a well-thought advance output from the process. In order to avoid mere 

conformation to the required process of representation, municipality should bend backward and solicit high calibre participants in order to get 

quality inputs. A well-rounded public participation is where enlightened stakeholders pursue an aligned output (goal) in diversified and differentially 

endowed physical environments. Essentially, as well we plan for improved service delivery, we should take into account that places differ in terms 

of natural endowments. No one plan fits into all the environments but alignment is necessary to further service delivery. 

 

2.4. Corporate Governance 

 Risk Management 

The municipality has struggled to establish processes to ensure that programmes are implemented with a risk environment being 

controlled. This is because of the resources and skills not available to implemented risk processes. Lack of the risk process being 

implemented exposes the municipality to risk prone environment.  

The municipality has employed risk manager and assistant risk officer in order to establish the process and ensure that we are on course to 

establish a complete risk management environment with requisite risk plan and policy within which environment all should comply. 

 

 Anti-corruption and fraud 

We have developed the anti-corruption as well as the fraud prevention policies in order to increase awareness among all staff members of 

the obligations.  
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 Supply Chain Management 

We have a policy that controls acquisition and demand management. All external procurements must be subjected to a process within the 

municipality. In the case of requests below thirty thousand rands, we know that there must be telephonic requests for quotations as well as 

amounts below two hundred thousand rands. The information is provided to the public as required by legislation. Its principles allow for a 

fair, transparent, competitive, cost effective and equitable system for procuring of goods and services. It also offers just process in the 

selection of contractors in the procurement of goods and services. 

 

The same policy requires that specific policies are established to fast track the process. The specific, evaluation and adjudication policies are 

required and have been established.  

 

 Websites 

The need for a functional website is important as it plays a role in disseminating information. A provincially coordinated website was 

established in the financial year. The purpose of the website is to ensure that we brand the municipality in such a way that the process is 

used to update provincial information.  

 

 Public Satisfaction on Municipal Services 

Although we had sporadic unrest throughout the local municipalities of Nala, Matjhabeng and Masilonyana Local Municipalities, there is 

however no tested proof that those were all related to service delivery. However, we need as a district, to conduct service delivery survey 

to corroborate occasions on the ground. We need to provide valid response to ascertain rumours about there being service delivery 

protest. It must be acknowledged though from the outset, without providing proof to the contrary, that the pace at which service delivery is 
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implemented is worrisome. The roll-over grant amounts reflected in annual financial statements remain unjustifiable piece of the jigsaw 

puzzle.  

 

We need to take a resolution that repels all contestations about our behaviour in the midst of meagre service delivery mileage. If the 

protests were conducted to show distaste on the mandate given to municipalities and such outputs contested against, then that makes for 

humble apology on the part of officials. Therefore, other than the district municipality conducting surveys on service delivery, local 

municipalities must also give a strategy going forward as to how they intend to quell incidences of violent nature in the prospect that these 

are linked to service delivery. One of the strategies is to allow both horizontal and vertical forms of communications to prevail even before 

these events take place. 

 

 All municipal oversight committees 

We have a functional oversight committee system that functions well given our resourcefulness and capacity. Council is the main oversight 

committee that ensure that all processes comply with set laws and policies. The mayoral committee was established to provide oversight 

administration with members ensuring that programmes get implemented. The administrative oversight ensures that physical 

implementation and accountability is carried out. 

 

Oversight is carried out by all political parties represented in council. We have the following parties which form our municipal council: ANC, 

DA, FF+ and Cope. All the parties ensure that all programmes are implemented for the benefit of their constituencies. The oversight 

committee established particularly to ascertain correctness of information in the draft annual report is one such committee that ensures 

there is compliance to applicable laws. Other committees that assist council in the provision of oversight are the audit committee, ad hoc 

committee on annual report, rules committee. In respect to the mayoral committee oversight, we have portfolio committees from each 
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respective department in the municipal administration, the budget and IDP steering committee as well as the representative forum. All the 

committees provide input to Executive Mayor to provide required oversight.  



 

Draft annual report 2012-13                                                                                                      Page 18 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

CHAPTER 3 

SERVICE DELIVERY PERFORMANCE 
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3.1. LDM Performance report for 2012/13 

National 
KPA 2 

Municipal 
Strategic 
Focus Area 

Strategic 
Objective 

Key Performance 
Indicator 

Annual target Levels of achievements Deviation and 
reason for 
deviation 

Programme for 2013/14 Annual targets 

  

Lo
ca

l E
co

no
m

ic 
De

ve
lop

m
en

t 

 Poverty  
        
alleviatio
n 

Employ 
identified 
indigents in 
Matjhabeng 
through 
community 
works 
programme 

Number of 
indigent 
members 
absorbed 
through CWP 

50 21 
Greening of parks  and 
cemeteries in Kutlwanong and 
Meloding 

29 
Insufficient 
funding was the 
cause of low 
employment 
number. 

Poverty alleviation 50 indigents 
employed 

 Create job 
opportunities 
through 
establishment of 
a coffin 
manufacturing 
project. 

Number of jobs 
created through 
coffin 
manufacturing 
project. 

10 13 
Extra three members were 
employed in the cooperative. 

0 - - 

Cooperati
ves  
       
Developm
ent 

Retrain existing 
cooperative 
workers on 
essential basic 
survival skills in 

Number of the 
unemployed 
people provided 
with survival 
skills 

20 20+ 
Two sets of meetings were 
convened in the municipality 
with a view of providing more 
capacity to the cooperative 

0 Mentor existing 
cooperatives to 
sustain their 
initiatives. 

5 
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the current 
financial year. 

workers during the financial 
year. 
 

Establish 5 new 
cooperatives in 
all the five local 
municipalities 

Number of 
newly 
established 
cooperatives. 

2 1 
We facilitated the establishment 
of the coffin manufacturing 
cooperative 

1 
Lack of funds 

- - 

Create branding 
materials for all 
cooperatives. 

Number of 
cooperatives 
branded. 

5 0 5 
There was no 
funding to brand 
the cooperatives 
in local 
municipalities 

- - 

Strengthen 
stakeholder 
collaboration on 
cooperative 
development. 

Number of 
collaborative 
meetings 

2 4 
 Meetings were convened in 
collaboration with other 
stakeholders.. 

0 - - 

Provide funding 
assistance to 
Tlamahano 
Vegetable 
Cooperative to 
buy inputs for 
their 
cooperative. 

Amount spent R21,000 0 There was more 
than R21,000 
used for 
purchasing tools 
to assist the 
cooperative. 

- - 
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Economic  
        
Developm
ent 

Establish a call 
centre in 
Matjhabeng 

Signed MOU 1 1 
The MOU has been signed 
between Letltlo Ranyathole and 
Associate and Lejweleputswa 
District Municipality. 
The Service Provider continued 
with the applications for 
sourcing of funding for the Call 
centre from different Institutions 
for funding. Identified figures for 
the Operation of the total Call 
Centre costs for the establishment 
and for the first year operation of 
the incubator centre is R 9 002 
071.00.this is broken down into 
Equipment (R 2 122 500.00) 
Operating expenditure costs for 
the year (R 5 399 571.00) and 
the refurbishment costs of (R 1 
500 000.00.A formal request was 
submitted to Harmony on the 
17th October, 2012 to amplify the 
finalization of the MOU and lease 
agreement. 

0 Call centre 10 

 Assess 
performance of 

Number of jobs 
created through 

25 0 25 - - 
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municipal LED 
programme 
throughout the 
district. 

existing SMMEs. 

Tourism 
Developm
ent 

Provide 
branding 
brochures of 
existing tourism 
facilities in the 
region. 

Amount spent 
on producing 
2500 copies. 

130 171 2500 copies 
These copies were procured in 
May  

0 - - 

Heritage 
Festival 

Provide 
platform for 
local and 
national artists 
with a view of 
confirming 
existence of our 
diverse cultural 
practices. 

Number of 
different music 
genres listed in 
the music line-
up. 

1 1 0 Provide a platform to 
local and national 
artists with a view of 
confirming existence 
of our diverse cultural 
practices 

1 

80s 
Festival 

Provide a 
platform to 
local and 
national artists 
with a view of 
confirming 
existence of our 

Number of local 
amateur artists 
who 
participated. 

1 1 0 - - 
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cultural 
practices. 

Phakisa 
Festival 

Provide a 
platform to 
local and 
national artists 
with a view of 
confirming 
existence of our 
cultural 
practices. 

Number of local 
amateur artists 
who 
participated. 

1 1 0 - - 
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National 
KPA 3 

Municipal 
Strategic Focus 
Area 

Strategic 
Objective 

Key 
Performance 
Indicator 

Annual 
target 

Levels of achievements Deviation and 
reason for 
deviation 

Programme for 
2013/14 

Annual targets 

M
un

ici
pa

l T
ra

ns
fo

rm
ati

on
 an

d 
In

sti
tu

tio
na

l D
ev

elo
pm

en
t 

Skills 
Development 

Support 
indigent 
students with 
bursaries to 
register and 
attend tertiary 
institutions in 
pursuit of post 
matric 
qualifications in 
the areas of 
mining, IT etc. 

Number of 
bursaries 
issued per 
annum 

10 10+ 
 
The following 
employees were 
awarded bursaries to 
study the last 
financial year in the 
following areas 
during the period 
under review: 
Monica Moroeng-
Bcom; M Tloome-
HR; Diao Ramabitsa- 
MBA, K Njobe- MBL; 
Gladys Makeka- 
Office Management 
& Technology. 
Money for the 
current financial 
year has not yet been 
paid for their 
continued studying 
and payment is 

0 Support indigent 
students with 
bursaries to register 
and attend tertiary 
institutions in 
pursuit of post 
matric qualifications 
in the areas of 
mining, IT etc. 

10 
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dependent on 
employees having 
passed their year 
courses. The amount 
that has been 
budgeted for in the 
current financial 
year is R825, 000 
and no cent has yet 
been disbursed.  
Report on 
disbursement is due 
in the third quarter 
as reflected in the 
Municipal SDBIP.  
 
 

 To give 
learnership to 
students at 
tertiary 
institutions to 
complete their 
qualifications. 

Number of 
learners 
completing 
the 
learnership 
programme.  

25 0 
The money that was 
budgeted for 
learnership was 
scheduled for 
logistics including 
catering and 
refreshments 

25 
There was no 
funding set for 
the learnership 
programme. 
There was only 
R100,000 set 
aside for 
logistics such as 

To give learnership 
to students at tertiary 
institutions to 
complete their 
qualifications. 

10 
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catering. 
Workplace 
Skills Plan 

To provide 
financial 
assistance to 
staff members 
to upgrade their 
skills. 

Number of 
staff 
members 
undertaking 
short courses 
to upgrade 
their skills. 

10 16 
Another set of staff 
members assisted 
were S August : 
Integrated Strategy, 
budgeting and 
reporting 
programme, P 
Radebe: NICTP 
Course  (Oct & Dec);  
S Segalo: MPLS 
Course;   S Mokoena: 
IMPSA; K Mqeke: 
Provox; M Sethunya: 
Driving School; M 
Ramatsebe and C 
Damoyi: Secretarial 
Course; K Njobe and 
A Mashinini: Supply 
Chain Training; B 
Rampai and M 
Tloome: Report 
Writing Skills; S Vas: 
Fleet Management; P 
Melato: Systems 

+6 
 

To provide financial 
assistance to staff 
members to upgrade 
their skills. 

10 
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Administartor, P. 
Pitso, T. Molete and 
S. Molepo , Financial 
statements. 
 
 

Employee 
Wellness 
Programme 

Afford staff an 
opportunity to 
conduct 
quarterly 
physical 
training to 
improve their 
physical shape. 

Number of 
quarterly 
physical 
work outs 
conducted 

4 4 
A wellness 
programme, 
covering a number 
of employee wellness 
programmes for the 
2012/2013 financial 
year was approved 
by the Portfolio 
Committee. 
A spiritual wellness 
program was 
conducted over 16 & 
17 October 2012 
and 68 staff 
members attended.    
A    Fun Run/Walk 
was held on 
02.November.2012 
and 68 staff 

0 Afford staff an 
opportunity to 
conduct quarterly 
physical training to 
improve their 
physical shape. 

4 
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members 
participated.       
An Emotional 
Intelligence 
workshop and Job 
Satisfaction Survey 
were held on 06 and 
07 November 2011. 

Employment 
Equity Plan 

Employ 
new/existing 
qualifying 
females as 
members of 
senior 
municipal 
management. 

Number of 
newly/existi
ng 
qualifying 
employees 
employed to 
senior 
positions. 

2 2 
Council has 
approved 
employment of a 
female Municipal 
Manager with effect 
from the 3rd June 
2013. 
There was an 
internal female 
placement process 
where female Risk 
Manager was 
appointed. 
 

0 Employ new/existing 
qualifying females as 
members of senior 
municipal 
management. 

2 

Performance 
Information 

Cascade a 
performance 
culture to 

Number of 
staff 
involved in 

5 5 
All Senior Managers 
both on contract and 

0 Cascade a 
performance culture 
to include lower 

20 
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include lower 
level staff 
members in the 
municipality. 

performance 
management 
set up. 

acting have signed 
performance 
agreements for 
2012/13. 
The second set was 
to ensure that 
assessments are 
conducted but none 
was achieved on this 
for the year. 

level staff members 
in the municipality. 

Disciplinary 
cases 

Ensure timeous 
resolution of all 
disciplinary 
cases as they 
happen. 

Number of 
cases 
resolved 
within 
required 
time frame 
per year 

100% 
of all 
cases 
resolve
d 
within 
requir
e time 
frame 

0 
 

0 
No disciplinary 
case was 
attended.  

Ensure timeous 
resolution of all 
disciplinary cases as 
they happen. 

100% 

Internal audit Conduct 
quarterly 
internal audit to 
ensure 
improvement of 
service delivery. 

Number of 
quarterly 
internal 
audits 
conducted 
per annum 

4 2 
Two of the four 
quarterly reports 
were compiled. 
 
Other activities 
included audit 

2 
No risk 
assessment was 
conducted. 

Conduct quarterly 
internal audit to 
ensure improvement 
of service delivery. 

4 



 

Draft annual report 2012-13                                                                                                      Page 30 
 

committee having 
four audit committee 
meetings which 
convened in July, 
August, October and 
December 2012. It is 
expected that there 
should be a meeting 
per quarter. The 
meeting of July 2012 
was called because 
the committee could 
not meet in July 
2012 as there were 
commitments from 
among members. 
The August 2012 
meeting was called 
to address the 
annual financial 
statements. Both the 
internal audit unit 
and the audit 
committee are fully 
functional with 
confirmation of 
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appointments of 
Assistant internal 
auditors in 
September 2012. 
 

Risk 
Management 

Conduct 
quarterly risk 
assessments on 
identified 
municipal 
programmes as 
per the risk 
audit plan. 

Number of 
quarterly 
risk 
assessments 
conducted 

4 0 
Although there was 
no risk assessment 
conducted during 
the year, risk items 
were conducted 
during the audit 
committee meetings. 
 

4 
No risk 
assessments 
were conducted 
because there 
was no risk 
committee 
established. 

Conduct quarterly 
risk assessments on 
identified municipal 
programmes as per 
the risk audit plan. 

4 
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National 
KPA 5 

Municipal 
Strategic 
Focus Area 

Strategic 
Objective 

Key 
Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline Annual  
Target 

Levels of achievements Deviation and 
reason for 
deviation 

Programme for 
2013/14 

Annual targets 

M
un

ici
pa

l F
in

an
cia

l V
iab

ili
ty 

an
d M

an
ag

em
en

t 

Clean 
audit 

Achieve a 
clean audit 
by 2014. 

% reduction 
of matters of 
emphasis by 
the AG. 

0 100% 
reduction 
of matters 
of 
emphasis. 

Still pending Not yet available Achieve a clean 
audit by 2014 

100% reduction 
of matters of 
emphasis. 

Supply 
Chain 
Managem
ent 

Comply 
with 
Supply 
Chain 
policy on 
finalising 
quotations 

% 
improvemen
t in finalising 
payment of 
all 
quotations 
within 14 
days. 

New 
project 

100% 
within 14 
days. 

100 % None Comply with 
supply chain 
policy on 
finalising 
payments 

All quotations 
finalised within 
14 days 

Comply 
with 
Supply 
Chain 
policy on 
finalising 
tenders 

% 
improvemen
t in finalising 
all tenders 
within 30 
days. 

New 
project 

100% 
within 30 
days 

84% 
5 of the 6 were finalised 
within 30 days 

46% 
The committees 
could not sit 
within the 
planned dates. 

Comply with 
supply chain 
policy on 
finalising 
tenders 

All tenders 
finalised within 
60 days 

Convene 
all tender 

Number of 
tender 

New 
project 

As per 
tender 

6 
6 specification committee 

0 Convene all 
tender 

Dependent on 
tenders 
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committees 
to ensure 
compliance 
with 
supply 
chain 
policy. 

specification 
committee 
meetings 
convened. 

adverts meetings were convened committees to 
ensure 
compliance 
with the supply 
chain policy. 

advertised 

Number of 
tender 
evaluation 
committee 
meetings 
convened. 

New 
project 

As per 
tender 
adverts 

6 
Evaluation committee 
meetings were convened 

0 Dependent on 
tenders 
advertised 

Number of 
tender 
adjudication 
committee 
meetings 
convened. 

New 
project 

As per 
tender 
adverts 

6  
Adjudication committee 
meetings were convened 

0 Dependent on 
tenders 
advertised 

Asset 
Register 

Update 
asset 
register on 
a quarterly 
basis in 
line with 
municipal 
procureme
nt. 
 

Number of 
updates done 
with assets 
purchased. 

- 4 4 
4 quarterly asset updates 

0 Update asset 
register on a 
quarterly basis 
in line with 
municipal 
procurement 

4 
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Financial 
reports 

Submit 
reports in 
line with 
Municipal 
Finance 
Manageme
nt Act and 
regulations. 

Number of 
reports 
submitted 
within the 
required 
time frame. 

14 14 14 
All reports have been 
submitted 

0 Submit reports 
in line with 
Municipal 
Finance 
Management 
Act and 
regulations. 

14 

Annual 
Financial 
Statement
s 

Compile 
and submit 
a draft 
GRAP 
compliant 
annual 
financial 
statement 
in line with 
MFMA. 

Date when 
the draft AFS 
gets 
submitted to 
AG. 

GRAP 
compliant 
AFS 

30August 
2013 

Pending Pending Compile and 
submit a draft 
GRAP compliant 
annual financial 
statement in 
line with 
MFMA. 

 
1 

Quality of a 
draft AFS 
compiled 
and 
submitted. 

GRAP 
compliant 
AFS 

1 GRAP 
compliant 
AFS 

Pending Pending 1 

OPEX 
spending 

Ensure 
implement
ation of 
prioritised 
OPEX 
items. 
 

% 
improvemen
t all adopted 
OPEX items. 

New 
project 

% 
improve
ment of 
all 
adopted 
OPEX 
items 

100% 0 Ensure 
implementation 
of prioritised 
OPEX items. 

All adopted 
OPEX items 

CAPEX Ensure % New 100% 100% 0 Ensure All adopted 
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spending implement
ation of 
prioritised 
CAPEX 
items. 
 

improvemen
t of all 
adopted 
CAPEX items. 

project improve
ment 

implementation 
of prioritised 
CAPEX items. 

CAPEX items 
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National 
KPA 6 

Municipal 
Strategic 
Focus Area 

Strategic 
Objective 

Key 
Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline Annual target Levels of achievements Deviation and reason 
for deviation 

Programme for 
2013/14 

Annual targets 

Sa
fet

y a
nd

 Se
cu

rit
y 

Potable 
water 

Facilitate 
provision 
of safe 
drinking 
water 
throughout 
the district. 

Number of 
non-
compliant 
water sources 
sampled. 

55 60 93 
A total of 41 water 
sources were sampled for 
the period. The 
department is still 
waiting for contracting of 
a service provider who 
will assist with analysing 
of the water sampled.  
 
These sources of water 
were sampled during two 
periods in the term; about 
37 of all water samples 
were taken during 
November 2012. The 
second set was completed 
on the 4th December 
2012. 
 
15 more samples were 
taken in the second half 
of the financial year and 

+33 
33 non-compliant 
sources were 
revisited and 
eventually 
complied. 
 

Facilitate provision 
of safe drinking 
water throughout 
the district. 

60 
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all complied with 
drinking water 
conditions. 
 

% 
improvement 
on non-
compliant 
water sources. 

New 
project 

100% 100% 
33 non-compliant 
sources were revisited 
and eventually complied. 

None - - 

Food 
selling 
outlets 
inspections 

Ensure that 
all food 
selling 
outlets 
comply 
with 
required 
legislation 
each year 

Number of 
improving 
food selling 
outlets 

1000 1000 415 
79 of all food selling 
outlets were inspected 
during the first quarter of 
the term. 91 inspections 
were conducted during 
the second quarter of the 
term. Of the 170 samples 
taken, 54 of them 
complied and were issued 
with certificates of 
acceptability. 
Subsequently, 336 
inspections were 
executed to assess 
compliance. 
136 outlets complied and 

585 
Lack of 
Environmental 
Personnel 
National ratio 1:15 
000. Current ratio 
1:67 000 

Ensure that all food 
selling outlets 
comply with 
required legislation 
each year 

500 
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were issued with CoAs. 
 

 
 
Photos taken during the food selling outlet visits: 
 
 
 
 

                                                                                                   
 
Diagram : Officials visiting food selling outlets within the district                  
 
 
 
 
Environme
ntal 
Protection 

Coordinate 
conducting 
of 

Number of 
feasibility 
studies 

1 2 2 
There were two EIAs 
conducted in the area 

0 
 

- - 
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and 
awareness 

feasibility 
studies to 
ensure that 
environme
ntal safety 
is 
guaranteed
. 

conducted both in Hennenman and 
Virginia 

Number of 
environmental 
awareness 
campaigns 
conducted 

3 4 4 
Most of the campaigns 
were held in schools. 
Others were held during 
visits to food selling 
outlets throughout the 
district. 

0 Conduct 
environmental 
safety awareness 
campaigns. 

4 

 
 
 

 
 

                       Diagram: One of the environmental health awareness campaigns held at a school 
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Disaster 
Manageme
nt 

Increase 
disaster 
manageme
nt 
awareness 
throughout 
the district. 

Number of 
disaster 
awareness 
campaigns 
held. 

2 2 2 
Crime prevention 
awareness campaign was 
held in December 2012 
in coordination with the 
police. 
The second was 
educational campaign 
was held in schools 
throughout the district. 

0 Increase disaster 
management 
awareness 
throughout the 
district. 

2 

Coordinate 
all disasters 
for 
purposes of 
providing 
needed 
assistance 

Number of 
disasters 
positively 
responded to 
for the term. 

4 As per 
occurrence 

4 
 House on fire in 

Orange Grove-
Thabong 

 39 houses blown 
away by wind in 
Meloding-
Virginia. 

 Shack fire in a 
farm in 
Dealesville which 
claimed 4 lives. 

0 Coordinate all 
disasters for 
purposes of 
providing needed 
assistance 

As per 
occurrence 



 

Draft annual report 2012-13                                                                                                      Page 41 
 

 Shack fire in 
Albany Park in 
Virginia which 
claimed 1 life. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 

      
 
House Fire Orange Groove Thabong-Incident happened twice                                                                              Donating Salvage screens to cover roofs in Meloding.Roofs of 39 houses were blown off  

Sports, 
Recreation, 
Arts and 
Culture 

Coordinate 
all youth 
Developme
nt 
programm

Number of 
events 
successfully 
coordinated 

4 4 4 
Catering, decoration, 
sound, photography and 
video recording and 
artists were arranged for 

0 Coordinate all sporting 
events in the district. 

4 
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es in the 
district. 

youth invited to watch 
the State of the Nation 
Address on the 14 
February 2013 
----------------------
------------------- 
Youth Development 
Officers and MMC for 
Youth Development met 
NARYSEC on short listing 
for employment 
purposes. 
----------------------
------------------- 
Transport was arranged 
for young women 
attending young women 
dialogue in Bloemfontein. 
----------------------
------------------ 
Agricultural Youth 
Summit was held in 
Kingdom Ministries in 
April 
----------------------
------------------- 
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Lejweleputswa District 
Youth Dialogue where 
learners were debating 
on matters affecting 
youth. 

 
 
 
 

        
Lejweleputswa Agricultural Youth Summit 24 April 2013                      Contestants during Lejweleputswa District Youth Dialogue held at JC Motumi School     Audience during Lejweleputswa District Youth Dialogue 

 
 
 

 

Coordinate 
OR Tambo 
Games 
programm

Number of 
events 
successfully 
coordinated 

1 1  1 0 Coordinate OR 
Tambo Games 
programme in the 
district. 

1  
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e in the 
district. 
Coordinate 
all 
municipal 
sports in 
the 
municipalit
y. 

Number of 
events 
successfully 
coordinated 

1 1 1 0 
Invitational 
game s was 
held in 
Welkom. 
Team from 
Klerksdorp 
and 
Matjhabeng 
Municipality 
were invited 
to 
participate. 

Coordinate all 
municipal sports in 
the municipality. 

1 

Coordinate 
all arts and 
culture 
related 
activities in 
the district 

Number of 
arts and 
culture 
activities 
successfully 
coordinated 

4 4 0 4 
The 
challenge 
was the 
placement of 
people from 
Social 
Services to 
Corporate 
Services. 

Coordinate all arts 
and culture related 
activities in the 
district 

4 

 Disaster To respond Number of - - 3  0 To respond - 
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Relief Fund timeously 
to all 
disaster 
events 
throughout 
the district. 

disasters 
successfully 
responded to. 

3 shack fire incidents were attended to: 
Doring farm shack fireon the 6th June 
2013 
Stand no.14159 in Albany informal 
settlement in Virginia on the 17 June 
2013 
Stand no.12603, Moagi Street in 
Thabong which took place on the 25 
June 2013 

timeously to all 
disaster events 
throughout the 
district. 

 

Disaster 
Relief 
awareness 

To conduct 
disaster 
relief 
awareness 
throughout 
the district. 

Number of 
disaster 
awareness 
campaigns 
conducted. 

4 4 4 
 Advisory forum meeting on the 23 

January 2013 
 Inspected and audited fire 

equipment and personnel on the 21 
February 2013 in Masilonyana 
Local Municipality 

 Attended the fire state umbrella 
body on fire protection associations 
meeting in Bloemfontein on the 20 
February 2013 

 Visited Nala and Tswelopele Local 
Municipalities to inspect and audit 
fire equipment and personnel on 
the 25 February 2013.  

0 To conduct disaster 
relief awareness 
throughout the 
district. 

- 
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National 
KPA 5 

Municipal 
Strategic Focus 
Area 

Strategic 
Objective 

Key 
Performance 
Indicator 

Baseline Annual 
target 

Levels of achievements Deviation and reason 
for deviation 

Programme for 
2013/14 

Annual targets 

Go
od

 G
ov

er
na

nc
e a

nd
 Pu

bl
ic 

Pa
rti

cip
ati

on
 

IDP Ensure 
participation of 
all stakeholders 
as per the 
municipality’s 
public 
participation 
policy. 

Number of 
stakeholder 
meetings held 
for IDP. 

4 4 4 
IDP Managers’ Forum 
IDP Representative 
Forum 
IDP Steering Committee 
IDP Adverts in the Free 
State Sun 

0 Ensure 
participation of all 
stakeholders as per 
the municipality’s 
public 
participation 
policy. 

4 

Moral 
Regeneration 

To improve 
inter-
generational 
respect 

Number of 
awareness 
campaigns 
conducted 

4 4 4 
 

 District 
Committee on 
Moral 
Regeneration 
attended a 
provincial moral 
regeneration 
launch 8 July 
2012. 

 Attended a 
national Moral 
Regeneration 

0 To improve inter-
generational 
respect 

4 
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launch on the 29 
July 2012 in 
Boksburg.  

 LDM MRM 
Forum attended 
meeting in 
Hertzogville on 
the 25 August 
2012. 

 Moral 
Regeneration 
public meeting-
April 2013 

 
 

District Aids 
Council 

To coordinate 
meetings of a 
District Aids 
Council 

Number of 
DAC meetings 
held 

- 2 3 
 In July 2012 the 

District Aids 
Council 
members 
attended 
stakeholders in 
QwaQwa. 

 On the 25 July 
2012 members 
of DAC attended 

+1  
 

To coordinate 
meetings of a 
District Aids 
Council 

2 
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the launch of 
Tokologo Aids 
council 

 District Aids 
council was held 
on the 16 May 
2013.  

 
HIV & AIDS To coordinate 

HIV/AIDS 
programmes 
throughout the 
district. 

Number of 
HIV/AIDS 
programmes 
coordinated. 

- 2 1 
 On the 6 

September 2012 
a workshop was 
held near 
Kroonstad 

1 
 Wanted to 

concentrate 
more on 
District 
Aids 
council. 

To coordinate 
HIV/AIDS 
programmes 
throughout the 
district 

2 

Gender, 
Disability and 
the Elderly 

To conduct 
targeted 
awareness 
campaigns on 
the elderly, 
disabled and 
women. 

Number of 
targeted 
awareness 
campaigns 
conducted. 

4 2 2  
 On the 4th of 

August 2012 
transport was 
arranged for 
Lejweleputswa 
women attending 
the Memorial 
Lecture of Me 
Charlotte 
Maxeke that was 

0 To conduct 
targeted awareness 
campaigns on the 
elderly, disabled 
and women. 

2 
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addressed by 
State President in 
Bloemfontein. 

 On the 26 
August 2012 
Lejweleputwsa 
Soccer Legends 
were assisted 
with transport to 
attend 
tournament in 
Wesselbron.  

Children’s 
Programme 

To conduct 
targeted 
awareness 
campaigns on 
children’s 
programmes. 

Number of 
targeted 
awareness 
campaigns 
conducted. 

New 
project 

2 1 
Children from different 
crèches were given toys 
and entertained on the 
6th June 2013 in Central 
Park-Welkom. 

1 
 

To conduct 
targeted awareness 
campaigns on 
children’s 
programmes. 

2 
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Above: Acting Executive Mayor Cllr. X. Toki addressing children during children’s Week Programme at Central Park on the 6th June 2013  
IGR Ensure 

implementation 
of a single 
window of 
coordination in 
the district. 

Number of 
monitoring 
and 
evaluation 
meetings held. 

4 4 3 1 
The meeting could 
not sit as planned 
because the forum 
expected direction 
from the technical 
forum 

Number of 
monitoring and 
evaluation 
meetings held. 

4 

Number of 
technical 
district 
coordinating 
forum 
meetings held. 

4 4 2 2 
Meetings were not 
convened as a 
result of changes in 
management at a 
district level. 

Number of 
technical district 
coordinating 
forum meetings 
held. 

4 

Number of 
political 

4 4 0 4 
 

Number of 
political district 

4 
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district 
coordinating 
forum 
meetings held. 

coordinating 
forum meetings 
held. 

% of 
successful 
interventions 
made to local 
municipalities 
as a result of 
requests 
made. 

3 3 3 
Developed three draft 
LED strategies for Nala, 
Tswelopele and Tokologo 
Local Municipalities. 

0 
 

Number of 
successful 
interventions made 
to local 
municipalities as a 
result of requests 
made. 

3 

Policy 
Development 

Review/develop 
policies that 
are a priority to 
the 
municipality. 

Number of 
new policies 
developed 
throughout 
the term. 

3 3 4 
Code of ethics 
Internal audit policy 
Gift policy 
Fraud prevention policy 

+1 Develop policies 
that are a priority 
to the municipality. 

2 

Number of 
policies 
revised 
throughout 
the term. 

0 2 2 
HR Policy 
Conditions of 
employment  

0 - - 

Branding Ensure 
continued 
marketing of 
our 

Number of 
branding 
materials 
developed for 

4 4 4 
Governance magazine 
Global Africa Network 
Tourism brochures 

0 Ensure continued 
marketing of our 
municipality 
through 
development of 

1 
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municipality 
through 
development of 
branding 
materials. 

distribution. Banners 
 

branding materials. 

 Communication To disseminate 
information on 
all municipal 
service delivery 
programmes 

Number of 
occasions 
service 
delivery 
information 
was 
disseminated 

 2 2 
Two newspaper articles 
in Free State Sun and 
Vista 

0 To disseminate 
information on all 
municipal service 
delivery 
programmes 

4 
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3.2. LDA Performance Information for 2012/13 

3.2.1. Chairperson’s Statement 

 

The current Board of the Agency was appointed for an interim period of six months at the end of August 2009, and then for a three-year term until January 2013. 

 

The mandate of the Board is to ensure that the institutional foundations of the LDA are put in place.  Secondly, it has to make sure that tangible progress is made 

on projects and initiatives that will stimulate local economic development in Lejweleputswa. 

 

With regards the first part of the mandate, we can report progress.  During the 2010-2012 financial year the board appointed a Chief Executive Officer, 

approved an organizational structure and the employment of a core staff, moved to its own offices and began to put in place policies and procedures for the 

effective operations of the Agency.  The intention is to build an Economic Development Agency that is professional, developmental and contribute towards 

confidence in public institutions. 

 

Although the LDA received an unqualified audited report, with irregular or unauthorized expenditure, the Auditor-General points to a number of remaining 

weaknesses.  These include such matters as the internal audit function, the absence of a risk management strategy, a weak performance management system 

and the need for continuous improvements in our financial management system.  Addressing these matters diligently will help us move towards a clean audit, 

which is a task of this Board during our term of office. 

 

We can also report progress on the second part of our mandate.  The Board and staff reviewed and engaged with the Department of Trade and Industry’s 

Khulis’ Umnotho draft strategy for the Lejweleputswa district, as well as other projects and feasibility studies conducted over the year in the district. 

 

The LDA in its evolving strategy for promoting local economic development is in agreement with the priority sectors identifies by the district and local 

municipalities, business stakeholders and the Free state Growth and Development Strategy.  These include: 

 Agriculture and agro-processing 

 Mining 



 

Draft annual report 2012-13                                                                                                      Page 54 
 

 Manufacturing 

 Tourism 

 Transport 

 ICT; and the 

 Green Economy 

 

We have thus started to engage with business, entrepreneurs, private and development finance institutions around these sectors.  We are also working very 

closely with the Industrial Development Corporation (IDC), which is a co-funder of the LDA. 

These initiatives build on what was and is already being done, but the role of the LDA is to act as a catalyst for brining different stakeholders together to ensure 

faster movement on projects identified or being identified.  As an agency, we undertake to play this role in a transparent and professional manner, and with 

integrity. 

 

 

Adv. M.E Ntsoane 

Chairperson of the LDA Board 
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3.2.2. Acting Chief Executive Officer Report 

 

The Lejweleputswa Development Agency was resuscitated in 2009 to drive economic development in the Lejweleputswa District.  A proposal to 

source funding and technical assistance for the establishment of a LDA in the district was sub-mitted to the Industrial Development Corporation 

in November 2009.  Through the support of the IDC and the Lejweleputswa District Municipality we have achieved success in re-establishing the 

entity in our area and hope to continue with our efforts to bring about change in the ordinary lives of the district community, as well as continue 

the way the institution addresses and overcome challenges we encounter on a year-to-year bases. 

 

Through the Establishment Phase we have consulted consistently with our stakeholders on the IDP because we believe that as the sphere of 

Government that is closest to the people, we carry a pronounced obligation to respond directly and positively to the needs and frustrations of 

our stakeholders and communities, hence the reason why the agency was established. 

 

During the Establishment Phase we had the following objectives: 

 Promote economic development for the district, in form of creating jobs and wealth as the prime objective; 

 Ensure optimum utilization of district and local municipality assets such as land and property;  

 Create a formal link to the private sector to facilitate the establishment of Public Private Partnerships;  

 Respond to private sector preference that necessitate the creation of a separate entity for sustained and/or increased partnership and 

involvement; 

 Ensure tourism activities are promoted and prioritized as a means of stimulating local economies; 

 Reduce level of poverty in the district; 

 Ensure finance for SMME and business development;    

 Diversification of Industrial and Commercial sector in the district; and  

 Ensure Lejweleputswa District is a commercial hub. 
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By vesting developmental responsibilities for all of the above and other areas and sectors in the LDA, for the LDM and all five municipalities to 

concentrate on ensuring equitable and improved service delivery across the district. The LDA and its partners will deliver a range of projects and 

programmes aimed at creating jobs and wealth for the Lejweleputswa and its citizens. This focus sets the LDM apart from other development 

initiatives, and ensures that the LDA adds value by linking effects, integrating services to projects and programmes, and thereby achieving 

efficiencies.    

 

The key characteristics of the LDA are as follows:  

 It is the LDM’s own initiative, and remains accountable to the district and local municipalities; 

 It is the strategic-level development company, creating an environment of fast tracking decision-making and broader financial 

leverage, within which projects are planned, led, managed and implemented; 

 It will be set up as an independent or subsidiary company, joint ventures, special purpose vehicles and other structures as may be 

necessary to lead development projects and attract partners and investors;  

 It is responsive to market forces, and operates where it can make a difference, in localities and sectors where shareholders and their 

partners have a concentration of assets and expertise; 

 It is able to develop and manage assets it develops, and can also be given the responsibility to improve the return on currently under-

performing assets; 

 It is results driven, customer-focused and has a ‘user friendly’ approach; 

 It has an independent identity and self-directed work programme, accountable to its shareholders; and  

 It will apply progressive procurement principles in its operations. 

 

 

Mr. E. Lesenyelo 

Acting CEO 
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3.2.3. LDA Performance Report 

Key Performance Area: 

Good Governance and Community Participation 

 

KPA GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Key Performance Targets Status 

 

IDP Goal 

 

Key Performance Indicator 

 

Expenditure  

 

2012/13 

 

 

To improve 

performance and 

accountability of the 

Agency on an annual 

basis 

 

 

1 develop a Performance 

Management policy  

R41 040.00 1 Yes and approved by board on 

23 August 2012 

 12 monthly reports        

submitted to the board by 

CEO. 

Operational Budget 12 12 Reports approved by the 

Board 

9 monthly management 

meetings held prior to the 

board setting 

-Operational Budget 9  

 Quarterly  reports   to be 

submitted to LDM by CEO 

- 2 

 

 

12 Section 71 reports 

compiled and submitted to 

LDM. 

- 12 Approved reports submitted 

Compile an annual  

performance report 

- 1  
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KPA GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Key Performance Targets Status 

 1.CEO to sign contract for 

new offices 

2. Appoint personnel 

3. Develop the budget 

4. Source additional funds 

from IDC 

5.Ensure that audit  

committee is functional 

6. Amend Cipro documents to 

include new board members 

R11 900.00 pm 

 

R14 618.00 pm 

 

 

R4m 

 

 

R19 000.00 

 

 

R1200.00 

Operational Offices  

 

Finance Clerk Appointed 

 

 

 R1.2m was Transferred 

 

Audit committee 

meetings 

To include and remove 

board members 

Done 

 

 

Done 

 

 

 

In the process of milestone audit 

 

5 Meetings held 

 

 

In Progress 

 

Attend at least  2 IDP 

Representative Forum 

meeting of district and local 

municipalities 

-  The forums met twice in July 2012 

and May 2013 

To promote and 

enhance public 

participation  

 

 

 

 

Ensure the establishment of 

the district Economic Forum to 

meet twice per year. 

  Done 
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KPA GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Key Performance Targets Status 

 Capacitate staff in terms of 

skill development. 

R31 878.00 Results for the second 

year 

 

Funded the undergraduate 

programme for both 

 Project Coordinator Edward 

Lesenyelo 

Sibongile Makhubu Bachelor of 

Business Administration 

 

 

Develop and/or review 

LDA policies for an 

improved regulatory 

environment. 

Develop or adopt HR and 

Financial Policies e.g. SCM 

and Sign contract with service 

providers 

-  

 

Policies developed 

SCM and HR policies are proved 

only fraud prevision policy still in 

draft formet   

Ensure regular 

accountability for all 

Entities assets. 

 

Asset management register 

developed and maintained 

- Operational Budget 

 

Asset register developed 

according to MFMA and 

quarterly checked. 
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Key Performance Area: 

LDA Financial Viability and Financial Management 
 

KPA MUNICIPAL FINANCIAL VIABILITY AND FINANCIAL 

MANAGEMENT 

Key Performance Targets KPO 

IDP Goal Key Performance Indicator Expenditure 2012/13  

To perform a high level 

assessment of financial 

management and 

financial risk 

 

Appoint a credible 

accounting firm to compile 

AFS and to ensure that 

budget is GAMAP/GRAP 

compliant 

R9 103.00 pm 6 Accountant is appointed and 

the AFS were compiled 

Review of financial policies - 1  

Budget for Audit fees to 

comply with MFMA  

  The Audit Fees were higher than 

the budgeted account for AG 

and  LDA had to pay for the 

previous agency board’s debt 

Availability of annual financial 

statements 

 1 AFS were available and 

submitted on time 
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Budget compiled according 

to all relevant legal 

requirements 

- 1 Budget was compiled and 

approved by Board and 

Council and Budget adjustment 

was approved in January  

Compilation of s71 and 72 

reports and compliance with 

MFMA, 2003 

- 12 All S71 reports were compiled 

and submitted to the board 

and LDM 

 CEO to ensure that entity 

receive a clean  audit 

-  The AG’s report for the entity is 

unqualified. 
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2.3.3 Key Performance Area: 

Local Economic Development 
 

KPA LOCAL ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT Key Performance Targets 

 

Key Performance 

Outcome 

IDP Goal Key Performance Indicator Expenditure 2012/13  

To promote tourism 

support and LED in the 

District  

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Organize seminar on 

green economy and 

attend Cop17 

 

 

 

 

 

Marketing the LDA at the tourism 

indaba   

R 188 920.00  A successful expo was 

held on the 7-9 June 2012 

 

KPA GOOD GOVERNANCE AND PUBLIC PARTICIPATION Key Performance 

Targets 

KPO 

Establishment 

development agency and 

outsource funding and 

establish partnerships with 

other stakeholders 

Secure funding from IDC and LDM to 

sustain the entity 

R2.5m for LDM and 

R1.2m for IDC and 

R2919730.00 For IDC 

2 IDC transferred funds for 

Project expenditure. 

IDC  are busy preparing for 

a Milestone audit 
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Identify Project per 

economic sector in the 

district and do studies. 

Develop Feasibility studies for the 

following projects Solar Energy.  

R855 000.00 Bankable business 

plan  

 Upon the completion of the 

feasibility study the project 

would be submitted to DBSA, 

Dept. of Energy and IDC    for 

funding 
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CHAPTER 4 

ORGANISATIONAL DEVELOPMENT PERFORMANCE 
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4.1. Municipal structure 

4.1.1. Executive Management 

For the 2012/13, we had one senior manager whose contract came to an end and was not renewed as per the contract terms. The same position 

was advertised for filling in the same financial year as per the requirement of the Municipal Systems Amendment Act of 2011. During the beginning 

of the financial year, we had only one acting position: Corporate Services.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Municipal Manager 

Executive Manager: Corporate 
Service (s57) 

Executive Manager: Social 
Development (s57) 

Chief Financial Officer (s57) 
Executive Manager: LED & Tourism 

(s57) 
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4.1.2. Executive Mayor 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

The office of the Executive Mayor was not affected by the in and out movement of personnel for the financial year. They had full complement of 

staff members as per the structure. 

 

Chief of Staff 

 

Special Programme  Officers x 2 

 

Personal Assistant x 1 

Gender Officer x1 

Secretary x 4  

Senior Special programmes Officer x 1  

HIV Coordinator x 1 

Manager: IGR & Communication x1 
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4.1.3. Speaker 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The office of the Speaker ran on full staff complement throughout the financial year. 

  

PA: OFFICE OF THE SPEAKER x1 

 

Executive Secretary 

 
Public Participation Officer x 2 
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4.1.4. Municipal Manager 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The following units were housed in the Municipal Manager’s office: Internal audit; Risk Management; Security Services and Municipal Support. The 

unit that still requires undivided support is that of risk management as there were only two officials. 

 
Municipal 
Manager 

 
Ex. Secretary  

 

Strategic Manager  

in the MMs Office 
x1 

 

Internal Auditor 
x1 

 

Audit Clerk x  

Risk Officer X 1 
Manager: Security 

Services X 1 

VIP Protection X 
2 

Access Control X  

Manager: 
Municipal 
Support x1 

 Technician: 
Roads x 1 
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4.1.5. Finance 

  

CFO (s57) 

 

Manager : Budget  

& Treasury 

Budget Officer x1  

 

Chief Accountant x1 

Expenditure Clerk/Salary 
Administrator  

Expenditure Clerk x 1 

Asset Officer x 2 

Systems Administrator x 1 

Accountant x1 

Senior Manager: IT 

Manager: IT 

IT Technician x 1 Website Developer x 1 

Head: SCM x1 
  

SCM officer 

 x 1  

Procurement Officers x 2 

Secretary  
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4.1.6. Corporate Services 

 

  

Executive Manager: 

Corporate Services 
(s57) 

HR Manager  

HR Officer X 1  

Customer Relations 
Officer 

Customer Relations Assistant x 1 

Performance 
Management Officer X 1 

Legal Services  

Manager  

Snr Admin Officer  

Committee Clerks x 2 

General Workers x11  

Assist. Admin Officer  

Receptionist x 1  

Head: Registry  Office  

Registry Clerks x2  

Administration Asst  

Fleet Management Officer x 1  

Secretary  



 

Draft annual report 2012-13                                                                                                      Page 71 
 

 

4.1.7. LED and Planning

Executive Manager:  

LED & Tourism (s57) 

 

Secretary  

 

Manager: LED /Tourism  

 

LED/Tourism Officer x 2  
SMME Coordinator x 2 

Manager: IDP x1 

IDP Officer x 1  
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Executive Manager: Environmental Health 

Manager: Disaster Management x 1 

DMO x1 

Disaster Management  

Support Officers x 3  

Radio Communications 
Operators x3 

(Vacant) 

Satellite Officer x 

Training Officer x3 

 

Planning and Operations 
Coordinator x 2 

Development Officer x 1 
Assistant Planning & 

Operations Coordinator x 2 

Senior Administration Officer x1 

(Vacant) 

General Workers x 3 

(Vacant)  
Office Assistant x 1 
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Manager EHS  

Area Manager x 1 Area Manager x 1 

Snr. Administration Officer x 1  

Tswelopele,Nala,Tokologo 

Snr EHP’s x 3 

EHP’s x 8  

Office Support x 1 

Matjhabeng and Masilonyana 

Snr EHP’s x 7 

EHP’s x 17 

Pest Control Officer x 1 

Office Support x 1 
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No major movement could be recorded for the financial year through staff resigning for greener pastures. Instead there were a few 

positions which were filled through internal placement processes. The only structural process that new staff members coming 

through was the recruitment process for the disaster management centre. About fifty percent of staff members were placed in 

positions available there. The rest were employed from outside. This means that of the twenty odd staff members, about ten were 

sourced internally.   

It is also evident from the structures allocated above that in terms of reporting standards, our structures are mainly top-down. 

From a planning perspective, it becomes obvious that each department followed a plan of the executive manager in terms of 

planning for daily routine. The performance management policy decrees that all departmental plans must be the dictate of a senior 

manager with creative inputs on respective sub-ordinates. It must be noted as highlighted above that all work performed form part 

of the executive manager’s work-in progress. So it would follow that each staff member has work to be done informed by his/her 

supervisor. In an hierarchical format, communication is then passed on to assistant manager and thereafter top management 

represented by an head of department. 

4.2. Managing the municipal workforce Levels on reporting should be broken down to MM & Section 56, top management, assistant 

managers, supervisors, etc and not pay levels as there is no consistency among municipalities. 

One of the key deliverables is the ability to consolidate departmental reports at a departmental level. The issue is that each unit 

reports on progress as outlined in their performance plans emanating from the heads of departments. Each employee is given the 

responsibility for which the person was hired to perform in line with job description or in line with the mandate of the department. 

At senior management levels, the reporting is done as per their departmental performance plans annexed to the performance 

agreements. Each head of department is expected to deliver on the plan. Support mechanisms are put in place to ensure that they 
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get the required training support in order to deliver on their mandates. Levels that are lower than the senior managers report to 

the senior managers as per their monthly briefs.  For the year under review, we have not cascaded doen performance planning to 

lower staff and therefore only senior managers would have plans of their subordinates and were the only ones who would express 

an opinion whether or not each staff members conducted himself or not in terms of the plan that the senior manager provided to 

his/her subordinate. 

4.3. Capacitating the municipal workforce. 

The municipality had different programmes for improving capacity of staff members. All the programmes were located in the 

Corporate Services department. More than fifty staff members were engaged in some form of capacity building paid for by the 

municipality in order to capacitate them in their respective areas of work. 

4.4. Managing the municipal workforce expenditure. 

One of the considerations we made for the financial year was to keep under control overtime spending as it would have increased 

overall operational spending. Some other key controls related to ensuring that we control unregistered leave taken by staff 

members even when no authority was given. In some instances, staff members who do not come to work but are registered as 

present were monitored.  

One of the challenges in this regard related to staff members who actually come to work every working day but do not have work 

they do to show for their presence. Out of a staffing complement of more than 140 staff members, we have more than twenty staff 

members who cannot for their actual business activity each working day. This problem can only be resolved when heads of 

departments portion responsibilities in line with their performance plans. 
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Accounting Officer's Responsibilities and Approval 

I am responsible for the presentation of these financial statements which are set out on page 12 to 73 in terms of Section 126(1) 
of the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act 56 of 2003), and which I have signed on behalf of the Municipality. 

The annual financial statements have been prepared in accordance with South African Statements of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board. 

The financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This basis 
presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of liabilities, 
contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. The ability of the entity to continue as a 
going concern is dependent on a number of factors. The most significant of these is that the accounting officer continue to 
procure funding for the ongoing operations for the entity. The entity still will continue to receive funding from government as 
evident from the equitable share allocation in terms of the Division of Revenue Act (Act 6 of 2011). 

The municipality depends on grants received from national government (98%) as RSC levies were abolished in 2006. 

The consolidated financial statements set out on pages 6 to 70, which have been prepared on the going concern basis, were 
approved by the accounting officer on 31 August 2013 and were signed on its behalf by: 

Ms. Palesa Matshediso Elizabeth Kaota 
Accounting Officer 
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Report of the Auditor General 

To the Council of Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Report on the financial statements 

Other matters 

The audit report will be included once issued by the Auditor General. 

The Auditor - General: Free State 

Partner's name 
Additional description Additional description 

31 August2013 
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Statement of Financial Position as at 30 June 2013 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Assets 

Current Assets 
Cash and cash equivalents 6 17,667,743 15,277,609 14,981,927 15,115,296 

VAT receivable 5 - 329,018 4,750 1,129,353 

Other financial assets 3 25,000,000 16,000,000 25,000,000 16,000,000 

Receivables from exchange transactions 13 17,732 10,890 - - 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 4 1,552,456 627,078 1,552,456 626,246 

  44,237,931 32,244,595 41,539,133 32,870,895 

Non-Current Assets 
Property, plant and equipment 7 73,771,691 78,792,046 73,722,565 78,733,165 

Intangible assets 8 3,127,498 4,827,369 3,120,248 4,812,166 

Investments in controlled entities  - - 100 100 

  76,899,189 83,619,415 76,842,913 83,545,431 

Non-current assets held for sale 14&42 - 7,660,445 - 7,660,445 

Total Assets  121,137,120 123,524,455 118,382,046 124,076,771 

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 10 1,585,085 1,793,047 1,585,085 1,793,047 

Current tax payable 19 771,959 771,959 - - 

Payables from exchange transactions 11 6,652,621 5,061,932 6,459,298 4,774,881 

Taxes and transfers payable (non-exchange)  - 23,190 - - 

VAT payable 20 989,870 - - - 

Retirement benefit obligation 12 20,376 18,600 20,376 18,600 

Provisions 15 381,341 381,341 381,341 381,341 

Long-term service awards 17 1,822,212 2,147,003 1,822,212 2,147,003 

Deferred revenue 18 1,200,000 - - - 

  13,423,464 10,197,072 10,268,312 9,114,872 

Non-Current Liabilities 
Other financial liabilities 10 14,960,102 16,545,187 14,960,102 16,545,187 

Retirement benefit obligation 12 5,584,584 5,504,150 5,584,584 5,504,150 

  20,544,686 22,049,337 20,544,686 22,049,337 

Total Liabilities  33,968,150 32,246,409 30,812,998 31,164,209 

Net Assets  87,168,970 91,278,046 87,569,048 92,912,562 

Net Assets 

Accumulated surplus 

 

87,168,970 91,278,046 87,569,048 92,912,562 
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Statement of Financial Performance 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 22 &23 102,491,967 96,214,296 99,930,801 96,214,296 

Other income  22 500,035 323,471 500,035 323,471 

Interest received (trading)  22 856,289 1,133,832 769,874 1,034,111 

Interest received - investment  22 2,425,189 2,877,092 2,425,189 2,877,092 

Total revenue   106,273,480 100,548,691 103,625,899 100,448,970 

Expenditure 

General Expenses 
 

24 (29,413,793) (35,683,669) (27,509,424) (32,885,255) 

Employee Related costs  25 (50,141,804) (45,372,307) (48,208,182) (43,239,351) 

Remuneration of councillors  26 (8,121,452) (6,489,670) (8,121,452) (6,489,670) 

Debt impairment  28 - (9,246,284) - (9,246,284) 

Depreciation and amortisation  30 (7,181,150) (7,990,142) (7,145,106) (7,956,294) 

Finance costs  31 (2,848,310) (3,110,248) (2,840,657) (3,106,722) 

Gain / (Loss) on disposal of assets and liabilities  7 67,982 (521,081) 67,982 (521,081) 

Repairs and maintenance  27 (438,906) (1,575,118) (438,257) (1,575,052) 

Transfers to local municipalities  33 (1,950,000) (5,965,522) (1,950,000) (5,965,522) 

Transfer to the development agency   - - (2,500,000) (2,000,000) 

Impairment of assets   (4,185) (407) (4,185) - 

Consulting and professional fees  49 (1,849,521) (3,541,924) (1,849,521) (3,541,924) 

Audit committee   (30,806) - - - 

Total expenditure   (101,911,945) (119,496,372) (100,498,802) (116,527,155) 

Operating surplus (deficit)   4,361,535 (18,947,681) 3,127,097 (16,078,185) 

Surplus (deficit) for the year   4,361,535 (18,947,681) 3,127,097 (16,078,185) 
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Statement of Changes in Net Assets 

Figures in Rand 

Accumulated 
surplus 

Total net 
assets 

Economic entity 
Balance at 01 July2011 109,028,877 109,028,877 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year (18,947,681) (18,947,681) 
Prior period error 1,409,850 1,409,850 
2010 Unspent Grant already spent in 2011 deducted from current year Grant income by (213,000) (213,000) 

National Treasury   

Total changes (17,750,831) (17,750,831) 

Opening balance as previously reported 89,705,749 89,705,749 

Adjustments 
Correction of errors 1,572,295 1,572,295 

Balance at 01 July 2012 as restated 91,278,044 91,278,044 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus for the year 4,361,530 4,361,530 

Unappropiated Surplus from prior year (7,689,104) (7,689,104) 

Funding of assets 1,012,000 1,012,000 
Transfer of Depreciation to Capital Replacement reserve (7,214,749) (7,214,749) 

Donations 14,492 14,492 
Additions to reserves 1,008,418 1,008,418 

Capital replacement reserve 4,398,339 4,398,339 

Total changes (4,109,074) (4,109,074) 

Balance at 30 June 2013 87,168,970 87,168,970 

Note(s) 

Controlling entity 
Balance at 01 July2011 107,793,897 107,793,897 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus/ (deficit) for the year (16,078,185) (16,078,185) 
Prior period error 1,409,850 1,409,850 
2010 Unspent Grant already spent in 2011 deducted from current year Grant income by (213,000) (213,000) 

National Treasury   

Total changes (14,881,335) (14,881,335) 

Balance at 01 July2012 92,912,560 92,912,560 

Changes in net assets 
Surplus / (deficit) for the year 3,127,092 3,127,092 

Unappropriated Surplus from prior year (7,689,104) (7,689,104) 

Funding of assets 1,012,000 1,012,000 
Transfer of Depreciation to Capital Replacement reserve (7,214,749) (7,214,749) 

Donations 14,492 14,492 
Additions to reserves 1,008,418 1,008,418 

Capital replacement reserve 4,398,339 4,398,339 

Total changes (5,343,512) (5,343,512) 

Balance at 30 June 2013 87,569,048 87,569,048 
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Cash Flow Statement 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand Note(s) 2013 2012 2013 2012 

Cash flows from operating activities 

Receipts 

Cash receipts from Government and Other 

 

103,743,308 96,211,000 100,129,510 96,211,000 

Interest income  2,511,604 2,976,813 2,425,189 2,877,092 

Other income  - 323,471 - 323,471 

  106,254,912 99,511,284 102,554,699 99,411,563 

Payments 

Cash paid to Suppliers and Employees 

 

(58,301,167) (53,074,944) (55,092,549) (50,989,242) 

Suppliers  (31,438,289) (48,285,659) (33,263,694) (47,185,295) 

Finance costs  (2,848,310) (3,110,248) (2,840,657) (3,106,722) 

  (92,587,766) (104,470,851) (91,196,900) (101,281,259) 

Net cash flows from operating activities 34 13,667,146 (4,959,567) 11,357,799 (1,869,696) 

Cash flows from investing activities 

Purchase of property, plant and equipment 7 (2,745,788) (4,688,009) (2,727,454) (4,643,710) 

Proceeds from sale of property, plant and equipment 7 1,514,060 107,623 1,281,575 107,623 

Purchase of other intangible assets 8 - (4,511,948) - (4,507,577) 

Proceeds from sale of other intangible assets 8 1,076,734 - 1,076,734 - 

Proceeds from sale of financial assets  (9,000,000) 4,000,000 (9,000,000) 4,000,000 

Impairment of assets  (4,185) - (4,185) - 

Net cash flows from investing activities  (9,159,179) (5,092,334) (9,373,330) (5,043,664) 

Cash flows from financing activities 

Repayment of other financial liabilities 

 

(1,793,047) (1,552,815) (1,793,047) (1,552,815) 

Movement in long-term service awards  (324,791) - (324,791) - 

Operating lease payments  - (152,888) - (152,888) 

Net cash flows from financing activities  (2,117,838) (1,705,703) (2,117,838) (1,705,703) 

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash 
 

2,390,129 (11,757,604) (133,369) (8,619,063) 

equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 
 

15,277,609 27,035,213 15,115,296 23,734,359 

Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6 17,667,738 15,277,609 14,981,927 15,115,296 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Budget on Cash Basis 

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference 
budget on comparable between final 
basis budget and 
Figures in Rand actual 

Economic entity 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Interest received (trading) 645,260 - 645,260 856,289 211,029 

Other income - (rollup) 40,000 50,000 90,000 500,035 410,035 

Interest received - investment 1,680,000 - 1,680,000 2,425,189 745,189 

Total revenue from exchange 2,365,260 50,000 2,415,260 3,781,513 1,366,253 

transactions      

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

Transfer revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 106,387,000 (160,541) 106,226,459 102,491,967 (3,734,492) 

Total revenue 108,752,260 (110,541) 108,641,719 106,273,480 (2,368,239) 

Expenditure 

Employee remuneration (51,676,362) 561,541 (51,114,821) (50,141,804) 973,017 

Remuneration of councillors (7,908,779) (99,999) (8,008,778) (8,121,452) (112,674) 

Consulting and professional fees (3,813,435) 1,955,659 (1,857,776) (1,849,521) 8,255 

Depreciation and amortisation (7,920,439) - (7,920,439) (7,181,150) 739,289 

Impairment loss/ Reversal of - - - (4,185) (4,185) 

impairments 
Finance costs (2,840,607) - (2,840,607) (2,848,310) (7,703) 

Debt impairment (529,200) - (529,200) - 529,200 

Repairs and maintenance (912,970) 306,620 (606,350) (438,906) 167,444 

General Expenses (31,681,654) (13,661,808) (45,343,462) (31,394,599) 13,948,863 

Transfers to local muncisipalities (1,950,000) - (1,950,000) - 1,950,000 

Total expenditure (109,233,446) (10,937,987) (120,171,433) (101,979,927) 18,191,506 

Operating surplus (481,186) (11,048,528) (11,529,714) 4,293,553 15,823,267 

Gain on disposal of assets and - - - 67,977 67,977 

liabilities      

Surplus before taxation (481,186) (11,048,528) (11,529,714) 4,361,530 15,891,244 

Actual Amount on Comparable (481,186) (11,048,528) (11,529,714) 4,361,530 15,891,244 

Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

     

Reconcilation 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Budget on Cash Basis 

Approved Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts Difference Reference 
budget on comparable between final 
basis budget and 
Figures in Rand actual 

Controlling entity 

Statement of Financial Performance 

Revenue 

Revenue from exchange 
transactions 

Interest received (trading) 645,260 - 645,260 769,874 124,614 

Other income - (rollup) 40,000 50,000 90,000 500,035 410,035 

Interest received - investment 1,680,000 - 1,680,000 2,425,189 745,189 

Total revenue from exchange 2,365,260 50,000 2,415,260 3,695,098 1,279,838 

transactions      

Revenue from non-exchange 
transactions 

Transfer Revenue 

Government grants & subsidies 100,387,000 - 100,387,000 99,930,801 (456,199) 

Total revenue 102,752,260 50,000 102,802,260 103,625,899 823,639 

Expenditure 

Employee remuneration (49,514,858) 782,615 (48,732,243) (48,208,182) 524,061 

Remuneration of councillors (7,908,779) (99,999) (8,008,778) (8,121,452) (112,674) 

Consulting and professional fees (3,813,435) 1,955,659 (1,857,776) (1,849,521) 8,255 

Depreciation and amortisation (7,845,439) - (7,845,439) (7,145,106) 700,333 

Impairment loss/ Reversal of - - - (4,185) (4,185) 

impairments 
Finance costs (2,840,607) - (2,840,607) (2,840,657) (50) 

Debt impairment (529,200) - (529,200) - 529,200 

Repairs and maintenance (912,970) 306,620 (606,350) (438,257) 168,093 

Grants and subsidies paid (2,500,000) - (2,500,000) (2,500,000) - 

General Expenses (25,919,962) (14,721,904) (40,641,866) (29,459,424) 11,182,442 

Transfer to local municipalities (1,950,000) - (1,950,000) - 1,950,000 

Total expenditure (103,735,250) (11,777,009) (115,512,259) (100,566,784) 14,945,475 

Operating surplus (982,990) (11,727,009) (12,709,999) 3,059,115 15,769,114 

Gain on disposal of assets and - - - 67,977 67,977 

liabilities      

Surplus before taxation (982,990) (11,727,009) (12,709,999) 3,127,092 15,837,091 

Actual Amount on Comparable (982,990) (11,727,009) (12,709,999) 3,127,092 15,837,091 

Basis as Presented in the 
Budget and Actual 
Comparative Statement 

     

Reconcilation 
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Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts 
Budget on Cash Basis      

Figures in Rand 

Approved 
budget 

Adjustments Final Budget Actual amounts 
on comparable 

basis 

Difference 
between final 
budget and 

actual 

Reference 

Statement of Financial Position 

Assets 

Current Assets 

Other financial assets 16,000,000 - 16,000,000 25,000,000 9,000,000 

 

Other receivables from non- 8,954,104 - 8,954,104 1,552,456 (7,401,648)  

exchange transactions 
VAT receivable - - - 4,750 4,750 

 

Cash and cash equivalents 5,604,525 - 5,604,525 14,981,927 9,377,402  

 30,558,629 - 30,558,629 41,539,133 10,980,504  

Non-Current Assets 

Property, plant and equipment 89,724,000 - 89,724,000 73,722,566 (16,001,434) 
 

Intangible assets 330,000 (70,000) 260,000 3,120,248 2,860,248  

Investments in controlled entities - - - 100 100  

 90,054,000 (70,000) 89,984,000 76,842,914 (13,141,086)  

Total Assets 120,612,629 (70,000) 120,542,629 118,382,047 (2,160,582)  

Liabilities 

Current Liabilities 

Other financial liabilities - - - 1,585,085 1,585,085 

 

Trade and other payables 6,848,240 - 6,848,240 6,459,301 (388,939)  

Retirement benefit obligation - - - 20,376 20,376  

Government grants received 66,984 - 66,984 - (66,984)  

Provisions 752,283 - 752,283 381,341 (370,942)  

Long-term service awards 1,706,434 - 1,706,434 1,822,212 115,778  

 9,373,941 - 9,373,941 10,268,315 894,374  

Non-Current Liabilities 

Other financial liabilities 14,964,658 - 14,964,658 14,960,102 (4,556) 
 

Retirement benefit obligation 4,727,910 - 4,727,910 5,584,584 856,674  

Provisions 1,580,346 - 1,580,346 - (1,580,346)  

 21,272,914 - 21,272,914 20,544,686 (728,228)  

Total Liabilities 30,646,855 - 30,646,855 30,813,001 166,146  

Net Assets 89,965,774 (70,000) 89,895,774 87,569,046 (2,326,728)  

Net Assets 

Net Assets Attributable to 
Owners of Controlling Entity 

Reserves 

Accumulated surplus (26,206,801) 13,486,822 (12,719,979) 87,569,048 100,289,027 
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Lejweleputswa District Municipality 
Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 

Accounting Policies 

1. Presentation of Consolidated Financial Statements 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the Standards of Generally Recognised 
Accounting Practice (GRAP) including any interpretations, guidelines and directives issued by the Accounting Standards 
Board. These financial statements therefore complies with the Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice. 

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared on an accrual basis of accounting and are in accordance with 
historical cost convention unless specified otherwise. They are presented in South African Rand. 

A summary of the significant accounting policies, which have been consistently applied, are disclosed below. 1.1 

Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is required to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
amounts represented in the consolidated financial statements and related disclosures. Use of available information and the 
application of judgement is inherent in the formation of estimates. Actual results in the future could differ from these estimates 
which may be material to the consolidated financial statements. Significant judgements include: 

Land 
Buildings and infrastructure y Normal Buildings 

y Tiles 
y Paving 
y Fencing 
y Parking 

Motor vehicles 
Emergency equipment Office 
equipment 

Furniture and fixtures Plant and Equipment 
Other property, plant and equipment 
Signage 

Not depreciated 
 
30 years 10 years 30 
years 30 years 30 
years 

7 years 5 years 
4 years 
5 years 5 years 5 
years 5 years 

 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions / Held to maturity investments and/or loans and receivables 

The economic entity assesses its other receivables from non-exchange transactions, held to maturity investments and loans 
and receivables for impairment at the end of each reporting period. In determining whether an impairment loss should be 
recorded in surplus or deficit, the surplus makes judgements as to whether there is observable data indicating a measurable 
decrease in the estimated future cash flows from a financial asset. 

The impairment for other receivables from non-exchange transactions, held to maturity investments and loans and receivables is 
calculated on a portfolio basis, based on historical loss ratios, adjusted for national and industry-specific economic conditions and 
other indicators present at the reporting date that correlate with defaults on the portfolio. These annual loss ratios are applied to 
loan balances in the portfolio and scaled to the estimated loss emergence period. 

Provisions 

Provisions were raised and management determined an estimate based on the information available. Additional disclosure of 
these estimates of provisions are included in note 15 - Provisions. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.1 Significant judgements and sources of estimation uncertainty (continued) 

Post retirement benefits 

The present value of the post retirement obligation depends on a number of factors that are determined on an actuarial basis 
using a number of assumptions. The assumptions used in determining the net cost (income) include the discount rate. Any 
changes in these assumptions will impact on the carrying amount of post retirement obligations. 

The economic entity determines the appropriate discount rate at the end of each year. This is the interest rate that should be used 
to determine the present value of estimated future cash outflows expected to be required to settle the pension obligations. In 
determining the appropriate discount rate, the economic entity considers the interest rates of high-quality corporate bonds that are 
denominated in the currency in which the benefits will be paid, and that have terms to maturity approximating the terms of the 
related pension liability. 

Other key assumptions for pension obligations are based on current market conditions. Additional information is disclosed in 
Note 12. 

Effective interest rate 

The economic entity used the prime interest rate to discount future cash flows. 

Allowance for doubtful debts 

On debtors an impairment loss is recognised in surplus and deficit when there is objective evidence that it is impaired. The 
impairment is measured as the difference between the debtors carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash 
flows discounted at the effective interest rate, computed at initial recognition. 

1.2 Property, plant and equipment 

Property, plant and equipment are tangible non-current assets (including infrastructure assets) that are held for use in the 
production or supply of goods or services, rental to others, or for administrative purposes, and are expected to be used during more 
than one period. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised as an asset when: 
y it is probable that future economic benefits or service potential associated with the item will flow to the 
municipality; and 
y the cost of the item can be measured reliably. 

Property, plant and equipment is initially measured at cost. 

The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment is the purchase price and other costs attributable to bring the asset to the 
location and condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner intended by management. Trade discounts and 
rebates are deducted in arriving at the cost. 

Where an asset is acquired through a non-exchange transaction, its cost is its fair value as at date of acquisition. 

Where an item of property, plant and equipment is acquired in exchange for a non-monetary asset or monetary assets, or a 
combination of monetary and non-monetary assets, the asset acquired is initially measured at fair value (the cost). If the 
acquired item's fair value was not determinable, it's deemed cost is the carrying amount of the asset(s) given up. 

When significant components of an item of property, plant and equipment have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items (major components) of property, plant and equipment. 

Costs include costs incurred initially to acquire or construct an item of property, plant and equipment and costs incurred 
subsequently to add to, replace part of, or service it. If a replacement cost is recognised in the carrying amount of an item of 
property, plant and equipment, the carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. 

Property, plant and equipment is carried at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses. 

Property, plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight line basis over their expected useful lives to their estimated 
residual value. 

The useful lives of items of property, plant and equipment have been assessed as follows: 
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1.2 Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Item Average useful life 

Land Not depreciated 
Buildings and infrastructure 
y Normal Buildings 30 years 
y Tiles 10 years 
y Paving 30 years 
y Fencing 30 years 
y Parking 30 years 
Motor vehicles 7 years 
Emergency equipment 5 years 
Office equipment 6 years 
Furniture and fixtures 6 years 
Plant and Equipment 5 years 
Other property, plant and equipment 5 years 
Signage 5 years 

The residual value, and the useful life and depreciation method of each asset are reviewed at the end of each reporting date. If 
the expectations differ from previous estimates, the change is accounted for as a change in accounting estimate. 

Reviewing the useful life of an asset on an annual basis does not require the entity to amend the previous estimate unless 
expectations differ from the previous estimate. 

Each part of an item of property, plant and equipment with a cost that is significant in relation to the total cost of the item is 
depreciated separately. 

The depreciation charge for each period is recognised in surplus or deficit unless it is included in the carrying amount of 
another asset. 

Items of municipality are derecognised when the asset is disposed of or when there are no further economic benefits or service 
potential expected from the use of the asset. 

The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is included in surplus or deficit when 
the item is derecognised. The gain or loss arising from the derecognition of an item of property, plant and equipment is 
determined as the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount of the item. 

1.3 Intangible assets 

An asset is identified as an intangible asset when it: 
y is capable of being separated or divided from an entity and sold, transferred, licensed, rented or exchanged, 
either individually or together with a related contract, assets or liability; or 
y arises from contractual rights or other legal rights, regardless whether those rights are transferable or separate 
from the economic entity or from other rights and obligations. 

An intangible asset is recognised when: 
y it is probable that the expected future economic benefits or service potential that are attributable to the asset will flow 
to the economic entity; and 
y the cost or fair value of the asset can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost. 

An intangible asset acquired through a non-exchange transaction, the cost shall be its fair value as at the date of acquisition. 

Expenditure on research (or on the research phase of an internal project) is recognised as an expense when it is incurred. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.3 Intangible assets (continued) 

An intangible asset arising from development (or from the development phase of an internal project) is recognised when: 
 y it is technically feasible to complete the asset so that it will be available for use or sale. 
 y there is an intention to complete and use or sell it. 
 y there is an ability to use or sell it. 
 y it will generate probable future economic benefits or service potential. 
 y there are available technical, financial and other resources to complete the development and to use or sell the 
asset. 
 y the expenditure attributable to the asset during its development can be measured reliably. 

Intangible assets are carried at cost less any accumulated amortisation and any impairment losses. 

An intangible asset is regarded as having an indefinite useful life when, based on all relevant factors, there is no foreseeable 
limit to the period over which the asset is expected to generate net cash inflows or service potential. Amortisation is not 
provided for these intangible assets, but they are tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an indication that the 
asset may be impaired. For all other intangible assets amortisation is provided on a straight line basis over their useful life. 

The amortisation period and the amortisation method for intangible assets are reviewed at each reporting date. 

Reassessing the useful life of an intangible asset with a finite useful life after it was classified as indefinite is an indicator that the 
asset may be impaired. As a result the asset is tested for impairment and the remaining carrying amount is amortised over its 
useful life. 

Internally generated brands, mastheads, publishing titles, customer lists and items similar in substance are not recognised as 
intangible assets. 

Amortisation is provided to write down the intangible assets, on a straight line basis, to their residual values as follows: 

 Item Useful life 

Computer software, other 3 years 

Intangible assets are derecognised: 
 y on disposal; or 
 y when no future economic benefits or service potential are expected from its use or disposal. 

The gain or loss is the difference between the net disposal proceeds, if any, and the carrying amount. It is recognised in 
surplus or deficit when the asset is derecognised. 

1.4 Investments in controlled entities 1.5 

Financial instruments 

Classification 

The economic entity classifies financial assets and financial liabilities into the following categories: 
 y Held-to-maturity investment 
 y Loans and receivables 
 y Available-for-sale financial assets 
 y Financial liabilities measured at amortised cost 

Classification depends on the purpose for which the financial instruments were obtained / incurred and takes place at initial 
recognition. Classification is re-assessed on an annual basis, except for derivatives and financial assets designated as at fair 
value through surplus or deficit, which shall not be classified out of the fair value through surplus or deficit category. 
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued) 

Initial recognition and measurement 

Financial instruments are recognised initially when the economic entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of the 
instruments. 

The economic entity classifies financial instruments, or their component parts, on initial recognition as a financial asset, a 
financial liability or an equity instrument in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement. 

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, except for equity investments for which a fair value is not 
determinable, which are measured at cost and are classified as available-for-sale financial assets. 

For financial instruments which are not at fair value through surplus or deficit, transaction costs are included in the initial 
measurement of the instrument. 

Subsequent measurement 

Loans and receivables are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less accumulated 
impairment losses. 

Held-to-maturity investments are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method, less 
accumulated impairment losses. 

Available-for-sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value. This excludes equity investments for which a fair 
value is not determinable, which are measured at cost less accumulated impairment losses. 

Gains and losses arising from changes in fair value are recognised in equity until the asset is disposed of or determined to be 
impaired. Interest on available-for-sale financial assets calculated using the effective interest method is recognised in surplus or 
deficit as part of other income. Dividends received on available-for-sale equity instruments are recognised in surplus or deficit as 
part of other income when the economic entity's right to receive payment is established. 

Changes in fair value of available-for-sale financial assets denominated in a foreign currency are analysed between translation 
differences resulting from changes in amortised cost and other changes in the carrying amount. Translation differences on 
monetary items are recognised in surplus or deficit, while translation differences on non-monetary items are recognised in equity. 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest method. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.5 Financial instruments (continued) 

Impairment of financial assets 

At each end of the reporting period the economic entity assesses all financial assets, other than those at fair value through 
surplus or deficit, to determine whether there is objective evidence that a financial asset or group of financial assets has been 
impaired. 

For amounts due to the economic entity, significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the debtor will enter 
bankruptcy and default of payments are all considered indicators of impairment. 

In the case of equity securities classified as available-for-sale, a significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of the security 
below its cost is considered an indicator of impairment. If any such evidence exists for available-for-sale financial assets, the 
cumulative loss - measured as the difference between the acquisition cost and current fair value, less any impairment loss on 
that financial asset previously recognised in surplus or deficit - is removed from equity as a reclassification adjustment and 
recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Impairment losses are reversed when an increase in the financial asset's recoverable amount can be related objectively to an 
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the financial asset at 
the date that the impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the carrying amount would have been had the impairment not been 
recognised. 

Reversals of impairment losses are recognised in surplus or deficit except for equity investments classified as available-for-
sale. 

Impairment losses are also not subsequently reversed for available-for-sale equity investments which are held at cost because 
fair value was not determinable. 

Where financial assets are impaired through use of an allowance account, the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or 
deficit within operating expenses. When such assets are written off, the write off is made against the relevant allowance 
account. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses. 

Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade receivables are measured at initial recognition at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the 
effective interest rate method. Appropriate allowances for estimated irrecoverable amounts are recognised in surplus or deficit 
when there is objective evidence that the asset is impaired. Significant financial difficulties of the debtor, probability that the 
debtor will enter bankruptcy or financial reorganisation, and default or delinquency in payments (more than 30 days overdue) are 
considered indicators that the trade receivable is impaired. The allowance recognised is measured as the difference between the 
asset‟s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed 
at initial recognition. 

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account, and the amount of the deficit is recognised 
in surplus or deficit within operating expenses. When a trade receivable is uncollectable, it is written off against the allowance 
account for trade receivables. Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against operating expenses 
in surplus or deficit. 

Trade and other receivables are classified as loans and receivables. 

Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the effective 
interest rate method. 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and other short-term highly liquid investments that are 
readily convertible to a known amount of cash and are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value. These are initially and 
subsequently recorded at fair value. 
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued) 

Bank overdraft and borrowings 

Bank overdrafts and borrowings are initially measured at fair value, and are subsequently measured at amortised cost, using 
the effective interest rate method. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the settlement or 
redemption of borrowings is recognised over the term of the borrowings in accordance with the economic entity‟s accounting 
policy for borrowing costs. 

Derivatives 

Derivative financial instruments, which are not designated as hedging instruments, consisting of foreign exchange contracts 
and interest rate swaps, are initially measured at fair value on the contract date, and are re-measured to fair value at 
subsequent reporting dates. 

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments or other non-financial host contracts are treated as separate derivatives 
when their risks and characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract and the host contract is not carried at 
fair value with unrealised gains or losses reported in surplus or deficit. 

Changes in the fair value of derivative financial instruments are recognised in surplus or deficit as they arise. 

Derivatives are classified as financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit - held for trading. Held to 

maturity 

These financial assets are initially measured at fair value plus direct transaction costs. 

At subsequent reporting dates these are measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method, less any impairment 
loss recognised to reflect irrecoverable amounts. An impairment loss is recognised in surplus or deficit when there is objective 
evidence that the asset is impaired, and is measured as the difference between the investment‟s carrying amount and the present 
value of estimated future cash flows discounted at the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition. Impairment losses are 
reversed in subsequent periods when an increase in the investment‟s recoverable amount can be related objectively to an event 
occurring after the impairment was recognised, subject to the restriction that the carrying amount of the investment at the date the 
impairment is reversed shall not exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the impairment not been recognised. 

Financial assets that the economic entity has the positive intention and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held to 
maturity. 

Financial liabilities and equity instruments 

Financial liabilities are classified according to the substance of contractual agreements entered into. Trade and other payables 
are stated at their nominal value. Equity instruments are recorded at the amount received, net of direct issue costs. 

Gains and losses 

A gain or loss arising from a change in a financial asset or financial liability is recognised as follows: 
y A gain or loss on a financial asset or financial liability classified as at fair value through surplus or deficit is 
recognised in surplus or deficit; 
y A gain or loss on an available-for-sale financial asset is recognised directly in net assets, through the statement of 
changes in net assets, until the financial asset is derecognised, at which time the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised 
in net assets is recognised in surplus or deficit; and 

y For financial assets and financial liabilities carried at amortised cost, a gain or loss is recognised in surplus or deficit 
when the financial asset or financial liability is derecognised or impaired, and through the amortisation process. 
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1.5 Financial instruments (continued) 

Derecognition 

Financial assets 

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets) is derecognised 
where: 
y the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; 
y the economic entity retains the right to receive cash flows from the asset, but has assumed an obligation to pay 
them in full without material delay to a third party under a „pass-through‟ arrangement; or 
y the economic entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset and either 
- has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or 
- has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred 
control of the asset. 

Where the economic entity has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset and has neither transferred nor retained 
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the 
economic entity‟s continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the 
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration 
that the economic entity could be required to repay. Where continuing involvement takes the form of a written and/or purchased 
option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on the transferred asset, the extent of the economic entity‟s 
continuing involvement is the amount of the transferred asset that the economic entity may repurchase, except that in the case of 
a written put option (including a cash-settled option or similar provision) on an asset measured at fair value, the extent of the 
economic entity‟s continuing involvement is limited to the lower of the fair value of the transferred asset and the option exercise 
price. 

Financial liabilities 

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged, cancelled or expires. Where an existing 
financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability 
are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the 
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in the respective carrying amounts is recognised in surplus or deficit. 

Impairment of financial assets 

The economic entity assesses at each statement of financial position date whether a financial asset or group of financial assets is 
impaired. 

Assets are carried at amortised cost. 

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has been incurred, the 
amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset‟s carrying amount and the present value of estimated future 
cash flows (excluding future credit losses that have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset‟s original effective interest 
rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial recognition). The carrying amount of the asset shall be reduced either 
directly or through the use of an allowance account. The amount of the loss shall be recognised in surplus or deficit. The 
economic entity first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment exists individually for financial assets that are individually 
significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets that are not individually significant. If it is determined that no 
objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, the asset is 
included in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and that group of financial assets is collectively 
assessed for impairment. Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for which an impairment loss is or continues to 
be recognised are not included in a collective assessment of impairment. 

1.6 Tax 

Current tax assets and liabilities 

Current tax for current and prior periods is, to the extent unpaid, recognised as a liability. If the amount already paid in respect of 
current and prior periods exceeds the amount due for those periods, the excess is recognised as an asset. 

Current tax liabilities (assets) for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be paid to (recovered 
from) the tax authorities, using the tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the 
reporting period. 
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1.7 Leases 

A lease is classified as a finance lease if it transfers substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. A lease is 
classified as an operating lease if it does not transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership. 

When a lease includes both land and buildings elements, the entity assesses the classification of each element separately. 

Operating leases - lessee 

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term. The difference between the 
amounts recognised as an expense and the contractual payments are recognised as an operating lease asset or liability. 

1.8 Non-current assets held for sale and disposal groups 

Non-current assets and disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amount will be recovered principally 
through a sale transaction rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly 
probable and the asset (or disposal group) is available for immediate sale in its present condition. Management must be 
committed to the sale, which should be expected to qualify for recognition as a completed sale within one year from the date of 
classification. 

Non-current assets held for sale (or disposal group) are measured at the lower of its carrying amount and fair value less costs to 
sell. 

A non-current asset is not depreciated (or amortised) while it is classified as held for sale, or while it is part of a disposal group 
classified as held for sale. 

Interest and other expenses attributable to the liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale are recognised in surplus or 
deficit. 

1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the economic entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial 
return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a 
commercial return. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of 
the loss of the asset‟s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets. 

Identification 

The economic entity assesses at each reporting date whether there is any indication that a cash-generating asset may be 
impaired. If any such indication exists, the economic entity estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

Recognition and measurement (individual asset) 

If the recoverable amount of a cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the asset is 
reduced to its recoverable amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the cash-generating asset to which it 
relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standard of GRAP. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is adjusted in 
future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset‟s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a systematic 
basis over its remaining useful life. 

Cash-generating units 

If there is any indication that an asset may be impaired, the recoverable amount is estimated for the individual asset. If it  is not 
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the individual asset, the economic entity determines the recoverable amount of 
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs (the asset's cash-generating unit). 

If an active market exists for the output produced by an asset or group of assets, that asset or group of assets is identified as a 
cash-generating unit, even if some or all of the output is used internally. If the cash inflows generated by any asset or cash-
generating unit are affected by internal transfer pricing, the economic entity use management's best estimate of future price(s) 
that could be achieved in arm's length transactions in estimating: 
y the future cash inflows used to determine the asset's or cash-generating unit's value in use; and 
y the future cash outflows used to determine the value in use of any other assets or cash-generating units that are 
affected by the internal transfer pricing. 

Cash-generating units are identified consistently from period to period for the same asset or types of assets, unless a change is 
justified. 

The carrying amount of a cash-generating unit is determined on a basis consistent with the way the recoverable amount of the 
cash-generating unit is determined. 

An impairment loss is recognised for a cash-generating unit if the recoverable amount of the unit is less than the carrying 
amount of the unit. The impairment is allocated to reduce the carrying amount of the cash-generating assets of the unit on a 
pro rata basis, based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. These reductions in carrying amounts are treated as 
impairment losses on individual assets. 

In allocating an impairment loss, the entity does not reduce the carrying amount of an asset below the highest of: 
y its fair value less costs to sell (if determinable); 
y its value in use (if determinable); and 
y zero. 

The amount of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other 
cash-generating assets of the unit. 

Where a non-cash-generating asset contributes to a cash-generating unit, a proportion of the carrying amount of that non-
cash-generating asset is allocated to the carrying amount of the cash-generating unit prior to estimation of the recoverable 
amount of the cash-generating unit. 
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1.9 Impairment of cash-generating assets (continued) 

Reversal of impairment loss 

The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the entity 
estimates the recoverable amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset‟s recoverable amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The increased 
carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of an 

impairment loss of a revalued cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the cash-generating asset‟s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit is allocated to the cash-generating assets of the unit pro rata with 
the carrying amounts of those assets. These increases in carrying amounts are treated as reversals of impairment losses for 
individual assets. No part of the amount of such a reversal is allocated to a non-cash-generating asset contributing service 
potential to a cash-generating unit. 

In allocating a reversal of an impairment loss for a cash-generating unit, the carrying amount of an asset is not increased above 
the lower of: 
y its recoverable amount (if determinable); and 
y the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of amortisation or depreciation) had no impairment loss 
been recognised for the asset in prior periods. 

The amount of the reversal of the impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset is allocated pro rata to 
the other assets of the unit. 

1.10 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 

Cash-generating assets are those assets held by the economic entity with the primary objective of generating a commercial 
return. When an asset is deployed in a manner consistent with that adopted by a profit-orientated entity, it generates a 
commercial return. 

Non-cash-generating assets are assets other than cash-generating assets. 

Impairment is a loss in the future economic benefits or service potential of an asset, over and above the systematic recognition of 
the loss of the asset‟s future economic benefits or service potential through depreciation (amortisation). 

Carrying amount is the amount at which an asset is recognised in the statement of financial position after deducting any 
accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses thereon. 

A cash-generating unit is the smallest identifiable group of assets held with the primary objective of generating a commercial 
return that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or 
groups of assets. 

Costs of disposal are incremental costs directly attributable to the disposal of an asset, excluding finance costs and income tax 
expense. 

Depreciation (Amortisation) is the systematic allocation of the depreciable amount of an asset over its useful life. 

Fair value less costs to sell is the amount obtainable from the sale of an asset in an arm‟s length transaction between 
knowledgeable, willing parties, less the costs of disposal. 
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1.10 Impairment of non-cash-generating assets (continued) 

Recoverable service amount is the higher of a non-cash-generating asset‟s fair value less costs to sell and its value in use. 

Useful life is either: 
(a) the period of time over which an asset is expected to be used by the economic entity; or 
(b) the number of production or similar units expected to be obtained from the asset by the economic entity. 

Recognition and measurement 

If the recoverable service amount of a non-cash-generating asset is less than its carrying amount, the carrying amount of the 
asset is reduced to its recoverable service amount. This reduction is an impairment loss. 

An impairment loss is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. 

Any impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation decrease. 

When the amount estimated for an impairment loss is greater than the carrying amount of the non-cash-generating asset to which 
it relates, the economic entity recognises a liability only to the extent that is a requirement in the Standards of GRAP. 

After the recognition of an impairment loss, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is adjusted 
in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset‟s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

Reversal of an impairment loss 

The economic entity assess at each reporting date whether there is any indication that an impairment loss recognised in prior 
periods for a non-cash-generating asset may no longer exist or may have decreased. If any such indication exists, the economic 
entity estimates the recoverable service amount of that asset. 

An impairment loss recognised in prior periods for a non-cash-generating asset is reversed if there has been a change in the 
estimates used to determine the asset‟s recoverable service amount since the last impairment loss was recognised. The carrying 
amount of the asset is increased to its recoverable service amount. The increase is a reversal of an impairment loss. The 
increased carrying amount of an asset attributable to a reversal of an impairment loss does not exceed the carrying amount that 
would have been determined (net of depreciation or amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised for the asset in prior 
periods. 

A reversal of an impairment loss for a non-cash-generating asset is recognised immediately in surplus or deficit. Any reversal of 

an impairment loss of a revalued non-cash-generating asset is treated as a revaluation increase. 

After a reversal of an impairment loss is recognised, the depreciation (amortisation) charge for the non-cash-generating asset is 
adjusted in future periods to allocate the non-cash-generating asset‟s revised carrying amount, less its residual value (if any), on a 
systematic basis over its remaining useful life. 

1.11 Share capital/ contributed capital 

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an economic entity after deducting all of its 
liabilities. 

1.12 Employee benefits Short-

term employee benefits 

The cost of short-term employee benefits, (those payable within 12 months after the service is rendered, such as paid vacation 
leave and sick leave, bonuses, and non-monetary benefits such as medical care), are recognised in the period in which the 
service is rendered and are not discounted. 

The expected cost of compensated absences is recognised as an expense as the employees render services that increase their 
entitlement or, in the case of non-accumulating absences, when the absence occurs. 

The expected cost of surplus sharing and bonus payments is recognised as an expense when there is a legal or constructive 
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obligation to make such payments as a result of past performance. 
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1.12 Employee benefits (continued) 

Defined contribution plans 

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans are charged as an expense as they fall due. 

Payments made to industry-managed (or state plans) retirement benefit schemes are dealt with as defined contribution plans 
where the entity‟s obligation under the schemes is equivalent to those arising in a defined contribution retirement benefit plan. 

Defined benefit plans 

For defined benefit plans the cost of providing the benefits is determined using the projected credit method. 

Actuarial valuations are conducted on an annual basis by independent actuaries separately for each plan. 

Consideration is given to any event that could impact the funds up to end of the reporting period where the interim valuation is 
performed at an earlier date. 

Past service costs are recognised immediately to the extent that the benefits are already vested, and are otherwise amortised on 
a straight line basis over the average period until the amended benefits become vested. 

To the extent that, at the beginning of the financial period, any cumulative unrecognised actuarial gain or loss exceeds ten 
percent of the greater of the present value of the projected benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets (the corridor), 
that portion is recognised in surplus or deficit over the expected average remaining service lives of participating employees. 
Actuarial gains or losses within the corridor are not recognised. 

Gains or losses on the curtailment or settlement of a defined benefit plan is recognised when the entity is demonstrably 
committed to curtailment or settlement. 

When it is virtually certain that another party will reimburse some or all of the expenditure required to settle a defined benefit 
obligation, the right to reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset. The asset is measured at fair value. In all other 
respects, the asset is treated in the same way as plan assets. In surplus or deficit, the expense relating to a defined benefit 
plan is presented as the net of the amount recognised for a reimbursement. 

The amount recognised in the statement of financial position represents the present value of the defined benefit obligation as 
adjusted for unrecognised actuarial gains and losses and unrecognised past service costs, and reduces by the fair value of plan 
assets. 

Any asset is limited to unrecognised actuarial losses and past service costs, plus the present value of available refunds and 
reduction in future contributions to the plan. 

1.13 Provisions and contingencies 

Provisions are recognised when: 
y the economic entity has a present obligation as a result of a past event; 
y it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required to 
settle the obligation; and 
y a reliable estimate can be made of the obligation. 

The amount of a provision is the best estimate of the expenditure expected to be required to settle the present obligation at the 
reporting date. 

Where the effect of time value of money is material, the amount of a provision is the present value of the expenditures 
expected to be required to settle the obligation. 

The discount rate is a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to 
the liability. 

Where some or all of the expenditure required to settle a provision is expected to be reimbursed by another party, the 
reimbursement is recognised when, and only when, it is virtually certain that reimbursement will be received if the economic 
entity settles the obligation. The reimbursement is treated as a separate asset. The amount recognised for the reimbursement 
does not exceed the amount of the provision. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.13 Provisions and contingencies (continued) 

Provisions are reviewed at each reporting date and adjusted to reflect the current best estimate. Provisions are reversed if it is no 
longer probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits or service potential will be required, to settle the 
obligation. 

Where discounting is used, the carrying amount of a provision increases in each period to reflect the passage of time. This 
increase is recognised as an interest expense. 

A provision is used only for expenditures for which the provision was originally recognised. 

Provisions are not recognised for future operating deficits. 

If an entity has a contract that is onerous, the present obligation (net of recoveries) under the contract is recognised and 
measured as a provision. 

A constructive obligation to restructure arises only when an entity: 
y has a detailed formal plan for the restructuring, identifying at least: 
- the activity/operating unit or part of a activity/operating unit concerned; 
- the principal locations affected; 
- the location, function, and approximate number of employees who will be compensated for services being 
terminated; 
- the expenditures that will be undertaken; and 
- when the plan will be implemented; and 
y has raised a valid expectation in those affected that it will carry out the restructuring by starting to implement that 
plan or announcing its main features to those affected by it. 

A restructuring provision includes only the direct expenditures arising from the restructuring, which are those that are both: 
y necessarily entailed by the restructuring; and 
y not associated with the ongoing activities of the economic entity 

No obligation arises as a consequence of the sale or transfer of an operation until the economic entity is committed to the 
sale or transfer, that is, there is a binding arrangement. 

After their initial recognition contingent liabilities recognised in entity combinations that are recognised separately are 
subsequently measured at the higher of: 
y the amount that would be recognised as a provision; and 
y the amount initially recognised less cumulative amortisation. 

Contingent assets and contingent liabilities are not recognised. Contingencies are disclosed in note 36. 1.14 

Revenue from exchange transactions 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 

Interest 

Revenue arising from the use by others of entity assets yielding interest, royalties and dividends is recognised when: y It 
is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the municipality, and 
y The amount of the revenue can be measured reliably. 

Interest is recognised, in surplus or deficit, using the effective interest rate method. 

1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions 

Non-exchange transactions are defined as transactions where the entity receives value from another entity without directly 
giving approximately equal value in exchange. 

Revenue is the gross inflow of economic benefits or service potential during the reporting period when those inflows result in an 
increase in net assets, other than increases relating to contributions from owners. 
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1.15 Revenue from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

Fair value is the amount for which an asset could be exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable, willing pa rties in 
an arm‟s length transaction. 

Measurement 

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable, net of trade discounts and volume rebates. 

Government grants 

Government grants are recognised as revenue when: 
y it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the economic 
entity, 
y the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably, and 
y to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant. 

The municipality assesses the degree of certainty attached to the flow of future economic benefits or service potential on the 
basis of the available evidence. Certain grants payable by one level of government to another are subject to the availability of 
funds. Revenue from these grants is only recognised when it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential 
associated with the transaction will flow to the entity. An announcement at the beginning of a financial year that grants may be 
available for qualifying entities in accordance with an agreed programme may not be sufficient evidence of the probability of the 
flow. Revenue is then only recognised once evidence of the probability of the flow becomes available. 

Restrictions on government grants may result in such revenue being recognised on a time proportion basis. Where there is no 
restriction on the period, such revenue is recognised on receipt or when the Act becomes effective, which-ever is earlier. 

When government remit grants on a re-imbursement basis, revenue is recognised when the qualifying expense has been 
incurred and to the extent that any other restrictions have been complied with. 

Other grants and donations 

Other grants and donations are recognised as revenue when: 
y it is probable that the economic benefits or service potential associated with the transaction will flow to the 
municipality; 
y the amount of the revenue can be measured reliably; and 
y to the extent that there has been compliance with any restrictions associated with the grant. 

If goods in-kind are received without conditions attached, revenue is recognised immediately. If conditions are attached, a 
liability is recognised, which is reduced and revenue recognised as the conditions are satisfied. 

1.16 Borrowing costs 

It is inappropriate to capitalise borrowing costs when, and only when, there is clear evidence that it is difficult to link the 
borrowing requirements of an entity directly to the nature of the expenditure to be funded i.e. capital or current. 

Borrowing costs are recognised as an expense in the period in which they are incurred. 

1.17 Comparative figures 

Where necessary, comparative figures have been reclassified to conform to changes in presentation in the current year. 

1.18 Unauthorised expenditure 

Unauthorised expenditure means: 
y overspending of a vote or a main division within a vote; and 
y expenditure not in accordance with the purpose of a vote or, in the case of a main division, not in accordance with the 
purpose of the main division. 

All expenditure relating to unauthorised expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial performance in 
the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the expense, and 
where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.19 Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Fruitless expenditure means expenditure which was made in vain and would have been avoided had reasonable care been 
exercised. 

All expenditure relating to fruitless and wasteful expenditure is recognised as an expense in the statement of financial 
performance in the year that the expenditure was incurred. The expenditure is classified in accordance with the nature of the 
expense, and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as revenue in the statement of financial performance. 

1.20 Irregular expenditure 

Irregular expenditure as defined in section 1 of the MFMA is expenditure other than unauthorised expenditure, incurred in 
contravention of or that is not in accordance with a requirement of any applicable legislation, including - 

(a) this Act; or 
(b) the State Tender Board Act, 1968 (Act No. 86 of 1968), or any regulations made in terms of the Act; or 
(c) any provincial legislation providing for procurement procedures in that provincial government. 

National Treasury practice note no. 4 of 2008/2009 which was issued in terms of sections 76(1) to 76(4) of the PFMA requires 
the following (effective from 1 April 2008): 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial and which was condoned before year end and/or 
before finalisation of the financial statements must also be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. In such an 
instance, no further action is also required with the exception of updating the note to the financial statements. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and for which condonement is being 
awaited at year end must be recorded in the irregular expenditure register. No further action is required with the exception of 
updating the note to the financial statements. 

Where irregular expenditure was incurred in the previous financial year and is only condoned in the following financial year, the 
register and the disclosure note to the financial statements must be updated with the amount condoned. 

Irregular expenditure that was incurred and identified during the current financial year and which was not condoned by the 
National Treasury or the relevant authority must be recorded appropriately in the irregular expenditure register. If liability for the 
irregular expenditure can be attributed to a person, a debt account must be created if such a person is liable in law. Immediate 
steps must thereafter be taken to recover the amount from the person concerned. If recovery is not possible, the accounting 
officer or accounting authority may write off the amount as debt impairment and disclose such in the relevant note to the financial 
statements. The irregular expenditure register must also be updated accordingly. If the irregular expenditure has not been 
condoned and no person is liable in law, the expenditure related thereto must remain against the relevant programme/expenditure 
item, be disclosed as such in the note to the financial statements and updated accordingly in the irregular expenditure register. 

Irregular expenditure is expenditure that is contrary to the Municipal Finance Management Act (Act No.56 of 2003), the Municipal 
Systems Act (Act No.32 of 2000), and the Public Office Bearers Act (Act No. 20 of 1998) or is in contravention of the economic 
entity‟s supply chain management policy. Irregular expenditure excludes unauthorised expenditure. Irregular expenditure is 
accounted for as expenditure in the Statement of Financial Performance and where recovered, it is subsequently accounted for as 
revenue in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

1.21 Use of estimates 

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Standards of GRAP requires the use of certain critical 
accounting estimates. It also requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the economic entity‟s 
accounting policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates 
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are disclosed in the relevant sections of the consolidated financial 
statements. Although these estimates are based on management‟s best knowledge of current events and actions they may 
undertake in the future, actual results ultimately may differ from those estimates. 

1.22 Presentation of currency 

These consolidated financial statements are presented in South African Rand. 
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1.23 Offsetting 

Assets, liabilities, revenue and expenses have not been offset except when offsetting is required or permitted by a Standard of 
GRAP 

1.24 Budget information 

Economic Entity are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), 
which is given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. 

General purpose financial reporting by economic entity shall provide information on whether resources were obtained and used in 
accordance with the legally adopted budget. 

The consolidated financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting therefore a comparison with the 
budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts. 

Comparative information is not required. 

1.25 Related parties 

The economic entity operates in an economic sector currently dominated by entities directly or indirectly owned by the South 
African Government. As a consequence of the constitutional independence of the three spheres of government in South Africa, 
only entities within the national sphere of government are considered to be related parties. 

Management are those persons responsible for planning, directing and controlling the activities of the economic entity, including 
those charged with the governance of the economic entity in accordance with legislation, in instances where they are required to 
perform such functions. 

Close members of the family of a person are considered to be those family members who may be expected to influence, or be 
influenced by, that management in their dealings with the economic entity. 

Only transactions with related parties not at arm‟s length or not in the ordinary course of business are disclosed. 

1.26 Internal reserves 

Capital replacement reserve (CRR) 

In order to finance the provision of infrastructure and other items of property, plant and equipment from internal sources, amounts 
are transferred from the accumulated surplus / (defecit) to the CRR in terms of the Annual Budget. The cash in the designated 
CRR bank account can only be utilised to finance items of property, plant and equipment. The CRR is reduced and the 
accumulated surplus / (defecit) is credited by a corresponding amount when the amounts in the CRR are utilised. 

1.27 Events after reporting date 

Events after the reporting period are those events, favourable and unfavourable, that occur between the end of the reporting 
period and the date when the financial statements are authorised for issue. 

Adjusting events after the reporting period are those events that provide evidence of conditions that existed at the reporting 
date. The municipality adjusts the amounts recognised in its annual financial statements to reflect adjusting events after the 
reporting period. 

Where non-adjusting events after the reporting period are of such importance that nondisclosure would affect the ability of the 
users of the financial statements to make proper evaluations and decisions, the municipality discloses the following information 
for each significant category of non adjusting event after the reporting period: 
(a) The nature of the event; and 
(b) An estimate of its financial effect or a statement that such an estimate cannot be 
made. 
  



 

 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 

107 

1.28 VAT 

The entity accounts for VAT on the cash basis. The entity is liable to account for VAT at the standard rate (14%) in terms of 
section 7 (1) (a) of the VAT Act in respect of the supply of goods or services, except where the supplies are specifically zero-
rated in terms of section 11, exempted in terms of section 12 of the VAT Act or are scoped out for VAT purposes. The entity 
accounts for VAT on a monthly basis. 
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Accounting Policies 

1.29 Capital Commitments 

Items are classified as commitments where the Municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally result in the 
outflow of resources. 

Capital commitments are not recognised in the statement of financial position as a liability but are included in the disclosure 
notes in the following cases: 
y Approved and contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has been 
awarded at the reporting date, where disclosure is required by a specific standard of GRAP. 
y Approved but not yet contracted commitments, where the expenditure has been approved and the contract has yet to 
be awarded or is awaiting finalisation at the reporting date. 
y Items are classified as commitments where the municipality commits itself to future transactions that will normally 
result in the outflow of resources. 
y Contracts that are entered into before the reporting date, but goods and services have not yet been received are 
disclosed in the disclosure notes to the financial statements. 
y Other commitments for contracts are be non-cancellable or only cancellable at significant cost contracts should 
relate to something other than the business of the municipality. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

2. New standards and interpretations 

2.1 Standards and interpretations effective and adopted in the current year 

In the current year, the economic entity has adopted the following standards and interpretations that are effective for the 
current financial year and that are relevant to its operations: 

Standard/ Interpretation: Effective date: Expected impact: 
Years beginning on or 
after 

y GRAP 23: Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 01 April 2012 The standard will not have a 
material impact on the annual financial statements. 
y GRAP 24: Presentation of Budget Information in the 01 April 2012 Additional disclosure is to 
Financial Statements be included in the financial 
statements. Please refer to the Statement of Comparison of Budget and Actual Amounts for disclosure. 
y GRAP 103: Heritage Assets 01 April 2012 The standard will not have a 
material impact on the annual financial statements. 
y GRAP 21: Impairment of non-cash-generating assets 01 April 2012 Significant impact due to 
valuation of assets. 
y GRAP 26: Impairment of cash-generating assets 01 April 2012 Significant impact due to 
valuation of assets. 
y GRAP 104: Financial Instruments 01 April 2012 There will be significant 
changes. This main changes relates to the classification of the different categories of financial instruments and the changes in 
provision for impairment. Refer to note 4,5,6 and 7. 

2.2 Standards and interpretations issued, but not yet effective 

The economic entity has not applied the following standards and interpretations, which have been published and are 
mandatory for the economic entity‟s accounting periods beginning on or after 01 July 2013 or later periods: 

Standard/ Interpretation: 

y GRAP 18: Segment Reporting 

Effective date: 
Years beginning on or after 

01 April 2013 

Expected impact: 

 
 
It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a material 
impact on the annual 
financial statements. This is 
due to the fact that if 
consolidated financial 
statements is prepared, 
segment reporting only 
needs to be applied to the 
consolidated set of financial 
statements. 
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2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

y GRAP 25: Employee benefits 01 April 2013 The most significant impact 
of the standard relates to actuarial gains and losses that may now only be recognised in full in the year that it arises (no more 
options). 
y GRAP 105: Transfers of functions between entities under 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
common control standard will have a 
material impact on the annual financial statements. A transfer of functions between entities under common control is not 
expected in the near future. 
y GRAP 106: Transfers of functions between entities not 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
under common control standard will have a 
material impact on the annual financial statements. A transfer of functions between entities under common control is not 
expected in the near future. 
y GRAP 107: Mergers 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a material impact on the annual financial statements. A Merger is not expected in the near future. 
y GRAP 20: Related parties 01 April 2013 The main impact is 
expected to affect the disclosure of a more disaggregrated councillor remuneration. 
y IGRAP 11: Consolidation – Special purpose entities 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a material impact on the annual financial statements. Management is not aware of any Special purpose entities 
that will be effected by the Standard. 
y IGRAP 12: Jointly controlled entities – Non-monetary 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
contributions by ventures standard will have a 
material impact on the annual financial statements. Management is not aware of any Jointly controlled entities that will be effected 
by the Standard. 
y GRAP 6 (as revised 2010): Consolidated and Separate 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the 
Financial Statements standard will have a 
material impact on the annual financial statements. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

 
y GRAP 8 (as revised 2010): Interests in Joint Ventures 01 April 2014 

y GRAP 1 (as revised 2012): Presentation of Financial 
Statements 

01 April 2013 

y GRAP 3 (as revised 2012): Accounting Policies, Change in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors 

01 April 2013 

y GRAP 7 (as revised 2012): Investments in Associates 01 April 2013 

 
y GRAP 9 (as revised 2012): Revenue from Exchange 

Transactions 
01 April 2013 

y GRAP 12 (as revised 2012): Inventories 01 April 2013 

 
y GRAP 13 (as revised 2012): Leases 01 April 2013 

2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 

GRAP 7 (as revised 2010): Investments in Associates 01 April 2014 It is unlikely that the  standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. Management 
is not aware of any 
Investments in Associates 
that will be effected by the 
Standard. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. Management 
is not aware of any 
Interests in Joint Ventures 
that will be effected by the 
Standard. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. Management Standard. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
statements. The 
municipality does not own 
any biological assets. It is 
unlikely that the standard 
will have a material 
impact on the annual 
financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the 
standard will have a 
material impact on the 
annual financial 
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y GRAP 16 (as revised 2012): Investment Property 01 April 2013 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 

2. New standards and interpretations (continued) 
 

y GRAP 17 (as revised 2012): Property, Plant and Equipment 01 April 2013 

y GRAP 27 (as revised 2012): Agriculture (Replaces GRAP 01 April 2013 

 

101) 

 

y GRAP 31 (as revised 2012): Intangible Assets (Replaces 
GRAP 102) 

01 April 2013 

y IGRAP16: Intangible assets website costs 01 April 2013 

y IGRAP1 (as revised 2012):Applying the probability test on 
initial recognition of revenue 

01 April 2013 

 

The aggregate impact of the initial application of the statements and interpretations on the economic entity's consolidated 
financial statements is expected to be as follows: 

It is unlikely that the 

standard will have a 

material impact on the 

annual financial 

statements. 

It is unlikely that the 

standard will have a 

material impact on the 

annual financial statements. 

The municipality is not 

involved in agricultural 

activities and therefore this 

standard is not considered 

applicable. It is unlikely that 

the standard will have a 

material impact on the 

annual financial statements. 

It is unlikely that the 

standard will have a 

material impact on the 

annual financial 

statements. 

It is unlikely that the 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

3. Other financial assets 

At amortised cost 

African Bank Fixed Account 5,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 
The maturity date of the investment is 2013/07/02 and 
interest is earned at a rate of 5.25% per annum. 
Absa Bank Bank Fixed Account 5,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 
The maturity date of the investment is 2013/07/01 and 
interest is earned at a rate of 5.22% per annum. 
Standard Bank Fixed Account - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 
Investment matured during financial year. 
First National Bank Fixed Account 5,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 
The maturity date of the investment is 2013/07/02 and 
interest is earned at a rate of 5.22% per annum. 
Nedbank Fixed Account 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 - 

The maturity date of the investment is 2013/07/02 and 
interest is earned at a rate of 5.25% per annum. 

    

 25,000,000 16,000,000 25,000,000 16,000,000 

Current assets 

Held to maturity 25,000,000 16,000,000 25,000,000 16,000,000 

Fair value information 
    

 

Fair values are determined annually at statement of financial position date. 

Fair values hierarchy of financial assets at fair value through surplus or deficit 

For financial assets recognised at fair value, disclosure is required of a fair value hierarchy which reflects the significance of the 
inputs used to make the measurements.The fair value hierarchy have the following levels: 

Level 1 represents those assets which are measured using unadjusted quoted prices in active markets for identical assets. 

Level 2 applies inputs other than quoted prices that are observable for the assets either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly (i.e. 
derived from prices). 

Levele 3 applies inputs which are not based on observable market data. 

Level 2 

African Bank Fixed Deposit 5,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 
Absa Bank Fixed Deposit 5,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 
Standard Bank Fixed deposit - 4,000,000 - 4,000,000 
First National Bank Fixed deposit 5,000,000 4,000,000 5,000,000 4,000,000 

Nedbank fixed deposit 10,000,000 - 10,000,000 - 

 25,000,000 16,000,000 25,000,000 16,000,000 

Renegotiated terms 
    

 

None of the financial assets that are fully performing have been renegotiated in the last year. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

4. Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 

Deposits 4,700 4,700 4,700 4,700 
Payments made in Advance 1,008 1,008 1,008 1,008 
Sundry Debtors 13,916,795 12,991,417 13,916,795 12,990,585 

Provision for impairment (12,370,047) (12,370,047) (12,370,047) (12,370,047) 

 1,552,456 627,078 1,552,456 626,246 

Included in Other receivables are irregular expenditure incurred during the year. Refer to note 39. 

10,347,575 2,398,239 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 10,643,539 2,398,239  

The average credit period for Sundry Debtors is more than 120 days. No interest is charged for the first 30 days form the date of 
the invoice. Thereafter interest is charged at the prime rate, charged by the municipality`s banker, plus one percent per annum on 
the outstanding balance. The municipality strictly enforces its approved credit control policy to ensure the recovery of Sundry 
Debtors. 

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Sundry Debtors are approximate their fair 
values. 

The fair value of Sundry Debtors was determined after considering the standard terms and conditions of agreements entered into 
between the municipality and National/Provincial Departments as well as Sundry Debtors. The current payment ratio`s of Sundry 
Debtors were also taken into account for fair value determination 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions past due but not impaired 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions which are less than 3 months past due are not considered to be impaired. At 
30 June 2013, R 10,643,539 (2012: R 2,398,239) were past due but not impaired. 

The ageing of amounts past due but not impaired is as follows: 

0 - 30 Days 12,105 - 12,105 - 

+ 120 Days 10,335,470 2,398,239 10,335,470 2,398,239 

 10,347,575 2,398,239 10,347,575 2,398,239 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions impaired 
    

 

As of 30 June 2013, other receivables from non-exchange transactions of R 12,025,682 (: R 10,592,346) were impaired and 
provided for. 

The fair value of the provision was R 12,025,682 as of 30 June 2013 (2012: R 10,592,346). 

The ageing of these amounts are as follows: 

3to6months - 251,600 - 251,600 
Over 6 months 10,025,682 10,340,746 12,025,682 10,340,746 

Reconciliation of provision for impairment of other receivables from non-exchange transactions 

10,047,791 Opening balance 10,592,346 10,047,791 10,592,346 
Provision for impairment 1,433,336 7,468,582 1,441,700 7,468,582 

Amounts written off as uncollectible - (6,924,027) - (6,924,027) 

 12,025,682 10,592,346 12,034,046 10,592,346 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

4. Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (continued) 

The Provision for impairment was calculated after grouping all the financial assets of similar nature and risk ratings and by 
calculating the historical payment rations for the groupings an by assuming that the future payment rations would be similar to the 
historical payment ratios. 

The Provision for Impairment on the Sundry Debtors (loans and receivables) exists predominantly due to the possibility that 
these debts will not be recovered. Loans and receivables were assessed individually and grouped together at the Statement of 
Financial Position as financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assessed for impairment. 

In determining the recoverability of a Debtor, the municipality considers any changes in the credit quality of the Debtor form the date 
credit was initially granted up to the reporting date. Management believe that there is no further credit provision required in excess 
of the Provision for Impairment. 

The creation and release of provision for impaired receivables have been included in operating expenses in surplus or deficit. 
Amounts charged to the allowance account are generally written off when there is no expectation of recovering additional cash. 

5. VAT receivable VAT - 329,018 4,750 1,129,353 

VAT is payable to the South African Revenue Service on the receipt basis. Only when payment is made to creditors, Input VAT is 
claimed from the South African Revenue Service. 

No interest is payable to the South African Revenue Service if the VAT is paid over timeously, but interest for late payments is 
charged according to the South African Revenue Service`s policies. The municipality has financial risk policies in place to 
ensure that payments are affected before the due date. 

6. Cash and cash equivalents 

Cash and cash equivalents consist of: 

Cash on hand 2,909 2,459 2,200 2,200 
Bank balances 15,026,301 15,122,320 14,979,727 15,113,096 

Short-term deposits 2,638,533 152,830 - - 

 17,667,743 15,277,609 14,981,927 15,115,29
6  

For the purposes of the Statement of Financial Position and the Cash Flow Statement, Cash and Cash Equivalents include 
Cash on hand, Cash in Banks and Investments in Money Market Instruments, net of outstanding Bank Overdrafts. 

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of Bank balances, Cash and Cash equivalents 
recorded at amortised costs in the Annual Financial statements approximate their fair values. 

The fair value of Bank balances, Cash and Cash equivalents was determined after considering the standard terms and 
conditions of agreements entered into between the municipality and financial institutions. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
 Economic entity Controlling entity  

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

6. Cash and cash equivalents (continued) 

The municipality had the following bank accounts 

Cash book balances 

  

Account number/ description Bank statement balances 
30 June 2013 30 June 2012 30 June 2013 30 June 2012 

ABSA Bank - Cheque Account - 4,041,011 5,579,247 4,041,011 5,113,096 
1340000117    
Nedbank - Call Account - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 
000001    
Nedbank - Call Account - - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 
000002    
Standard Bank - Call Account - 5,000,000 - 5,000,000 - 
9275618908    
ABSA Bank - Call Account - 5,938,716 - 5,938,716 - 
9275618908    

Cash on hand 2,200 2,200 2,200 2,200 

Total 14,981,927 15,581,447 14,981,927 15,115,296  

7. Property, plant and equipment 

 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Economic entity- 2013 

Economic entity 

Land 

Furniture and fixtures 

Office equipment 

IT equipment 

Other property, plant and 

equipment 

Total 

Controlling entity 

Land 

  2013  2012 

 

Cost/ 

Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 

depreciation 

and 

Cost/ 

Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 

depreciation 

and 

 2,870,000 - 2,870,000 2,870,000 - 2,870,000 

 149,334 (148,334) 1,000 149,334 (137,751) 11,583 
 89,881 (49,191) 40,690 71,548 (41,596) 29,952 
 67,384 (59,949) 7,435 67,384 (50,038) 17,346 

 88,567,881 (17,715,315) 70,852,566 79,281,513 (3,418,348) 75,863,165 

 91,744,480 (17,972,789) 73,771,691 82,439,779 (3,647,733) 78,792,046 

     

  2013  2012 

 

Cost/ 

Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 

depreciation 

and 

Cost/ 

Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 

depreciation 

and 

 2,870,000 - 2,870,000 2,870,000 - 2,870,000 

 73,305,076 (10,382,026) 62,923,050 73,256,436 (7,950,153) 65,306,283 

 1,424,480 (395,120) 1,029,360 1,424,480 (304,635) 1,119,845 
 13,838,325 (6,938,170) 6,900,155 4,600,597 4,836,440 9,437,037 

 91,437,881 (17,715,316) 73,722,565 82,151,513 (3,418,348) 78,733,165 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand  2013 2012 2013 2012 

7. Property, plant and equipment (continued) 

Land 

Opening 
balance 

2,870,000 

Addition
s 

- 

Disposals 

- 

Depreciati
on 

- 

Total 

2,870,000 
Furniture and fixtures 11,583 - - (10,583) 1,000 

Office equipment 29,952 18,334 - (7,596) 40,690 

Other property, plant and equipment 75,863,165 2,727,454 (1,208,131) (6,529,922) 70,852,566 

IT equipment 17,346 - - (9,911) 7,435 

 78,792,046 2,745,788 (1,208,131) (6,558,012) 73,771,691 
 

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Economic entity - 2012 

 
Opening 
balance 

Additions Disposals Classified as 
held for sale 

Transfers Depreciation Total 

Land 2,870,000 - - - - - 2,870,00 
Buildings 67,412,336 262,887 - - 111,148 (2,480,088) 65,306,28 

Motor vehicles 4,443,450 200,000 (240,069) (1,112,894) (1,961,834) (208,808) 1,119,84 

Office equipment 15,039,964 4,225,122 (388,634) (6,547,552) 1,846,834 (4,679,814) 9,495,92 

 89,765,750 4,688,009 (628,703) (7,660,446) (3,852) (7,368,710) 78,792,048  

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Controlling entity -2013 

 
Opening 
balance 

Additions Disposals Depreciation Total 

Land 2,870,000 - - - 2,870,000 
Motor vehicles 1,119,845 200,000 (200,000) (90,485) 1,029,360 
Building 65,306,283 48,640 - (2,431,873) 62,923,050 

Other equipment 9,437,037 2,478,814 (1,008,131) (4,007,564) 6,900,156 

 78,733,165 2,727,454 (1,208,131) (6,529,922) 73,722,566  

Reconciliation of property, plant and equipment - Controlling entity - 2012 

 
Opening 
balance 

Additions Disposals Classified as 
held for sale 

Transfers Depreciation Total 

Land 2,870,000 - - - - - 2,870,000 
Buildings 67,412,336 262,887 - - 111,148 (2,480,088) 65,306,283 
Motor vehicles 4,443,450 200,000 (240,069) (1,112,894) (1,961,834) (208,808) 1,119,845 

Office equipment 14,998,160 4,180,823 (388,634) (6,547,552) 1,846,834 (4,652,593) 9,437,038 

 89,723,946 4,643,710 (628,703) (7,660,446) (3,852) (7,341,489) 78,733,166  

A register containing the information required by section 63 of the Municipal Finance Management Act is available for 
inspection at the registered office of the municipality. 

Pledged as security 

No assets have been pledged as security. 

The municipality received an amount of R63 762,95 with regards to an insurance claim on a server damaged by lightning. The 
amount is included in the surplus. 

In the prior period the municipality transferred the yellow fleet assets to Matjhabeng Local Municipality with effect from 01 July 
2012. The disposal was completed by the 01/07/2012 
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Cost / 
Valuation Accumulated Carrying value 

amortisation 
and 
accumulated impairment 

Cost / 
Valuation Accumulated Carrying value 

amortisation 
and 

accumulated impairment 

Computer software 6,514,593 (3,394,345) 3,120,248 6,514,594 (1,702,428) 4,812,166 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Economic entity- 2013 

Opening Disposals Amortisation Total 
balance 

Computer software, internally generated 4,812,166 (1,076,734) (615,184) 3,120,248 
Computer software, other 15,203 - (7,953) 7,250 

4,827,369 (1,076,734) (623,137) 3,127,498 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Economic entity - 2012 

Opening Additions Transfers Amortisation Total 
balance 

Computer software, internally generated 915,545 4,507,577 3,848 (614,804) 4,812,166 
Computer software, other 17,867 4,371 - (7,035) 15,203 

933,412 4,511,948 3,848 (621,839) 4,827,369 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity -2013 

Opening Disposals Amortisation Total 
balance 

Computer software 4,812,166 (1,076,734) (615,184) 3,120,248 

Reconciliation of intangible assets - Controlling entity - 2012 

Opening Additions Transfers Amortisation Total 
balance 

Computer software 915,545 4,507,577 3,848 (614,804) 4,812,166 

Pledged as security 

No Intangible assets had been pledged as security for any liabilities of the municipality. 

 Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

8. Intangible assets 

Economic entity 2013 2012 

 

Cost / 

Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 

amortisation 

and 

Cost / 

Valuation 

Accumulated Carrying value 

amortisation 

and 

 
6,514,593 

27,281 

(3,394,345) 

(20,031) 

3,120,248 

7,250 

6,514,594 

27,281 

(1,702,428) 

(12,078) 

4,812,166 

15,203 

 6,541,874 (3,414,376) 3,127,498 6,541,875 (1,714,506) 4,827,369 

       

  2013   2012  

 

Computer software, internally 

generated 

Computer software, other 

Total 
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8.  Intangible assets (continued) 

Restricted title 

No restrictions apply to any of the Intangible Assets of the municipality 

Other information 

The amortisation has been included in the line item "Depreciation and Amortisation" in the Statement of Financial Performance. 

Refer to Appendix B for more detail on Intangible Assets. 

9.  Financial assets by category 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

Controlling entity- 2013 

 

Loans and 
receivables 

Held to 
maturity 

investments 

Fair value 
through 

surplus or 
deficit - 

designated 

Total 

Other receivables from non exchange transactions 1,552,456 - - 1,552,456 
Cash and cash equivalents - - 14,981,927 14,981,927 
Other financial assets - 25,000,000 - 25,000,000 
Investment in subsidiary - - 100 100 

VAT Receivable 4,750 - - 4,750 

 1,557,206 25,000,000 14,982,027 41,539,233 

Controlling entity - 2012 
    

 

 

Loans and 
receivables 

Held to 
maturity 

investments 

Fair value 
through 

surplus or 
deficit - 

designated 

Total 

Other receivables from non exchange transactions 626,246 - - 626,246 
Cash and cash equivalents - - 15,115,296 15,115,296 
Other financial assets - 16,000,000 - 16,000,000 
Investment in subsidiary - - 100 100 

VAT Receivable 1,129,353 - - 1,129,353 

 1,755,599 16,000,000 15,115,396 32,870,995 

10. Other financial liabilities 

At amortised cost 

DBSA Loan (61003236) 2,375,098 2,532,903 2,375,098 2,532,903 
DBSA Loan (61003237) 1,820,062 1,940,990 1,820,062 1,940,990 
DBSA Loan (61004020) (20) 432,793 (20) 432,793 
DBSA Loan (61001256) 332,468 369,301 332,468 369,301 
DBSA Loan (61001257) 81,549 91,898 81,549 91,898 
DBSA Loan (61001258) 419,859 473,142 419,859 473,142 
DBSA Loan (61001259) 851,609 945,955 851,609 945,955 
DBSA Loan (61001299) 2,149,970 2,422,817 2,149,970 2,422,817 

Concessionary loans received 8,514,592 9,128,435 8,514,592 9,128,435 

 16,545,187 18,338,234 16,545,187 18,338,234 
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Total other financial liabilities 16,545,187 18,338,234 16,545,187 18,338,234 

These loans are from The Development Bank of South Africa and repayments are made on a six monthly 
basis. The last loan will be redeemed at 31 December 2020 and the loans bear interest between 10% and 16.5%. 

The entity did not default on any of the other financial liabilities, whether it be on the capital or the interest portions, and none of the 
terms attached to the other financial liabilities were renegotiated. Refer to Appendix B for further detail. 

Non-current liabilities 

Atamortised cost 14,960,102 16,545,187 14,960,102 16,545,187 

Current liabilities 

At amortised cost 1,585,085 1,793,047 1,585,085 1,793,047 

Financial liabilities at amortised cost  

- 16,545,187 18,338,234 

Fair values of financial liabilities measured or disclosed at amortised cost 

Long term loans DBSA 
- 

11. Payables from exchange transactions 

Trade payables 1,042,971 1,341,801 1,042,967 1,341,802 
Salaries and wages 13,313 13,313 - - 
Annual Bonus accrued 1,114,790 710,963 1,064,010 660,280 

Accrued leave pay 4,329,311 2,786,098 4,265,028 2,685,506 

Retention Creditors 87,293 87,293 87,293 87,293 

Accrued Expenses 64,943 122,464 - - 

 6,652,621 5,061,932 6,459,298 4,774,881  

The average credit period on purchases is 30 days from the receipt of the invoice, as determined by the MFMA. No interest is 
charged for the first 30 days from the date of receipt of the invoice. Thereafter interest is charged in accordance with the credit 
policies of the various individual creditors that the municipality deals with. The municipality has financial risk policies in place to 
ensure that all payables are paid within the credit timeframe. 

The management of the municipality is of the opinion that the carrying value of payables under exchange transactions 
approximate their fair values. 

The fair value of payables under exchange transactions was determined after consideration the standard terms and conditions of 
agreements entered into between the municipality and other parties. 

The leave accrual accrues to the staff of the municipality on an annual basis, subject to certain conditions. The accrual is an 
estimate of the amount due at the reporting date. 
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12. Employee benefit obligations 

Defined benefit plan 

The plan is a post employment medical benefit plan. 

Post retirement medical aid plan 

The municipality provides certain post-retirement health care benefits by finding the medical aid contributions of qualifying retired 
members of the municipality. According to the rules of the Medical Aid Funds, with which the municipality is associated, a member 
(who is on the current Conditions of Service) is entitled to remain a continued member of such medical aid fund on retirement, in 
which case the municipality is liable for a certain portion of the medical aid membership fee. The municipality operates as 
unfunded defined benefit plan for these qualifying employees. No other post-retirement benefits are provided to these 
employees. 

The most recent actuarial valuations of plan assets and the present value of the defined benefit obligation were carried out at 30 
June 2013 by Arch Actuaries. Fellow of the Faculty of Actuaries in the United Kingdom. The present value of the defined 
benefit obligation, and the related current service cost and past service cost, were measured using the Projected Unit Credit 
Method. 

The municipality makes monthly contributions for health care arrangements to the following Medical Aid Schemes: 

- Bonitas 
- Hosmed 

- Keyhealth - LA Health 
- Samwumed 

The members of the Post - employment Health Care Benefit Plan are made up as follows: In - 
service Members (Employees ): 97 (2012: 79) 
In - service Members ( Employees ) - Non - Members: 13 (2012: 7) 
Continuation Members (Retirees, widowers and orphans): 1 (2012:1) 

The Current-service Cost for the year ending 30 June 2012 is estimated to be R438, 517 whereas the cost for the ensuring year 
is estimated to be R637, 084. 

The amounts recognised in the statement of financial position are as follows: 

Carrying value 

Present value of the defined benefit obligation-wholly (5,522,750) (4,744,518) (5,522,750) (4,744,518) 

unfunded 
Contribution to provision (82,210) (778,232) (82,210) (778,232) 

 (5,604,960) (5,522,750) (5,604,960) (5,522,750) 

Non-current liabilities (5,584,584) (5,504,150) (5,584,584) (5,504,150) 

Transfer to current provisions (20,376) (18,600) (20,376) (18,600) 

 (5,604,960) (5,522,750) (5,604,960) (5,522,750) 

The Liability in respect of past service has been 
estimated as follows: 

In - service (Employees) Members 5,178,211 5,230,721 5,178,211 5,230,721 
In - service (Employees) Non Members 131,652 - 131,652 - 

Continuation Members 195,097 292,029 195,097 292,029 

 5,504,960 5,522,750 5,504,960 5,522,750 
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12. Employee benefit obligations (continued) 

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation are as follows:    

Balance at the beginning of the year 5,522,750 4,744,518 5,522,750 4,744,518 
Benefits paid (18,600) (16,608) (18,600) (16,608) 

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial 100,810 
performance 

794,840 100,810 794,840 

5,604,960 5,522,750 5,604,960 5,522,750 

Net expense recognised in the statement of financial performance 
    

Current service cost 438,517 385,687 438,517 385,687 
Interest cost 485,730 386,005 485,730 386,005 

Actuarial (gains) losses (823,437) 23,148 (823,437) 23,148 

 100,810 794,840 100,810 794,840 

Calculation of actuarial gains and losses 
    

Actuarial (gains) losses – Obligation (823,437) 23,148 (823,437) 23,148 

Key assumptions used 

Assumptions used at the reporting date: 

    

Discount rates used 9.78 % 8.81 % 9.78 % 8.81 % 
Health Care Cost Inflation Rate 8.09 % 7.59 % 8.09 % 7.59 % 

Net Effective Discount Rate 

Other assumptions 

1.56 % 1.14% 1.56 % 1.14% 

 

 
One One 
percentage percentage 

   

 
point increase point 

decrease 
   

Expected Retirement Age - Females 65 65 65 65 

Expected Retirement Age - Males 

Amounts for the current and previous two years are as follows: 

65 65 65 65 

 

 
2013 

R 
2012 

R 
2011 

R 

Defined benefit obligation 5,604,960 5,522,750 4,744,518 

13. Receivables from exchange transactions 

Trade debtors 

 

17,732 - - - 
Employee costs in advance  - 910 - - 

Other receivables  - 9,980 - - 

  17,732 10,890 - - 
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14. Discontinued operations or disposal groups or non-current assets held for sale 

The economic entity has decided to discontinue its operations in (state entity or details). The assets and liabilities of the 
disposal group are set out below. 

The decision was made by the accounting officer to discontinue these operations due the lack of return on investment. 

The non-current assets are to be sold piecemeal. 

The disposal are expected to be completed by. 

Transitional provision 

In accordance with its transitional provision as per Directive 2 of the GRAP Reporting Framework, the economic entity need not 
comply with the standard on Non-current Assets held for Sale and Discontinued Operations, until such time as the measurement 
period in the transitional provision for any of the following Standards of GRAP have expire: 
y Construction Contracts 
y Inventories 
y Investment Property 
y Property Plant and Equipments 
y Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets 
y Agriculture 
y Intangible Assets 
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15. Provisions 

Reconciliation of provisions - Economic entity- 2013 

Performance bonusses 

  

Opening 
Balance 

381,341 

Total 

381,341 

Reconciliation of provisions - Economic entity - 2012 

Performance bonusses 

 
Opening 
Balance 

434,588 

Additions / 
reductions 

(53,247) 

Total 

381,341 

Reconciliation of provisions - Controlling entity -2013 

Performance bonuses 

  
Opening 

Balance 

381,341 

Total 

381,341 

   381,341 381,341 

Reconciliation of provisions - Controlling entity - 2012 

Performance bonusses 

 
Opening 
Balance 

434,588 

Additions / 
Reductions 

(53,247) 

Total 

381,341  

Performance Bonusses: 
Performance bonusses accrue to senior managers on a annual basis, subject to certain conditions. The provision is an estimate 
of the amount due at the reporting date and is dependent on the favourable performance of senior managers having met agreed 
conditions. The balance of R381, 341 includes the performance bonusses 2013 not paid to senior managers. The performance 
bonuses are expected to be paid in the next financial reporting period. There is no expected reimbursement from the provision. 

The expected cash outflow of the performance bonus is within the next financial year dependent on the outcome of the 
performance assessment for the individual. 

There is no expected re imbursement amounts from this provision. 
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Operating leases payments represent rentals payable by the entity for leasing of multi function photocopy machines. Leases are 
negotiated for a period of 3 years. No sublease contracts exists and no contingent rent is payable for the reporting period. The 
lease contracts exists and no contingent rent is payable for the reporting period. The lease agreements do not have escalations 
and there are no renewal and/or purchase options. 

 2013 2012 2013 2012 

- - 231,272 - 

- - 462,545 - 

- - 693,817 - 
- - - - 

- - - - 
 

Figures in Rand 

16. Operating lease obligation 

Minimum lease payments due 

within one year 
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17. Long-term service awards 

Long-term service awards 2,147,003 1,592,048 2,147,003 1,592,048 
Transfer/ reduction of provision (324,791) 265,418 (324,791) 265,418 

Short-term portion - 289,537 - 289,537 

 1,822,212 2,147,003 1,822,212 2,147,003  

The municipality operates as unfunded deficit benefit plan for all its employees. Under the plan, a Long-service award is 
payable and extra leave is accrued after 5 years of continuous service and every 5 years thereafter to employees, from 10 
years of service to 45 years of service. 

This is the present value of the total Long-Term Service Awards expected to become payable under the employer‟s current 
arrangements and based on the assumptions made. This may be regarded as the amount of money that should be set aside in 
present-day terms to cover all expected Long-Term Service Awards for current employees. 

The most recent actuarial valuations on the Long-Term Service Awards were carried out at 30 June 2013 by Mr C Weiss, 
Fellow of the Actuarial Society of South Africa. There is no expected reimbursement from the provision. 

Total long service award liability: This is the present value of the total LSA expected to become payable under the employer‟s 
current arrangements and based on the assumptions made. This may be regarded as the amount of money that should be set 
aside in present-day terms to cover all expected LSA for current employees. 

In estimating the unfunded liability for LSA of the Municipality a number of actuarial assumptions are required. The 
IAS19/GRAP25 Statement places the responsibility on management to set these assumptions, as guided by the principles set 
out in the Statement and in discussion with the actuary. 

The following key assumptions were used: 

Key financial assumptions: 

Discount Rate - 7.13% 
General Salary Inflation (long-term) - 6.51% 
Net effective discount rate - 0.58% 

Key demographic assumptions: 

Average retirement age - 65 years 
Mortality during employment - SA85-90 
Withdrawal from service (sample annual rates): 
Age 20 : 24% Female; 16% Male 
Age 30: 15% Female; 10% Male 
Age 40: 6% Female; 6% Male 
Age 50: 2% Female; 2% Male 
Age 55: 0% Female; 0% Male 
 
There is no expected re imbursement amounts from this provision. 
 
18. Deferred revenue 

Deferred revenue 1,200,000 - - - 

19. Current tax payable (receivable) Taxation payable 771,959 771,959 - - 

The taxation payable is a result of SARS that incorrectly assessed the municipal entity and therefore the amount shows to be 
payable. A dispute has been done, but it has not yet been resolved with SARS. 
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20. VAT payable Tax refunds payables 989,870 - - - 

21. Financial liabilities by category 

The accounting policies for financial instruments have been applied to the line items below: 

Controlling entity- 2013 

Financial Total 
liabilities at 
amortised 
cost 

Other financial liabilities 
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions 

Controlling entity - 2012   

16,545,187 
6,652,621 

16,545,187 
6,652,621 

23,197,808 23,197,808 

Financial 
liabilities at 
amortised 

cost 

Total 

Other financial liabilities   18,338,234 18,338,234 
Trade and other payables from exchange transactions   5,061,932 5,061,932 

   23,400,166 23,400,166 

22. Revenue 

Interest received (trading) 856,289 1,133,832 769,874 1,034,111 
Other income 500,035 323,471 500,035 323,471 
Interest received - investment 2,425,189 2,877,092 2,425,189 2,877,092 

Government grants & subsidies 102,491,967 96,214,296 99,930,801 96,214,296 

 106,273,480 100,548,691 103,625,899 100,448,970 

The amount included in revenue arising from 
exchange transactions are as follows: 

Interest received (trading) 856,289 1,133,832 769,874 1,034,111 
Other income 500,035 323,471 - - 

Interest received - investment 2,425,189 2,877,092 - - 

 3,781,513 4,334,395 769,874 1,034,111 

The amount included in revenue arising from non- 
exchange transactions is as follows: 
Taxation revenue 
Transfer revenue 

Other income 102,491,967 96,214,296 500,035 323,471 
Interest received - investment - - 2,425,189 2,877,092 

Government grants and subsidies - - 99,930,801 96,214,296 

 102,491,967 96,214,296 102,856,025 99,414,859 
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23. Government grants and subsidies 

Grants 

Financial Management Grant 1,307,681 1,253,296 1,307,681 
EPWP Incentive Grant 1,000,000 436,000 1,000,000 
Municipal Service Improvement Programme Grant 1,092,159 790,000 1,092,159 
Levy Replacement (Transitional) Grant 73,961,934 71,828,000 73,961,934 

District Aid Council Grant (7,255) - (7,255) 

Sport and Recreation Grant (573,784) - (573,784) 
Equitable share 23,150,066 21,907,000 23,150,066 

IDC Grant 2,561,166 - - 

 102,491,967 96,214,296 99,930,801 

Equitable Share 

Current-year receipts 23,150,066 21,907,000 23,150,066 

Amount transferred to revenue (23,150,066) (21,907,000) (23,150,066) 

 - - - 
 

In terms of the Constitution, this grant is used to subsidise the provision of basic services to indigent community members. 

Levy Replacement (Transitional) Grant 

Current-year receipts 73,961,934 71,828,000 73,961,934 

Amount transferred to revenue (73,961,934) (71,828,000) (73,961,934) 

 - - - 
 

Levy Replacement (Transitional) Grant is a operational grant which is used by the municipality on its own discretion, which is 
mainly to fund its operational activities. 

EPWP Incentive Grant 

Current-year receipts 1,000,000 436,000 1,000,000 

Amount transferred to revenue (1,000,000) (436,000) (1,000,000) 

 - - - 

EPWP is a operational grant which is used by the municipality on its own discretion. 

24,968 - 

Municipal Service Improvement Programme Grant 

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 
Current-year receipts 1,000,000 790,000 1,000,000 

Amount transferred to revenue (1,000,000) (814,968) (1,000,000) 

 - - - 
 

2012 

1,253,296 
436,000 
790,000 

71,828,000 
- 
- 

21,907,000 
- 

96,214,296 

21,907,000 
(21,907,000) 

- 

71,828,000 
(71,828,000) 

- 

436,000 
(436,000) 

- 

24,968 
790,000 
(814,968) 

- 
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23. Government grants and subsidies (continued) 

Financial Management Grant 

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 60,977 - 60,977 
Current-year receipts 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 1,250,000 

Conditions met - transferred to revenue (1,250,000) (1,310,977) (1,250,000) (1,310,977) 

 - - - - 

Sport and Recreation Grant 

Balance unspent at beginning of year - 573,783 - 573,783 

Transferred - (573,783) - (573,783) 

 - - - - 
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24. General expenses 

Accounting fees 121,456 218,710 - - 
Advertising 494,776 426,565 216,309 328,318 
Agriculture project 1,242,050 - 1,242,050 - 

Arts and Culture expenses 640,175 199,100 640,175 199,100 
Auditors remuneration 1,885,160 2,397,733 1,720,781 2,055,570 
Bank charges 71,341 84,795 63,098 71,741 
Branding of the municipality 71,650 588,030 71,650 588,030 
Bursaries 595,593 785,348 595,593 785,348 
Campaigns 568,950 2,101,771 568,950 2,101,771 
Capacity development programmes 973,785 790,000 973,785 790,000 
Children`s Programme 285,026 362,005 285,026 362,005 
Cleaning 117,643 63,502 114,929 62,424 
Coffin making project - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000 
Computer expenses 1,960 1,089 - - 
Congress and delegations - 125,421 - - 
Consulting Project Research - 1,605,586 - - 
EPWP project 999,258 - 999,258 - 
Educational project 541,722 - 541,722 - 

Electricity 320,693 247,078 320,693 247,078 
Entertainment 576,255 430,191 575,755 430,191 
Environmental development 316,486 362,928 316,486 362,928 
Festivals 3,254,386 1,688,011 3,254,386 1,688,011 
Financial Management Reforms 1,232,125 1,253,296 1,232,125 1,253,296 
Fines and penalties - 17,314 - - 

Fuel 320,571 244,073 320,571 244,073 
Gender Disability 43,850 491,701 43,850 491,701 
Grant in aid 1,302,611 1,377,910 1,302,611 1,377,910 
Insurance 136,496 296,639 134,203 296,639 
Internet expenses 228,206 237,790 228,206 237,790 
LED Development 500,000 199,525 500,000 199,525 
Lease Payments 348,063 122,954 212,000 - 

Licence Fees 264,882 290,324 264,882 290,324 
Magazines, books and periodicals 70,410 76,096 70,410 76,096 
Membership Fees 479,063 329,154 479,063 329,154 
Moral Regenertion 196,820 1,698,580 196,820 1,698,580 
OR Tambo Games 500,000 647,502 500,000 647,502 
Other expenses 1,452,609 2,366,857 1,452,609 2,366,857 
PPP (Call Centre) 959,991 771,930 959,991 771,930 
Postage and courier 836 673 - - 

Poverty alleviation 678,200 1,734,943 678,200 1,734,943 
Printing and stationary 465,670 392,947 442,720 377,899 
Project Development Cost 578,080 - - - 

Property Rates 50,092 49,053 50,092 49,053 
Refuse 9,412 9,026 9,412 9,026 
Research and development costs 400,000 - - - 

S & T allowance 76,327 57,401 - - 

Security (Guarding of municipal property) 58,133 187,571 58,133 187,571 

Services 7,264 - - - 
Sewerage and waste disposal 664 629 664 629 
Skills development Levy 372,230 320,865 372,230 320,865 
Social Initiatives 35,000 57,840 - - 
Staff Welfare 10,394 13,714 - - 

Telephone and fax 523,752 763,828 472,332 712,426 
Tourism development 728,174 2,580,302 728,174 2,580,302 

Training 2,622,845 2,566,523 2,620,412 2,510,053 
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Transport and freight 3,590 250 - - 

Travelling 279,210 182,527 279,210 182,527 

Women & children 370,000 - 370,000 - 
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24. General expenses (continued) 

Youth development 1,029,858 2,866,069 1,029,858 2,866,069 

 29,413,793 35,683,669 27,509,424 32,885,255 
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25. Employee related costs 

Basic 28,755,260 25,163,371 27,132,125 23,216,419 
Cell phone allowance 274,413 - 274,413 - 
Bonus 2,488,472 1,380,840 2,410,245 1,380,840 
Medical aid - company contributions 2,483,786 2,143,114 2,401,277 2,143,114 
UIF 199,516 165,531 188,267 156,926 
WCA 80,388 271,514 80,388 271,514 
SDL 16,346 17,989 - - 

Post-employment benefits (99,677) 1,449,357 (112,687) 1,371,295 
Overtime payments 413,061 482,947 407,238 482,947 
Travel allowances 4,695,541 5,085,950 4,695,541 5,085,950 
Housing benefits and allowances 340,315 243,733 340,315 243,733 
Standby Allowances 126,000 76,893 126,000 76,893 
Group Life Insurance 442,560 350,865 442,560 350,865 
Leave 2,199,612 1,714,138 2,235,921 1,632,790 
Executive Packages 2,769,675 2,849,691 2,769,675 2,849,691 
Contribution to Pension and Provident funds 4,816,904 3,976,374 4,816,904 3,976,374 

Board fees 139,632 - - - 

 50,141,804 45,372,307 48,208,182 43,239,351  

The remuneration of staff is within the upper limits of the SALGA Bargaining Council determinations. 

Remuneration of Municipal Manager - Me Aaron 

For the period July 2012 to November 2012 

Annual Remuneration 255,690 611,322 255,690 611,322 
Car Allowance 56,413 137,422 56,413 137,422 
Annual Bonus 51,128 51,138 51,138 51,138 
Performance Bonuses - 107,025 - 107,025 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 67,740 158,005 67,740 158,005 
Telephone allowance 4,000 2,400 4,000 2,400 

Housing allowance 25,000 59,000 25,000 59,000 

 459,981 1,126,312 459,981 1,126,312 

Remuneration of Acting Municipal Manager 

Mr Mthombeni 

For the period December2012 to June 2013 

Annual Remuneration 30,653 31,846 30,653 31,846 

Mr Pitso 

For the month of July 2013 

Annual Remuneration 4,127 - 4,127 - 
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Remuneration of the Acting Municipal Support Executive 

Annual Remuneration - 432,648 - 432,648 
Car Allowance - 36,054 - 36,054 

Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 116,237 - 116,237 

Housing allowance - 5,973 - 5,973 
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25. Employee related costs (continued) 

Car & travel allowance - 209,357 - 209,357 

Telephone allowance - 2,400 - 2,400 

- 802,669 - 802,669 
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25. Employee related costs (continued) 

Remuneration of Acting Chief Financial Officer - Mr Heunis 

For the period July 2012 to October 2012 

Performance Bonuses - 96,880 - 96,880 

Standby Allowance 32,258 120,000 32,258 120,000 

32,258 216,880 32,258 216,880 

Me Gqoli 

For the month of June 2013 

Standby Allowance 13,384 - 13,384 - 

Remuneration of Acting Manager Corporate Services - Mr C Peterson 

For the period July 2012 to December 2012 

Annual Remuneration - 339,545 - 339,545 
Car Allowance - 141,394 - 141,394 
Performance Bonuses - 74,331 - 74,331 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 103,761 - 103,761 
Annual bonus - 28,147 - 28,147 
Standby allowance 5,815 87,595 5,815 87,595 
Housing allowance - 5,973 - 5,973 

Telephone allowance - 1,500 - 1,500 

5,815 782,246 5,815 782,246 

Remuneration of Acting Manager Social and Health Services - Mr D Kirsten 

209,424 - 209,424 Annual Remuneration - 
Car Allowance - 91,022 - 91,022 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 70,124 - 70,124 
Standby Allowance 7,825 48,829 7,825 48,829 

Housing Allowance - 3,885 - 3,885 

7,825 423,284 7,825 423,284 

Remuneration of Manager Social Health Services - Me Aaron 

For the period July2012 to June 2013 

Annual Remuneration 520,000 133,973 520,000 133,973 
Car Allowance 142,907 129,685 142,907 129,685 
Performance Bonuses - 71,957 - 71,957 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 135,426 103,985 135,426 103,985 
Annual Bonus 37,695 15,374 37,695 15,374 
Housing Allowance 25,000 - 25,000 - 

Telephone Allowance 13,971 - 13,971 - 

874,999 454,974 874,999 454,974  

The Manager of Social Health Services was appointed on 1 February 2012. 
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25. Employee related costs (continued) Remuneration of Acting Manager Strategic Economic 

Development - Mr T Mafokane and Mr T Skele 

Annual Remuneration - 188,602 - 188,602 
Car Allowance - 81,761 - 81,761 

Performance Bonuses - 18,369 - 18,369 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds - 47,025 - 47,025 
Housing Allowance - 1,800 - 1,800 

Standby Allowance - 30,715 - 30,715 

- 368,272 - 368,272  

There was no Remuneration for the Acting Local Economic Development Manager for the year. 

Remuneration of Manager Strategic Economic Development - Mr Jonas 

For the period July2012 to June 2013 

Annual Remuneration 440,352 174,596 440,352 174,596 
Car Allowance 221,884 110,135 221,884 110,135 
Performance Bonuses - 12,776 - 12,776 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 51,684 7,302 51,684 7,302 

Housing Allowance 10,892 - 10,892 - 

 724,812 304,809 724,812 304,809 

Remuneration of Acting Social Services Strategic Executive Manager - Mr W Botes and Mr LTB Beukes 

- Standby Allowance 55,917 - 55,917 

Remuneration of Chief Financial Officer - Mr Pitso 

For the period October2012 to June 2013 

Annual Remuneration 393,107 - 393,107 - 
Car and Travel Allowance 113,078 - 113,078 - 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 92,379 - 92,379 - 
Housing Allowance 33,500 - 33,500 - 

Telephone Allowance 15,700 - 15,700 - 

 647,764 - 647,764 - 

26. Remuneration of councillors 

Executive Mayor 831,328 683,445 831,328 683,445 
Speaker 441,188 535,445 441,188 535,445 
Mayoral Committee Members 3,608,238 2,913,301 3,608,238 2,913,301 

Other Councillors 3,240,698 2,357,479 3,240,698 2,357,479 

 8,121,452 6,489,670 8,121,452 6,489,670 
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Executive Mayor - Councillor Leeto 

For the period July2012 to June 2013 

    



 

 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 

142 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

26. Remuneration of councillors (continued) 

Annual Remuneration 490,616 362,841 490,616 362,841 
Car and Travel Allowance 196,283 186,050 196,283 186,050 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 39,828 96,802 39,828 96,802 

Telephone Allowance 104,601 37,752 104,601 37,752 

 831,328 683,445 831,328 683,445 

Speaker 

Councillor Rubulana 

For the period July 2012 to October 2012 

Annual Remuneration 108,375 302,295 108,375 302,295 
Car and travel allowance 40,945 148,840 40,945 148,840 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 20,797 65,470 20,797 65,470 

Telephone Allowance 5,182 18,840 5,182 18,840 

 175,299 535,445 175,299 535,445 

Councillor Speelman 

For the period November2012 to June 2013 

Annual Remuneration 168,779 - 168,779 - 
Car and travel allowance 63,792 - 63,792 - 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 27,660 - 27,660 - 

Telephone Allowance 4,923 - 4,923 - 

 265,154 - 265,154 - 

Executive Members 

Annual Remuneration 2,169,658 1,534,892 2,169,658 1,534,892 
Car and travel allowance 868,373 834,478 868,373 834,478 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 464,995 446,738 464,995 446,738 

Telephone Allowance 105,212 97,193 105,212 97,193 

 3,608,238 2,913,301 3,608,238 2,913,301 

Other Councillors 

Annual Remuneration 1,770,769 1,082,505 1,770,769 1,082,505 
Car and Travel allowance 693,492 635,579 693,492 635,579 
Contributions to UIF, Medical and Pension Funds 342,219 318,606 342,219 318,606 
Telephone Allowance 126,960 116,607 126,960 116,697 
Sitting Allowance - 204,092 - 204,092 

Session Allowance 307,258 - 307,258 - 

 3,240,698 2,357,389 3,240,698 2,357,479  

The Salaries, allowances and benefits paid to all Councillors are not within the Remuneration of Public Office Act. Determination 
of upper limits salaries, allowances and benefits of different members of municipal councils are not within section 219 of the 
Constitution, read with the Remuneration of the Public Officer Bearers Act, however, this matter is receiving attention. 
Overpayment of Councillors on upper limits are included in the Irregular expenses and has been transferred to Sundry Debtors. 
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26. Remuneration of councillors (continued) In-

kind benefits 

The Executive Mayor, Speaker and Mayoral Committee Members are full-time. Each is provided with an office and secretarial 
support at Council`s cost. The Executive Mayor has the use of a council owned vehicle for official duties as well as two drivers. 

27. Repairs and Maintenance 

Repairs and Maintenance 438,906 1,575,118 438,257 1,575,052 

28. Debt impairment 

Impairment Losses Recognised on Sundry Debtors - 9,246,284 - 9,246,284 

29. Investment revenue 

Interest revenue 

Interest Received on Bank and Investment accounts 2,425,189 2,877,092 2,425,189 2,877,092 

30. Depreciation and amortisation 

Property, plant and equipment 7,181,150 7,990,142 7,145,106 7,956,294 

31. Finance costs 

Non-current borrowings 2,840,657 3,081,555 2,840,657 3,081,555 
Late payment of tax 7,653 3,526 - - 

Other interest paid - 25,167 - 25,167 

 2,848,310 3,110,248 2,840,657 3,106,722 

32. Auditors' remuneration 

Fees 1,885,160 2,397,733 1,720,781 2,055,570 

33. Transfers to local municipalities 

Expenditure during the year 1,950,000 5,965,522 1,950,000 5,965,522  

The municipality paid loan re-payments on behalf of Matjhabeng Local Municipality during the year. 
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34. Net cash flows from operating activities 

Surplus (deficit) 4,361,530 (18,947,681) 3,127,092 (16,078,185) 
Adjustments for: 

Depreciation and amortisation 7,181,150 7,990,142 7,145,106 7,956,294 
(Loss) gain on sale of assets and liabilities (67,977) 521,081 (67,977) 521,081 
Impairment deficit 4,185 407 4,185 - 
Debt impairment - 9,246,284 - - 

Movements in retirement benefit assets and liabilities 82,210 778,232 82,210 778,232 
Movements in provisions - 212,171 - 212,171 
Other non-cash items - 29,363 - (213,000) 
Changes in working capital: 

Receivables from exchange transactions (6,842) 6,683 - - 
Other receivables from non-exchange transactions (925,378) 5,692,874 (926,210) 5,682,260 
Consumer debtors - (9,246,691) - - 

Trade and other payables 1,742,571 (733,757) 1,684,420 (611,179) 
VAT 1,318,888 (114,073) 1,124,603 (114,073) 
Taxes and transfers payable (non exchange) (23,190) (394,602) - - 

Government grants received - - (815,630) (3,296) 

 13,667,147 (4,959,567) 11,357,799 (1,869,695) 

35. Commitments 

Capital and other expenditure 

Approved and contracted for 
y Professional Fees 1,404,725 1,856,942 677,975 1,790,942 

Operating leases - as lessee (expense) 

Minimum lease payments due 
- within one year 147,600 86,227 - - 

- in second to fifth year inclusive 104,800 - - - 

 252,400 86,227 - - 
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36. Contingencies 

Contingent liabilities 

5 (2011: 5) Current employees claiming long service 1,403,528 1,050,437 1,403,528 1,050,437 
bonus and leave and reinstatement of employee. 
Lejwe-le-Putswa Development Agency (Pty) Ltd - 310,240 - 310,240 
Wage curve dispute 2,674,906 - 2,674,906 - 

Dikgalolokwe CC 100,000 - 100,000 - 

 4,178,434 1,360,677 4,178,434 1,360,677 

Current employees claiming long service bonus and leave 
    

 

The case involves a former employees who are claiming long term benefits owed. 

The case involves a former employees who are claiming long term benefits owed. The employees were transferred from 
Matjhabeng Local Municipality and are claiming long term benefits owed to them under previous employment. One of the cases 
involves an employee claiming to be unfairly dismissed and to be reinstated. All these cases were won by the individuals but the 
Municipality has taken the matters to the Labour Court. 

Lejwe-le-Putswa Development Agency (Pty) Ltd 

Council accepted the liability for debts of Lejwe-le-Putswa Development Agency (Pty) Ltd. 

Wage Curve Dispute 

The Trade Union, IMATU, contested the implementation of a wage curve agreement in the Labour Court and the court ruled in 
favour of IMATU. The Employers Organisation, SALGA, resolved to take the ruling of the Labour Court on review. The effect of the 
ruling is a general 2% increase in remuneration as from October 2009. 

The municiaplity has formulated that the maximum effect if the remuneration is to be paid would be R2 674 906. 

Dikgalolokwe CC 

The case relates to a service provider that was overpaid and the matter was taken to court where it was ruled that the service 
provider must pay the municipality. There is however a low probability of recovery of funds. The municipality has disclosed the 
possible legal fees that could result. 

37. Related parties 

Relationships 

Me N.S. Leeto holds 50% shareholder 
Close family member of Ramasetlaoka Ou- Vier Segampu 
Related person - XJ Toki 

Related party balances 

Related party transactions 

Purchases from related parties 

Emlanjeni catering and trading CC 

Sechadi Trading 
Emlanjeni Catering and trading CC 
Mayigubhe Trading Enterprise CC 

- 5,075 
Sechadi Trading - 189,405 
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Mayigubhe Trading Enterprise CC 500,000 - 
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38. Prior period errors 

In terms of GRAP 3 - Accounting policies, Changes in Estimates and Errors: 

1. Prior period error – Retrospective application of GRAP 23 - Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions 

The Municipality has retrospectively adopted GRAP 23 - Revenue from Non-exchange Transactions which only allows the 
deferral of expenditure when a valid obligation exists. The conditional amounts held as payables under GAMAP 9 was 
recognised to revenue. 

The effects are as follows: 

Statement of financial position 

Increase in Accumulated Surplus R663 686 
Decrease in conditional grants liability (R663 686) 

2. Prior period error – Allocation of Leave Encashment 

The Municipality encashed accumulated leave for employees which related to the prior period. The prior period amounts are 
restated as a result. 

The effects are as follows: 

Statement of financial position 

Increase in Accumulated Surplus R746 164 
Decrease in Accrued leave pay (R746 164) 

The South African Revenue Services communicated on 15 December 2012 that Lejwe-le-putswa Development Agency should be 
registered for VAT. Lejwe-le-putswa Development Agency was not registered for VAT. However in terms of the VAT Act it states 
that a municipal entity is not a municipality and is therefore a designated entity and should be registered for VAT. Lejwe-le-
putswa Development Agency is now registered for VAT. 

Lejwe-le-putswa Development Agency was incorrectly assessed on 2011 financial period by The South African Revenue 
Services. Interest was levied. Lejwe-le-putswa Development Agency should however not have been assessed on the unspent 
grants in terms of section 10(1) (a) of the Income Tax Act that states that Lejwe-le-putswa Development Agency is exempt from 
Income Tax. The issue has not yet been resolved by The South African Revenue Services. On 1 February 2013 
PricewaterhouseCoopers did a dispute for the amount payable to The South African Revenue Services. 

Accounts payables increased by (R937 889) 

Opening retained decreased increased by R1 572 295 

Taxation (R771 959) 
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39. Risk management 

Capital risk management 

The economic entity's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the economic entity's ability to continue as a going 
concern in order to provide returns for and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to 
reduce the cost of capital. 

The capital structure of the economic entity consists of debt, which includes the borrowings disclosed in notes and 10, cash 
and cash equivalents disclosed in note 6 and accumulated surplus as disclosed in the statement of financial position. 

There are no externally imposed capital requirements. 

There have been no changes to what the municipality manages as capital, the strategy for capital maintenance or externally 
imposed capital requirements from the previous year. 

This ratio is calculated as net debt divided by total capital. Net debt is calculated as total borrowings (including current and non-
current borrowings' as shown in the statement of financial position) less cash and cash equivalents. Total capital is calculated as 
'equity' as shown in the statement of financial position plus net debt. 

There are no externally imposed capital requirements. 

The gearing ratio at 2013 and 2012 respectively were as follows: 

Total borrowings 

Other financial liabilities at amortised cost 10 16,545,187 18,338,234 16,545,187 18,338,234 

Less: Cash and cash equivalents 6 17,667,743 15,277,609 14,981,927 15,115,296 

Net debt  (1,122,556) 3,060,625 1,563,260 3,222,938 

Total equity  87,168,970 91,278,046 87,569,048 91,502,710 

Total capital  86,046,414 94,338,671 89,132,308 94,725,648 

Financial risk management 
     

 

The economic entity‟s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk (including fair value interest rate risk, cash flow 
interest rate risk and price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. 

The economic entity‟s overall risk management program focuses on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to 
minimise potential adverse effects on the economic entity‟s financial performance. Risk management is carried out by 
managemnt and internal audit under policies approved by the accounting officer. The accounting officer provides written 
principles for overall risk management. 

http://capital.net/
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39. Risk management (continued) 

Liquidity risk 

Prudent liquidity risk management implies maintaining sufficient cash, the availability of funding through an adequate amount of 
committed credit facilities. Due to the dynamic nature of the underlying businesses, economic entity treasury maintains flexibility in 
funding by maintaining availability under committed credit lines. 

The economic entity‟s risk to liquidity is a result of the funds available to cover future commitments. The economic entity 
manages liquidity risk through an ongoing review of future commitments and credit facilities. 

Cash flow forecasts are prepared and adequate utilised borrowing facilities are monitored. 

The table below analyses the economic entity‟s financial liabilities and net-settled derivative financial liabilities into relevant 
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the statement of financial position to the contractual maturity date. The 
amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual undiscounted cash flows. Balances due within 12 months equal their 
carrying balances as the impact of discounting is not significant 

.     

As at 30 June 2013 Less than one 
year 

Between 1 
and 2 years 

Between 2 
and 5 years 

Over 5 years 

Other Financial Liabilities 1,585,085 1,847,014 7,670,959 5,442,148 

Trade and other payables from 
exchange transactions 

6,666,405 - - - 

As at 30 June 2012 Less than one 
year 

Between 1 
and 2 years 

Between 2 
and 5 years 

Over 5 years 

Other Financial Liabilities 1,793,047 1,585,085 6,494,759 8,465,362 

Trade and other payables from 
exchange transactions 

Interest rate risk 

5,521,046 - - - 

 

The Municipality is mainly exposed to interest rate risk due to the movements in long-term and short term 
interest rates. 

The risk is managed on an on-going basis. 
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39. Risk management (continued) 

Credit risk 

Credit risk consists mainly of cash deposits, cash equivalents and trade debtors. The municipality only deposits cash with 
major banks with high quality credit standing and limits exposure to any one counter-party. 

Cash and Cash equivalents 

The municipality`s limits its credit risk by only banking with registered financial institutions in terms of the Banks Act, 94 of 1990 
operating in South Africa. 

Investments 

It is the practice of the municipality to limit its credit risk by only investing in registered banks in terms of the Bank Act, 94 of 
1990. Given the high credit ratings of these financial institutions of the municipality does not expect any counterpary to fail to 
meet its obligation. 

Sundry Debtors 

Management evaluated credit risk relating to customers on an ongoing basis. If there is no independent rating, risk control 
assesses the credit quality of the customer, taking into account its financial position, past experience and other factors. 

Financial assets exposed to credit risk at year end were as follows: 

Financial instrument Economic 
entity -2013 

Economic 
entity -2012 

Controlling 
entity -2013 

Controlling 
entity -2012 

Cash and Cash Equivalents 17,667,743 15,277,609 14,981,927 15,115,296 
Other financial assets 25,000,000 16,000,000 25,000,000 16,000,000 

Other receivables from non-exchange transactions 

40. Going concern 

1,552,456 627,078 1,552,456 626,246 

 

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a going concern. This 
basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of assets and settlement of 
liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course of business. 

41. Events after the reporting date 

Claim by previous Municipal Manager 

y A claim was instituted against the municipality by the previous Municipal Manager after the financial year end for 
termination of contract prior to the expiry of the contract. The amount claimed is for remuneration for the 2012 financial year 
with legal costs amounting to R 702 988. 

42. Non Current Assets Held for Sale 
    

Non Current Assets Held for Sale 

Opening Balance 7,660,446 - 7,660,446 - 
Transfers during the year 

Property, Plant and Equipment (7,660,446) 7,660,446 (7,660,446) 7,660,446 
Liabilities directly associated with non-current assets - - - - 

classified as held for sale     

Carrying amount of Non current assets held for sale - 7,660,446 - 7,660,44
6  

In the prior period the municipality transferred the yellow fleet assets to Matjhabeng Local Municipality with effect from 01 July 
2012. The disposal was completed by the 01/07/2012. 
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43. Unauthorised expenditure 

Opening Balance 1,367,850 1,140,100 1,367,850 1,140,100 

Unauthorised Expenditure during the year 227,690 227,750 227,690 227,750 

 1,595,540 1,367,850 1,595,540 1,367,850 

44. Fruitless and wasteful expenditure 

Opening balance 309,520 287,143 288,680 287,143 

Fruitless and wasteful expenditure during the year 65,091 22,377 - 1,537 

 374,611 309,520 288,680 288,680 

The expenditure include interest paid for late payment to suppliers. 
    

 

In the current year, fruitless and wasteful expenditure of R 65 091 incurred was made up as follows: R 60 084 of underpayment of 
provisional tax and R 6 006 of interest paid to SARS. This was as a result of the entity not having been registered for employees 
tax. Money was deducted from employees but could not be paid to SARS as SARS do not accept any amounts unless they have 

an account with a client and are able to allocate the amount to the account. 
The matter is still to be investigated by the board. 

Details of irregular expenditure – current year 

Councillors Remuneration 

Supply Chain 

 

Employee Related Costs 

Details 

Councillors qualify as Grade 4, but were paid As 
Grade 5 councillors. 
Non-compliance to the Municipal Supply Chain 
Regulations namely 3 quotes not obtained and non-
compliance to supply chain management prescripts 
for amounts greater than R 200 000. 
This comprises of overtime paid where the salaries 
exceed the threshold, allowances paid not in 
conformity to employee contract, Salary paid to 
employee not within notch range, cellphone 
allowances contrary to council resolution. Salary 
increases not authorised by council. 

1,504,455 

5,624,083 

 

913,594 

8,042,132 

Details of irregular expenditure recoverable (not condoned) 

Councillors Remuneration Councillors qualify as 1,504,455 
Grade 4, but were paid as Grade 5 Councillors 

The full extent of irregular expenditure for the year is still under investigation. 

 45. Irregular expenditure 

Opening balance 

25,549,016 14,612,378 25,549,016 

Add: Irregular Expenditure - Councillors remuneration 1,504,455 1,260,220 1,504,455 
Add: Irregular Expenditure - Supply Chain 5,299,217 12,256,022 5,299,217 
Add: Irregular Expenditure - Employee related costs 395,688 - 395,688 
Less: Amounts recoverable (transfer to receivables) (1,504,455) (1,260,220) (1,504,455) 

Less: Amounts condoned by Council - (1,319,384) - 

 31,243,921 25,549,016 31,243,921 
 

14,612,378 

1,260,220 

12,256,022 

- 

(1,260,220) 25,549,016 
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46. Additional disclosure in terms of Municipal Finance Management Act 

Contributions to organised local government 

Current year subscription / fee 479,063 330,047 479,063 330,047 

Amount paid - current year (479,063) (330,047) (479,063) (330,047) 

 - - - - 

Audit fees 

Opening balance - 259,195 - - 
Current year subscription / fee 1,908,098 2,397,732 1,720,781 2,055,569 

Amount paid - current year (1,908,098) (2,656,927) (1,720,781) (2,055,569) 

 - - - - 

PAYE , SDL and UIF 

Opening balance 21,408 171,191 - - 
Current year subscription / fee 9,582,305 9,118,772 9,161,849 8,707,995 

Amount paid - current year (9,603,713) (9,268,555) (9,161,849) (8,707,995) 

 - 21,408 - - 

Pension and Medical Aid Deductions 

Medical Aid 4,652,739 2,143,114 4,652,739 2,143,114 

Pension 8,521,000 3,976,374 8,521,000 3,976,374 

 13,173,739 6,119,488 13,173,739 6,119,488 

VAT 

VAT receivable - 329,018 4,750 1,129,353 

VAT payable 989,870 - - - 

 989,870 329,018 4,750 1,129,353  

All VAT returns have been submitted by the due date throughout the year. 

VAT owed by SARS amounts to R74 475 as per June 2013 VAT return. 

Councillors' arrear consumer accounts 

There are no councillor accounts in arrears for a period greater than 90 days. 

Non-compliance with the MFMA 

The following non-compliances to the MFMA occurred in the financial year: 
No risk assessments were performed as required by section 62(1 )(c)(i) of the MFMA. 
Irregular expenditure is not investigated and recovered as required by section 32(2)(b) of the MFMA. 

47. Actual operating expenditure versus budgeted operating expenditure Refer to Appendix E for 

the comparison of actual operating expenditure versus budgeted expenditure. 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

48. Deviation from supply chain management regulations 

Paragraph 12(1)(d)(i) of Government gazette No. 27636 issued on 30 May 2005 states that a supply chain management policy 
must provide for the procurement of goods and services by way of a competitive bidding process. Paragraph 36 of the same 
gazette states that the accounting officer may dispense with the official procurement process in certain circumstances, provided 
that he records the reasons for any deviations and reports them to the next meeting of the accounting officer and includes a note 
to the financial statements. 

Deviations from supply chain management regulations did occur. A detailed deviation register is available at the municipality for 
inspection. 

Supplier Details of Deviation Amount - R 

Network computing consulting Timeframe and impractical to obtain quotes 9,223 

Global Africa Network Exclusive supplier for Municipal profile 
advert 

45,543 

Wap Avoid call out “strip and quote” fee 9,931 

TP Plumbing & Glassfitting Timeframe and impractical to obtain quotes 3,080 

Hymax 
Supplier is the host of telephone system and 
impractical to obtain quotes 

5,421 

Governance Specialist Specialist service provider 96,340 

Hymax 
Supplier is the host of telephone system and 
impractical to obtain quotes 

10,539 

Hymax 
Supplier is the host of telephone system and 
impractical to obtain quotes 

26,923 

Xpectation Moon Avoid call out “strip and quote” fee 19,900 

Fire Equipment 
Avoid call out fee 

2,240 

Amaceniso Timeframe 
250,000 

Kingley Creations 
Timeframe 

188,400 

  667,540 



 

 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality 

Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 30 June 2013 

154 

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements 
Economic entity Controlling entity 

Figures in Rand 2013 2012 2013 2012 

49. Consulting and professional fees 

Consultant Fees 1,362,136 2,849,982 1,362,136 2,849,982 

Legal Services 487,385 691,942 487,385 691,942 

 1,849,521 3,541,924 1,849,521 3,541,924 

50. Budget Information 
    

 

Entities are typically subject to budgetary limits in the form of appropriations or budget authorisations (or equivalent), which is 
given effect through authorising legislation, appropriation or similar. General purpose financial reporting by entity shall provide 
information on whether resources were obtained and used in accordance with the legally adopted budget. The approved budget 
is prepared on a cash basis and presented by economic classification linked to performance outcome objectives. 

The approved budget covers the fiscal period from 01/07/2012 to 30/06/2013. The budget for the economic entity includes all the 
entities approved budgets under its control. The financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting 
therefore a comparison with the budgeted amounts for the reporting period have been included in the Statement of comparison of 
budget and actual amounts. 

The Statement of comparative and actual information has been included in the financial statements as the recommended 
disclosure when the financial statements and the budget are on the same basis of accounting as determined by National 
Treasury. 
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Appendix A 
Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Schedule of external loans 
June 2013 

 
Loan 

Number 
Redeemable Balance at 30 
June 2012 

 
 

Rand 

Received 
during the 

period 

Rand 

Redeemed 
written off 
during the 

period 

 

Rand 

Balance at 
30 June 

2013 

Rand 

Carrying Other Costs 
Value of in 
Property, accordance 
Plant & with the 
Equip MFMA 
Rand Rand  

 

Annuity loans 

DBSA-61 004020:Bothaville 1 2013 432,793 - 432,813 (20) - - 

DBSA-61 001 299:Henneman 2(a) 2019 2,422,817 - 272,847 2,149,970 - - 

DBSA-61 001 258:Ventersburg 2(b) 2019 473,142 - 53,283 419,859 - - 
DBSA-61 001256: Boshoff 2(c) 2019 369,300 - 36,832 332,468 - - 
DBSA-61 001257: Dealesville 2(d) 2019 91,898 - 10,349 81,549 - - 
DBSA-61 001 259:Wesselsbron 2(e) 2019 945,954 - 94,345 851,609 - - 
DBSA-61 0031 59:Bothaville2 3(a) 2020 9,128,435 - 613,843 8,514,592 - - 
DBSA-61 003236:Henneman2 3(b) 2020 2,532,904 - 157,806 2,375,098 - - 

DBSA-61 003237:Brandfort 3(c) 2020 1,940,991 - 120,929 1,820,062 - - 

   18,338,234 - 1,793,047 16,545,187 - - 

Total external loans 

Annuity loans 

  

18,338,234 - 1,793,047 16,545,187 - - 

   18,338,234 - 1,793,047 16,545,187 - - 
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Lejweleputswa District Municipality 
Appendix B 
Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Analysis op property, plant and equipment 
June 2013 

COST ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION 

 
Opening Balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance Opening Balance Additions Disposals Closing Balance Carrying value 

Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

 

Access Control 102,100 - - 102,100 (28,761) (18,378) - (47,139) 54,961 
Paving 212,987 - - 212,987 - (7,100) - (7,100) 205,887 

Security System 135,215 - - 135,215 (43,069) (23,577) - (66,646) 68,569 

 450,302 - - 450,302 (71,830) (49,055) - (120,885) 329,417 

Community 2,870,000 - - 2,870,000 - - - - 2,870,000 

 2,870,000 - - 2,870,000 - - - - 2,870,000 

Other assets 

Air conditioner 540,251 40,653 (10,054) 570,850 (155,186) (107,685) 7,213 (255,658) 315,192 
Cabinets / Cupboards 1,448,741 6,446 - 1,455,187 (404,387) (260,919) - (665,306) 789,881 
Chairs 1,151,878 44,959 (1,281) 1,195,556 (322,712) (212,027) 577 (534,162) 661,394 
Computer Hardware 3,151,535 451,509 (39,637) 3,563,407 (872,984) (740,378) 4,025 (1,609,337) 1,954,070 
Computer Software 6,514,593 159,485 (259,553) 6,414,525 (1,702,428) (1,947,505) 255,589 (3,394,344) 3,020,181 
Laboratory Equipment 135,327 - - 135,327 (33,433) (24,778) - (58,211) 77,116 
Radio Equipment - 4,474 - 4,474 - (439) - (439) 4,035 
Tellecommunication 468,418 - - 468,418 (203,195) (84,297) - (287,492) 180,926 
Fire Equipment 347,481 - - 347,481 (104,476) (36,764) - (141,240) 206,241 
General - 1,635 - 1,635 - (222) - (222) 1,413 
Emergency light 5,295 - - 5,295 (2,573) (970) - (3,543) 1,752 
Miscellaneous 2,366,432 41,502 - 2,407,934 (547,791) (422,114) (150) (970,055) 1,437,879 
Office Building 72,878,299 1,696,605 (1,763,677) 72,811,227 (7,950,152) (2,546,623) - (10,496,775) 62,314,452 

Office Machines 1,650,150 59,792 (4,519) 1,705,423 (189,311) (377,858) 3,181 (563,988) 1,141,435 

Tables / Desks 1,263,747 18,593 (4,200) 1,278,140 (332,818) (224,386) 2,252 (554,952) 723,188 
Tools 3,544 1,275 (1,943) 2,876 (221) (328) - (549) 2,327 
Televison / Radio 62,324 525 - 62,849 (17,592) (11,321) - (28,913) 33,936 
Motorvehicles 1,154,814 200,000 (200,000) 1,154,814 (217,122) (79,187) - (296,309) 858,505 
Compressors 7,355 - - 7,355 (2,372) (1,324) - (3,696) 3,659 
Lawnmowers 31,265 - - 31,265 (9,231) (5,628) - (14,859) 16,406 

Trucks / Bakkies 269,666 - - 269,666 (87,513) (11,297) - (98,810) 170,856 

 93,451,115 2,727,453 (2,284,864) 93,893,704 (13,155,498) (7,096,050) 272,687 (19,978,860) 73,914,844  

Total 
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Appendix C 

Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Segmental Analysis of PPE 
June 2013 

Segmental analysis of property, plant and equipment as at 30 June 2013 

 Opening Balance Additions Disposals Transfers Other changes, Closing Opening Additions Disposals Closing 
 movements Balance Balance Balance 
 Rand Rand Rand Rand RandRand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

       
  

Municipality 

Corporate Services 605,312 499,550 (382,563) - - 722,299 (203,959) (239,125) (24,078) (467,162) 
Human Resources 8,759 - (8,759) - - - (2,060) - 2,060 - 

Information Technology 3,099,945 73,367 (3,156,199) - - 17,113 (1,865,957) (5,086) 1,874,926 3,883 

Council General 2,612,403 300,717 (23,842) - - 2,889,278 (831,322) (368,929) (125,276) (1,325,527) 
Social Services 152,149 - (152,149) - - - (45,725) - 45,725 - 
Economic Development 245,024 29,242 8,984 - - 283,250 (79,203) (51,519) (3,025) (133,747) 
Technical Services 167,398 - (167,398) - - - (71,990) - 71,990 - 
Environmental Health 393,885 180,004 101,004 - - 674,893 (124,525) (140,057) (64,278) (328,860) 
Disaster Management 17,202,209 8,116 (7,315) - - 17,203,010 (887,964) (2,454,460) 3,140 (3,339,284) 

Property 69,958,208 956,146 (1,095,877) - - 69,818,477 (8,439,139) (2,688,590) 89,029 (11,038,700) 
Executive Mayor 432,501 129,159 (162,419) - - 399,241 (124,864) (91,571) 24,587 (191,848) 
Financial Services 721,819 473,359 2,836,111 - - 4,031,289 (225,499) (873,075) (1,602,117) (2,700,691) 
Municipal Support 118,246 - (117,839) - - 407 (38,172) - 38,097 (75) 

Rural Roads 191,765 - (191,765) - - - (44,502) - 44,502 - 
Municipal Manager 309,216 29,555 254,128 - - 592,899 (83,640) (118,000) (102,655) (304,295) 

Speaker 215,730 19,621 (17,506) - - 217,845 (65,353) (42,855) 2,626 (105,582) 

Mayoral Committee 336,850 28,618 (1,462) - - 364,006 (93,454) (71,839) (2,566) (167,859) 

 96,771,419 2,727,454 (2,284,866) - - 97,214,007 (13,227,328) (7,145,106) 272,687 (20,099,747) 
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Appendix D 
Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Segmental Statement of Financial Performance for the year ended 30 June 2013 
June 2013 

Prior Year  Current Year 

   
Actual Actual Surplus Actual Actual Surplus 
Income Expenditure /(Deficit) Income Expenditure /(Deficit) 
Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand Rand 

   
 

 

  
Municipality 

  

94,343,486 5,944,279 88,399,207 Corporate Services - 8,350 (8,350) 
- 2,123,483 (2,123,483) Human Resources - - - 

- 1,887,419 (1 ,887,419) Information Technology 1 - 1 

- 25,849,883 (25,849,883) Council General 98,213 15,159 83,054 
- 2,187,493 (2,187,493) Social Services 8 7,638 (7,630) 

790,000 5,348,092 (4,558,092) Economic Development - - - 

- - - Finance Technical Services - - - 

- 9,228,605 (9,228,605) Environmental Health - 10,032 (10,032) 
- 2,542,159 (2,542,159) Disaster Management - - - 

- 4,157,344 (4,157,344)Property - 3,747 (3,747) 
- 19,771,887 (19,771,887) Executive Mayor - 11,168 (11,168) 

5,315,484 10,401,323 (5,085,839) Financial Services 4,171 13,253 (9,082) 
- 1,348,790 (1 ,348,790) Municipal Support - - - 

- 4,951,819 (4,951,819) Rural Roads - - - 

- 8,219,364 (8,219,364)Municipal Manager - 11,469 (11,469) 
- 2,550,012 (2,550,012) Speaker - 2,425 (2,425) 
- 4,352,402 (4,352,402) Mayoral Committee - 4,948 (4,948) 
- 1,394,490 (1,394,490) Technical Services - - - 

- 4,268,313 (4,268,313)Tourism - 4,353 (4,353) 

- - - 1,000 7,958 (6,958) 

100,448,970 116,527,157 (16,078,187) 103,393 100,500 2,893 
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Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Actual versus Budget(Revenue and Expenditure) for the year ended 30 June 2013 
June 2013 

 
Act. Bal. Adjusted Variance 

budget 
Rand Rand Rand Var 

 

 
(106,321,815) (13,640,444)(120,575,499) 884.0 Other revenue and costs 

- - - 
 

Net surplus/ (deficit) for 
the year 

(3,569,555) (13,590,444) (17,773,239) 130.8 

 

Revenue 

Government Grants 

Other income - (rollup) 

Interest Received - 

Investment 

Interest received - other 

Expenses 

Employee remuneration 

Remuneration of 

councillors 

Depreciation 

Finance costs 

Debt impairment 

Repairs and maintenance 

- General 

Grants & subsidies paid 

 

- 

100,387,000 

40,000 

- 

- 

50,000 

- - 

100,387,000 - 

90,000 180.0 

102,752,260 50,000 102,802,26205,604.5 

(49,514,858) 782,615 (48,732,243)(6,226.8) 

(7,908,779) (100,000) (8,008,779)8,008.8 

(7,845,439) - (7,845,439) - 

(2,840,607) - (2,840,607) - 
(529,200) - (529,200) - 
(912,970) 306,620 (1 ,219,590)(397.8) 

(4,450,000) - (4,450,000) - 

(27,869,962) (14,629,679) (42,499,641) 290.5 

- - - - 

 (1,950,000) - (1,950,000)

 - 
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Appendix E(2) 
Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Budget Analysis of Capital Expenditure as at 30 June 2012 
June 2013 

Additions Revised Budget Variance Variance 
Rand Rand Rand % 
 

Municipality 

Council General 300,717 260,000 
Speaker 19,621 15,000 
Executive Mayor 129,159 35,000 
Mayoral Committee 28,618 20,000 
Municipal Manager 29,555 20,000 
Corporate Services 499,550 22,000 
Human Resources - - 

Information Technology 74,734 - 

Property 1,998 - 
Social Services - - 
Disaster Management 8,116 - 
Environmental Health 180,004 100,000 
Economic Development 29,242 25,000 
Technical Support - - 
Financial Services 537,123 515,000 
Municipal Support - - 

Rural Roads - -  
1,838,437 1,012,000 (826,437) (82) 

 

 

 
 

 

(40,717) (4,621) 

(94,159) (8,618) 

(9,555) 

(477,550) 

- 

(74,734) (1,998) 

- 

(8,116) (80,004) 

(4,242) 

- (22,123) 

- 

(16) 

(31) 

(269) 

(43) 

(48) 

(2,171) 
- 
- 

- 

 
- 
- 



 

 
Page 162 

Lejweleputswa District Municipality 
Appendix F 
Unaudited Supplementary Schedule 
Disclosures of Grants and Subsidies in terms of Section 123 MFMA, 56 of 2003 

June 2013 

Name of Grants Quarterly Receipts 

 

Quarterly Expenditure 

 

Did your 
municipality 

comply with the 
grant conditions 
in terms of grant 
framework in the 
latest Division of 

Revenue Act 

 Oct Jan Apr Jul Sep Oct Jan Apr Jul Sep Yes/ No 
Municipal Service Improvement - (1,000,000) - - - - 
Grant 

48,750 - 96,340 640,295 Yes 

Financial Management Grant (1,250,000) - - - - 101,322 327,232 275,529 235,932 292,110 Yes 

(1,250,000) (1,000,000) - - - 101,322 375,982 275,529 332,272 932,405 
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REPORT OF THE AUDITOR-GENERAL TO THE FREE STATE LEGISLATURE AND THE COUNCIL ON THE LEJWELEPUTSWA 
DISTRICT MUNICIPALITY 

REPORT ON THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Introduction 

1. I have audited the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Lejweleputswa District Municipality and its subsidiary set out on 
pages xx to xx, which comprise the consolidated and separate statement of financial position as at 30 June 2013, the consolidated and 
separate statement of financial performance, statement of changes in net assets and cash flow statement for the year then ended,and 
statement of comparison of budget and actual amounts, and the notes, comprising a summary of significant accounting policies and other 

explanatory information.  

Accounting officer’s responsibility for the consolidated financial statements 

2. The accounting officer is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these consolidated and separate financial statements in 
accordance with South African Standards of Generally Recognised Accounting Practice (SA Standards of GRAP)and the requirements of 
the Municipal Finance Management Act of South Africa, 2003 (Act No. 56 of 2003) (MFMA) and the Division of Revenue Act of South Africa, 
2012 (Act No. 5 of 2012) (DoRA) and for such internal control as the accounting officer determines is necessary to enable the preparation of 
consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor-general’s responsibility 

3. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated and separate financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my 
audit in accordance with the Public Audit Act of South Africa, 2004 (Act No. 25 of 2004) (PAA), the general notice issued in terms thereof 
and International Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that I comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate financial statements are free from material misstatement. 

4. An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated and separate 
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor‟s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material 
misstatement of the consolidated and separate financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the 
auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity‟s preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion 
on the effectiveness of the entity‟s internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and 
the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the consolidated and 
separate financial statements.  
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5. I believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for my audit opinion. 

 

Opinion 

6. In my opinion, the consolidated and separate financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the 
Lejweleputswa District Municipality and its subsidiary as at 30 June 2013 and its financial performance and cash flows for the year then 
ended in accordance with SA Standards of GRAP and the requirements of the MFMA and DoRA. 

Emphasis of matters 

7. I draw attention to the matters below. My opinion is not modified in respect of these matters. 

Restatement of corresponding figures 
8. As disclosed in note 34 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, the corresponding figures for 30 June 2012 have been 

restated as a result of an error discovered during 2012-2013 in the consolidated and separate financial statements of the Lejweleputswa 
District Municipality at and for the year ended 30 June 2012.  

Impairments  

9. As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated and separate financial statements, a provision for debt impairment to the amount of R12 370 
047(2012:R12 370 047) was recognized for sundry debtors due to poor collection practices. 

 
REPORT ON OTHER LEGAL AND REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS 

10. In accordance with the PAA and the general notice issued in terms thereof, I report the following findings relevant to performance against 
predetermined objectives, compliance with laws and regulations and internal control, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion. 

Predetermined objectives 

 
11. I performed procedures to obtain evidence about the usefulness and reliability of the information in the annual performance report as set 

out on pages xx to xx of the annual report.  

12. The reported performance against predetermined objectives was evaluated against the overall criteria of usefulness and reliability. The 
usefulness of information in the annual performance report relates to whether it is presented in accordance with the National Treasury‟s 
annual reporting principles and whether the reported performance is consistent with the development objectives. The usefulness of 
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information further relates to whether indicators and targets are measurable (i.e. well defined, verifiable, specific, measurable and time 
bound) and relevant as required by the National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information. 

13. The reliability of the information in respect of the selected programmes is assessed to determine whether it adequately reflects the facts 
(i.e. whether it is valid, accurate and complete). 

The material findings are as follows: 
 

Usefulness of information 

 
14. Section 46 of the Municipal Systems Act, 2000 (Act No.32 of 2000)(MSA)  requires disclosure in the annual performance report of 

measures taken to improve performance where planned targets were not achieved.  Adequate and reliable corroborating evidence could 
not be provided for all measures taken to improve performance as disclosed in the annual performance report. The municipality‟s records 
did not permit the application of alternative audit procedures. Consequently, I did not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence to satisfy 
myself as to the reliability of the measures taken to improve performance. 

15. The MSA, section 41(c) requires that the actual achievements against all planned indicators and targets must be reported annually. The 
annual performance report submitted for audit purposes did not include the actual performance of 42% of all planned indicators and 34% of 
planned targets specified in the integrated development plan for the year under review. This was due to the limited review and monitoring 
of the completeness of reporting documents by management.  
 

16. The National Treasury Framework for managing programme performance information (FMPPI) requires that performance targets be 
specific in clearly identifying the nature and required level of performance.  A total of 45% of the targets were not specific in clearly 
identifying the nature and the required level of performance. This was due to the fact that management was aware of the requirements of 
the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable application of the principles  

17. The National Treasury FMPPI requires that performance targets be measurable. The required performance could not be measured for 30% 
of the targets. This was due to the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the FMPPI but did not receive the necessary 
training to enable application of the principles.  
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18. The National Treasury FMPPI requires that indicators should have clear unambiguous data definitions so that data is collected consistently 
and is easy to understand and use. A total of 39% of the indicators were not well defined in that clear, unambiguous data definitions were 
not available to allow for data to be collected consistently. This was due to the fact that management was aware of the requirements of the 
FMPPI but did not receive the necessary training to enable application of the principles. The municipal officials did not have adequate 
competencies and skills required to enable the formulation of indicators and targets that meet the prescribed criteria for inclusion in the IDP 
and SDBIP 

19. The National Treasury FMPPI requires that it must be possible to validate the processes and systems that produce the indicator. A total of 
100% of the indicators were not verifiable in that valid processes and systems that produce the information on actual performance did not 
exist. This was due to the lack of key controls in the relevant systems of collection, collation, verification and storage of actual performance 
information 

Reliability of information 

20. The FMPPI requires that institutions should have appropriate systems to collect, collate, verify and store performance information to 
ensure valid, accurate and complete reporting of actual achievements against planned objectives, indicators and targets.  

21. I was unable to obtain the information and explanations I considered necessary to satisfy myself as to the reliability of information 
presented with respect to the Municipal transformation and institutional development, Local economic development and the Safety and 
security development objectives.  This was due to limitations placed on the scope of my work as the municipality could not provide 
evidence in support of the performance reported with respect to these development objectives in time to enable the audit thereof. 

Compliance with laws and regulations 

22. I performed procedures to obtain evidence that the entity has complied with applicable laws and regulations regarding financial matters, 
financial management and other related matters. My findings on material non-compliance with specific matters in key applicable laws and 
regulations as set out in the general notice issued in terms of the PAA are as follows: 

Budgets  

23. Revisions to the service delivery and budget implementation plan were not approved by the council after the approval of the adjustments 
budget, as required by section 54(1) (c) of the MFMA. 
 

Strategic planning and performance management 

24. The municipality did not have and maintain effective, efficient and transparent systems of financial and risk management and internal 
controls as required by section 62(1)(c)(i) of the MFMA. 
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Annual financial statements, performance and annual report 

25. The consolidated and separate financial statements submitted for auditing were not prepared in all material respects in accordance with 
the requirements of section 122 of the MFMA. Material misstatements of non-current assets, revenue, employee cost and various 
disclosure items identified by the auditors in the submitted consolidated and separate financial statements were subsequently corrected, 
resulting in the consolidated and separate financial statements receiving an unqualified audit opinion. 

26. The 2011-12 annual report was not made public immediately after the annual report was tabled in the council, as required by section 
127(5) (a) of the MFMA. 

27. The council's oversight report on the 2011-12 annual report was not made public within seven days of its adoption, as required by section 
129(3) of the MFMA. 

28. The annual performance report for the year under review does not include, a comparison with the previous financial year for measures 
taken to improve performance, as required by section 46 (1)(a), (b) and (c) of the Municipal Systems Act of South Africa, 2000 (Act No 32 
of 2000) (MSA). 

Audit committee 

29. The audit committee did not did not advise the council and accounting officer on matters relating to performance management and 
performance evaluation as required by section 166(2)(a) of the MFMA. 

30. The audit committee did not make recommendations to the council, as required by municipal planning and performance management 
regulation 14(4)(a)(ii).   

Internal audit 
31. The internal audit unit did not function as required by section 165(2) of the MFMA, in that: 

• it did not prepare a risk-based audit plan and an internal audit programme for the financial year under review. 
• it did not report to the audit committee on the implementation of the internal audit plan. 
• it did not advise the accounting officer and report to the audit committee on matters relating to internal audit, internal controls, 

accounting procedures and practices, risk and risk management and loss control. 
 

32. The internal audit unit did not advise the accounting officer and/or report to the audit committee on matters relating to compliance with the 
Municipal Finance Management Act, the Division of Revenue Act and other applicable legislation, as required by section 165(2)(b)(vii) of 
the Municipal Finance Management Act. 
 

Expenditure management 

33. Reasonable steps were not taken to prevent unauthorised expenditure and irregular expenditure, as required by section 62(1)(d) of the 
MFMA. 
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Revenue management 
34. A credit control and debt collection policy was not implemented, as required by section 96(b) of the MSA and section 62(1)(f)(iii) of the 

MFMA. 
 
Asset management 
35. An adequate management, accounting and information system which accounts for assets was not in place, as required by section 63(2)(a) 

of the MFMA. 
 

Consequences management 
36. Unauthorised expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, in 

accordance with the requirements of section 32(2) of the MFMA. 
37. Irregular expenditure incurred by the municipality was not investigated to determine if any person is liable for the expenditure, in 

accordance with the requirements of section 32(2) of the MFMA. 
Internal control 

38. I considered internal control relevant to my audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, the annual performance report and 
compliance with laws and regulations. The matters reported below under the fundamentals of internal control are limited to the significant 
deficiencies that resulted in the findings on the annual performance report and the findings on compliance with laws and regulations 
included in this report. 

Leadership 
39. Leadership did not exercise oversight responsibility over performance reporting as a portfolio of evidence to support actual performance 

reported was not submitted in time for audit purposes. This was due to lack of effective leadership as measures were not taken to ensure 
that supporting information is submitted within the prescribed timelines. 

 
40. The accounting officer and municipal council did not exercise oversight responsibility over compliance with laws and regulations which 

resulted in material repeat findings on predetermined objectives and compliance with laws and regulations being reported. There was lack 
of consequences for poor performance by officials. This was due to instability in key positions as the position of the municipal manager was 
only permanently filled in last month of the financial year. The municipal council did not appoint a permanent municipal manager in time to 
oversee effective implementation of key controls during the year.  

 

Financial and performance management 
41. The financial statements were not properly reviewed for completeness and accuracy prior to submission for auditing. This resulted in many 

findings relating to incorrect disclosure or non-disclosure. This was due to lack of effective leadership as the process of drafting and review 
of financial statements was not properly planned and implemented. The municipality is dependent on consultants for the preparation of 
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annual financial statements mainly due to lack of key competencies required for the preparation of financial statements. No evidence was 
obtained to confirm the transfer of skills by consultants to minimise continued dependency on the use of consultants. 

42. Ongoing monitoring and supervisory reviews over performance and compliance reporting were not adequate. The internal control 
weaknesses were not identified and corrected in time to ensure accurate and complete reporting. This was due to instability in key 
management positions as post of municipal manager was vacant for a long period. A permanent municipal manager was appointed in the 
last month of the financial year.  

Governance 

43. The recommendations of internal audit function and the audit committee were not effectively implemented due to instability in the post of 
the municipal manager. Internal control weaknesses were not timely identified and corrected resulting in material non compliance and 
predetermined objectives findings. 

44. Work performed by the internal audit function was not based on risk assessment and therefore had limited impact on addressing key 
weaknesses in performance management and compliance with laws and regulations. This was due to lack of effective leadership as risk 
assessment was not prioritised and implemented. 

 

 

Bloemfontein 

6 December 2013 
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APPENDIX A 

List of councillors representing political parties during council meetings in the municipality 

 

Name of 
councilor 

Political 
party 

Municipality 
represented 

Council meeting 
convened in a year 

Attended Apologies Absent Total 

Cllr NW 
Speelman 

ANC Matjhabeng 8 6 1 1- Joined the 
municipali
ty later 

7 

Cllr NS Leeto ANC Lejweleputswa 8 6 2 0 8 

Cllr BE Seakge ANC Tokologo 8 6 1 1-Did not sign 
attendance 
register (31 Jan 
2013) 

8 

Cllr XJ Toki ANC Lejweleputswa 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr NC 
Mkhusane 

ANC Lejweleputswa 8 2 0 0 2 

Cllr M Lekaota ANC Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr MS 
Sehloho 

ANC Lejweleputswa 8 6 2 0 8 

Cllr MA Olifant ANC Lejweleputswa 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr MJ Pereko ANC Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr PP Maseko ANC Lejweleputswa 8 5 2 1 8 

Cllr AG 
Makekema 

ANC Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr MMT 
Matlabe 

ANC Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr V Qabela ANC Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr SJ COPE Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 
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Tshekelo 

Cllr G 
Michalakis 

DA Lejweleputswa 8 5 2 1 8 

Cllr CJ 
Schlebusch 

DA Lejweleputswa 8 7 1 0 8 

LH Tsibolane DA Lejweleputswa 8 8 0 0 8 

SL Kgoe ANC Masilonyana 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr KP 
Dichakane 

ANC Masilonyana 8 5 0 2 
-No signature for 
the 16 May 2013 

8 

Cllr KR 
Phukuntsi 

ANC Tswelopele 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr BP Eseu ANC Tswelopele 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr MD 
Masienyane 

ANC Matjhabeng 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr MC Radebe ANC Matjhabeng 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr ZV 
Mafongosi 

ANC Matjhabeng 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr DM Mafa ANC Matjhabeng 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr KI Petleki ANC Matjhabeng 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr CP Chaka ANC Matjhabeng 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr MH 
Ntsebeng 

ANC Matjhabeng 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr MJ Molefi ANC Matjhabeng 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr(Dr) SJ 
Marais 

DA Matjhabeng 8 6 2 0 8 

Cllr MG 
Mlangeni 

DA Matjhabeng 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr PF Botha DA Matjhabeng 8 8 0 0 8 

Cllr FG May COPE Matjhabeng 8 7 1 0 8 

Cllr TL Molutsi ANC Nala 8 2 0 0 2 

Cllr TA ANC Nala 8 6 1 1 8 
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Mohloare 

Cllr PL 
Nieuwoudt 

DA Nala 8 5 3 0 8 

Cllr Thebehae   8 3 1 0 4 

Cllr MG 
Maphobole 

  8 4 0 1 5 

Cllr L Rubulana ANC  8 0 1 0 1 

 

 

APPENDIX B 

A list of council committee s and purposes 

1. Rules Committee 

The purpose of the committee is to establish or amend rules of council 

 

2. Oversight (Ad hoc committee on annual report) 

The purpose of the this committee is to ensure that there is public consultation on a draft annual report and ensure that the contents are 

acknowledged a participation process and thereafter recommend to council to either adopt, refer back or reject it. 

 

3. Audit committee 

The committee must audit performance of the municipality.  

APPENDIX C 

Third tier Administrative structure 

 Please see Organisational Performance chapter 
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APPENDIX D 

Functions of the municipality 

 Municipal Health Services 

 Disaster Management 

 Municipal Airports 

 Establishment, conduct and control of Cemeteries and crematoria 

 Fire Services 

 Integrated Development Planning 

 Establishment, conduct and control of Fresh Produce markets 

 Promotion of Local Tourism 

 Municipal Roads 
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APPENDIX G 

Audit committee meetings 

Attendance register at Audit Committee meeting from 1 July 2012 to 30 June 2013 
  Meeting - 9/7/2012 Meeting - 27/8/2012 Meeting - 1/10/2012 Meeting - 10/12/2012 Meeting - 5/3/2013 Meeting - 29/4/2013    

Name of Member Position Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Attended Apologies Total 

Mr. P D Moeti Chairperson 1   1   1   1   1   1   6 0 6 

Mr. M Mahonga Member 1   1   1   1   1   1   6 0 6 

Mr. E T Femele Member 1   1   1   1   1   1   6 0 6 

Mr. L J Makoro Member Appointed 1 August 2012 1   1   1   1   1   5 0 5 

                 

Name of Offical Position Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Attended Apologies Total 

Me. N E Aaron Municipal Manager   1 1     1   1         1 3 4 

Mr M M Mthombeni MM (Acting)               1   1 1   1 2 3 

Mr. J Heunis MM (Acting)         1   1           2 0 2 

Mr. J Heunis CFO (acting) 1                       1 0 1 

Mr. P K Pitso CFO              1       1   2 0 2 

Me. N L Gqoli CFO (acting)     1   1               2 0 2 

Mr. C A Bester Internal Auditor 1   1     1 1   1   1   5 1 6 

Mr. D Maselwa Risk Manager   1     1   1           2 1 3 

Me K Njobe Risk Manager                     1   1 0 1 

Mr. S A M August Internal Audit Clerk         1   1       1   3 0 3 

Mr. K T  Makhosane Internal Audit Clerk         1   1       1   3 0 3 

Me M Kayane Assistant RM Officer         1     1   1     1 2 3 

                 

Name of Offical Position Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Present Apology Attended Apologies Total 
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Provincial Treasury             1   1     1   1 2 3 

Auditor General           1   1         1 2 0 2 

 

AUDIT COMMITTEE RESOLUTION REGISTER 

Date of 
meeting 

Type of 
meeting 

Subject Resolution Status Date Completed Council Resolution date 

FINALISED 

03-Mar-11 O AC CHARTER That the Audit Committee Charter paragraph 11 on the 
remuneration be amended to be in line with Treasury 
Regulation 20.2.2 as published each year, 

Done 03-Mar-11   

     That the changes as discussed be forwarded to the District 
Council for approval, and 

Done   14-Sep-11 

     That the Local Municipalities as well as the Development 
Agency be informed about the resuscitation of the Audit 
Committee and Internal Audit Unit. 

Done 24-Mar-11   

      As at the meeting dated 16 April 2012 the Audit 
Committee still awaits responses from the various local 
municipalities. 

      

03-Mar-11 O FRAUD 
PRVENTION 

That the Audit Committee members give inputs on 
changes to be effected before the Fraud Prevention Plan 
is submitted to Council, and 

Done See 10/10/ 2011 - 
changed to Fraud 
Prevention Policy 

Fraud Prevention Policy 
adopted at Council 

meeting dated 25 March 
2013 

      That the Risk Officer customize the generic Fraud 
Prevention plan for Council’s circumstances. 

Done See 10/10/ 2011 - 
changed to Fraud 
Prevention Policy 

  

03-Mar-11 O 6- MONTHS 
MID-YEAR 
REPORT 

That the Audit Committee takes note of the section 72 
report as it was already approved by Council during a 
meeting held on the 25 January 2011. 

Done 03-Mar-11   
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03-Mar-11 O CONSOLDAT
ED AUDIT 
REPORT 

That the consolidated audit report, with comments be 
submitted to the next Council meeting, and 

      

      That the Acting CFO present to the next Audit Committee 
meeting an action plan relating to Grap 17. 

Done Report back in 
meeting dated 6 

June 2011 

  

24-Mar-11 S INTERNAL 
AUDIT PLAN 

That the Internal Audit Plan, as submitted to the meeting 
be changed to include the following: 

      

     Changes to paragraph 2 on page 3,       

    Replace: Recommendations will be made to assist the Municipality 
in addressing all identified deficiencies, and  

      

    With: Recommendations will be taken by the Municipal 
Manager to the Management team to assist the 
Municipality in addressing all identified deficiencies, and 

Done 24-Mar-11   

     Correct word choice in paragraph 5 page 3, and       

    Replace: Detailed audit procedures will be developed taking into 
account identified risks and internal audit objectives 
derived from such risks. The objectives would form the 
basis of the audit procedures. 

      

    With: Detailed audit procedures will be developed taking into 
account identified risks and internal audit objectives 
derived from such risks. The objectives would form the 
basis of the audit procedures. 

Done 24-Mar-11   

     Add as a Special Request:       

     From Management side there was a special request to 
look into the following: 

Done 24-Mar-11   

     Design and build (also known as Turnkey) solution for 
construction of items, 

      

      Exceptional circumstances when deviations will be 
acceptable. 

      

06-Jun-11 O REMUNERAT
ION OF 
AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

That the Audit Committee Charter, including the 
remuneration of Audit Committee members, be send to 
Council at the next Council sitting for approval. (Inclusive 
of preparation fees.) 

Done 12-Sep-11 14-Sep-11 
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MEMBERS 

30-Aug-11 S ANNUAL 
FINANCIAL 
STATEMENT
S  

The Audit Committee recommends that the Annual 
Financial Statements, for the year ended 30

th
 June 2011, 

as discussed in this special meeting, be submitted to the 
Auditor General.  

Done 30-Aug-11   

10-Oct-11 O PERFORMAN
CE 
INFORMATI
ON / 
ANNUAL 
REPORT 
TIME LINES 

Management has been requested that future reports be 
made available to the Internal Audit Activity, together 
with proof on the achievements and provision for a 
column for the Internal Auditors remarks.  This report 
from the Internal Auditor will then be submitted to the 
Audit Committee and the Municipal Manager. 

Done 09-Nov-11   

10-Oct-11 O FRAUD 
PREVENTIO
N PLAN / 
CODE OF 
ETHICS / 
GIFT POLICY 
/ RISK 
MANAGEME
NT POLICY 

The Fraud Prevention Plan, as submitted should be 
changed to a Fraud Prevention Policy.  When compiling 
the Fraud Prevention Plan, after a Fraud Risk Assessment, 
to put the Fraud Prevention Plan in action, assistance 
from a specialists should be acquired. 

Done 2011/10/10          
The Fraud 

Prevention Policy 
together with the 

Gift Policy was 
again send to (a) 

Corporate 
Services, 7 

February 2012. 

  

     The Gift Policy for officials should be amended to 
accommodate quarterly reports from Section 57 
managers, to the Audit Committee meetings and all 
employees in any bid committee, Supply Chain employees 
and all Section 57 managers should declare any gift 
received. 

Done 2011/10/10          
The Fraud 

Prevention Policy 
together with the 

Gift Policy was 
again send to (a) 

Corporate 
Services, 7 

February 2012. 

Adopted by Council but 
wait for Public particiation 

before implementing.     
Council sitting - 25 March 

2013 
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10-Oct-11 O LOCAL 
MUNICIPALI
TIES AND 
THE 
RESUSCITATI
ON OF THE 
AUDIT 
COMMMITT
EE 

Memorandum of agreements, specifying the payments, to 
be done from the District, and to be refunded by the 
respective shared services partners, should be drawn up 
from the Corporate Services department. 

Done 22-Nov-11   

10-Oct-11 O ANNUAL 
REPORT: 
AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

The annual report should be amended to include the 
attendance of officials at the Audit Committee meetings 
and to provide for the planned shared services.  The 
report to be forwarded to management for preparation 
for the next Council sitting. 

Done 10-Oct-11   

10-Oct-11 O STRUCTURE 
OF THE 
PERFORMAN
CE AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
VERSUS THE 
AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

The members of the Audit Committee are unanimous in 
making themselves available to serve as members of a 
Performance Audit Committee in terms of paragraph 2 (a) 
and (c) of the Local Government Municipal Planning and 
Performance Management Regulations, published 24 
August 2001.  

Done 2011/11/09  The 
Indication to 
extend the 

mandate was 
there but the 
Charter needs 

revision to 
provide for it. 

See resolution on April 16, 
2012 together with 

Council resolution dated 7 
June 2012, item A11/2012. 

      This will be discussed with the Municipal Manager to 
confirm either the extension of scope of the current 
members or the appointment of a completely new 
Performance Audit Committee. 

Done 09-Nov-11   

05-Dec-11 O INTERNAL 
AUDIT PLAN 

The 3 year Rolling Internal Audit Plan was approved with 
corrections to the functional areas. 

Done 05-Dec-11   

    LEJWELEPUT
SWA 
DEVELOPME
NT AGENCY 

The Lejweleputswa Development Agency was 
represented by Mr. E Lesenyelo, and it was decided that: 

      

      The Lejweleputswa Development Agency be a separate 
units to audit, 

Done 05-Dec-11   

      Separate meetings be conducted for the Municipality and       
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Agency, and 

      That the Agency be responsible for their own agenda and 
meeting arrangements. 

      

05-Dec-11 O AUDIT 
ACTION 
PLAN (AG) - 
INCREASING 
INTERNAL 
AUDIT STAFF 
MEMBERS 

On the increasing of capacity in the Internal Audit Unit the 
Municipal Manager have indicated that it is the intention 
to retain one of the current Interns for that purpose.  The 
Audit Committee have requested that a qualified Internal 
Auditor be appointed. 

Completed  2 Financial Interns 
retained as 
Internal Audit 
Clerks effectively 
1 September 
2012. 

  

16-Apr-12 O AC CHARTER That the Audit Committee Charter, as amended be 
approved, 

Done 16-Apr-12 07-Jun-12 

      That the Audit Committee Charter be send to Council for 
approval. 

   Item: A11/2012 

    IA CHARTER That the Internal Audit Charter be approved. Done 16-Apr-12   

01-Oct-12 O AC POLICY That the Internal Audit Policy, as amended be approved, Done 01-Oct-12   

      That the Internal Audit Policy be send to Council for 
approval. 

Done 16-Oct-12 To CSM (a) 16/10 

      That the Organisational Independence declaration, be 
approved, 

Done 01-Oct-12   

      That the Individual Independence declaration, be 
approved, 

Done 01-Oct-12   

01-Oct-12 O ANNUAL 
REPORT: 
AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 

The annual report is not adopted and changes should be 
made to reflect the attendance of officials at the Audit 
Committee meetings and to edit the municipalities 
involved in the planned shared services.   

Finalised At Special Audit 
Committee 
meeting - 5 
March 2013 

Sent to Oversight 
Committee on 14 March 
2013. 

10-Dec-12 O Letter to 
MM 

The letter and all outstanding items should be forwarded 
to the current Acting Municipal Manager for his attention. 

Done 13-Dec-12   

05-Mar-13 S ANNUAL 
REPORT: 
AUDIT 
COMMITTEE 
and 
COUNCIL 

It is opinion from the Audit Committee that this 
Lejweleputswa District Municipality Annual Report of 
2011/2012 financial year does not comply with Circular 63 
of the Municipal Financial Management Act, Act 56 of 
2003, as published 26 September 2012. 

Done 14-Mar-13   
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      A new format annual report from the Audit Committee 
was compiled and submitted to the oversight meeting on 
14 March 2013. 

Done Feedback given to 
the oversight 
committee on 14 
March 2013. 

  

29-Apr-13 O AC CHARTER That the Audit Committee Charter, as amended be 
approved, 

Done 02-May-13 20-Jun-13 

      That the Audit Committee Charter be send to Council for 
approval. 

   A10/2013  

            (2013/06/20) MM 
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APPENDIX J 

Disclosure of financial interests of HODs (Attached) 

 


